
 
 
 
Committee: 
 

CABINET 

Date: 
 

TUESDAY, 17 FEBRUARY 2015 

Venue: 
 

MORECAMBE TOWN HALL 

Time: 10.00 A.M. 
 

A G E N D A 
 
 
1. Apologies  
 
2. Minutes  
 
 To receive as a correct record the minutes of Cabinet held on Tuesday 20th January 2015 

(previously circulated).    
  
3. Items of Urgent Business Authorised by the Leader  
 
 To consider any such items authorised by the Leader and to consider where in the 

agenda the item(s) are to be considered.   
  
4. Declarations of Interest  
 
 To receive declarations by Members of interests in respect of items on this Agenda.   

Members are reminded that, in accordance with the Localism Act 2011, they are required 
to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests which have not already been declared in 
the Council’s Register of Interests. (It is a criminal offence not to declare a disclosable 
pecuniary interest either in the Register or at the meeting).   

Whilst not a legal requirement, in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 10 and in the 
interests of clarity and transparency, Members should declare any disclosable pecuniary 
interests which they have already declared in the Register, at this point in the meeting.   

In accordance with Part B Section 2 of the Code Of Conduct, Members are required to 
declare the existence and nature of any other interests as defined in paragraphs 8(1) or 
9(2) of the Code of Conduct.    

  
5. Public Speaking  
 
 To consider any such requests received in accordance with the approved procedure.   

  
  

Reports from Overview and Scrutiny   
 

None  
 

 Reports  



 

 

 
6. Section 106 Agreement - Morecambe Sainsbury's (Pages 1 - 6) 
 
 (Cabinet Member with Special Responsibility Councillor Hanson)  

 
Report of Chief Officer (Regeneration & Planning)  

  
7. Happy Mount Park- Masterplan-2015-2025 (Pages 7 - 13) 
 
 (Cabinet Member with Special Responsibility Councillor David Smith)  

 
Report of Chief Officer (Environment)  

  
8. Corporate Performance and Financial Monitoring 2014/15 - Quarter 3 (Pages 14 - 55) 
 
 (Cabinet Members with Special Responsibility Councillors Blamire and Bryning) 

Joint Report of the Chief Officer (Governance) and Chief Officer (Resources)  
  
9. Corporate Plan (Pages 56 - 67) 
 
 (Cabinet Member with Special Responsibility Councillor Blamire) 

 
Report of Chief Officer (Governance)  

  
10. Budget & Policy Framework Update 2015/16  
 
 (Cabinet Members with Special Responsibility Councillors Blamire & Bryning) 

 
Report of Chief Officer (Resources)  -  Report to Follow  

  
11. Budget and Policy Framework Update 2015/16 – Housing Revenue Account and 

Capital Programme (Pages 68 - 85) 
 
 (Cabinet Member with Special Responsibility Councillor Leytham) 

 
Joint Report of Chief Officer (Health & Housing) and Chief Officer (Resources)  

  
12. Treasury Management Strategy 2015/16  
 
 (Cabinet Member with Special Responsibility Councillor Bryning) 

 
Report of Chief Officer (Resources) – Report to Follow  

  
13. Exclusion of the Press and Public  
 
 This is to give further notice in accordance with Part 2, paragraph 5 (4) and 5 (5) of the 

Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information) 
(England) Regulations 2012 of the intention to take the following item(s) in private.  It 
should be noted that the reports for items 14 and 15 are public reports but contain exempt 
appendices and it will only be necessary to exclude members of the press and public if it 
is necessary to refer to the exempt appendices during consideration of these items. 
 
Cabinet is recommended to pass the following recommendation in relation to the following 
item(s):-   



 

 

 
“That, in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act, 1972, the press 
and public be excluded from the meeting for the following item(s) of business, on the 
grounds that they could involve the possible disclosure of exempt information as defined 
in paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of that Act.”   
 
Members are reminded that, whilst the following item(s) have been marked as exempt, it 
is for Cabinet itself to decide whether or not to consider each of them in private or in 
public.  In making the decision, Members should consider the relevant paragraph of 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972, and also whether the public interest in 
maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information.  In 
considering their discretion Members should also be mindful of the advice of Council 
Officers.    

  
14. Energy Strategy  
 
 (Cabinet Member with Special Responsibility Councillor Hamilton-Cox) 

 
Report of Chief Officer (Environment) – Report to Follow  

  
15. Proposed Redevelopment of St. Leonard's House  
 
 (Cabinet Member with Special Responsibility Councillor Hamilton-Cox) 

 
Report of Chief Officer (Resources) – Report to Follow  
 

  
ADMINISTRATIVE ARRANGEMENTS 
 
(i) Membership 

 
 Councillors Eileen Blamire (Chairman), Janice Hanson (Vice-Chairman), Jon Barry, 

Abbott Bryning, Tim Hamilton-Cox, Karen Leytham, Ron Sands and David Smith 
 

 
(ii) Queries regarding this Agenda 

 
 Please contact Liz Bateson, Democratic Services - telephone (01524) 582047 or email 

ebateson@lancaster.gov.uk. 
 

(iii) Apologies 
 

 Please contact Members’ Secretary, telephone 582170, or alternatively email 
memberservices@lancaster.gov.uk. 
 

 
MARK CULLINAN, 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE, 
TOWN HALL, 
DALTON SQUARE, 
LANCASTER LA1 1PJ 
 
Published on Thursday, 5th February 2015.   

 



 
 

CABINET  
 
 
Section 106 Agreement – Morecambe Sainsbury’s 

17th February 2015 
 

Report of Chief Officer (Regeneration and Planning) 
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
To obtain authority to utilise Section 106 contributions from the Morecambe Sainsbury’s 
development to improve pedestrian/cycle links in the vicinity of the store and to update the 
Council’s budget accordingly. 
 

Key Decision X Non-Key Decision  Referral from Cabinet 
Member  

Date of notice of forthcoming 
key decision 

20th January 2015 

This report is public 

 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS OF COUNCILLOR JANICE HANSON 

(1) That authority be given to utilise the £55,000 Section 106 monies from 
Sainsbury’s to improve pedestrian and cycle links in the area around 
the Morecambe store as detailed in the report.   

(2) That the General Fund Revenue Budget and Capital Programme be 
updated accordingly to reflect the additional expenditure and the 
contribution from the s106 reserve. 

1.0 Introduction 

1.1 In 2010, planning permission was granted for the redevelopment of Christie 
Park, former home of Morecambe Football Club, for a Sainsbury food store. 
Amongst the many conditions associated with the approval was a 
requirement to improve pedestrian and cycle links between the new store and 
the Lancaster to Morecambe “Greenway”. A commuted sum of £55,000 was 
negotiated with Sainsbury’s to pay for these works. 

1.2 The original proposal was to construct a new route across the playing field of 
Lancaster Road Primary School. Unfortunately, it has not proved possible to 
obtain agreement to use this route which has meant that a revised proposal 
has had to be developed. This has delayed the project to the point where the 
money may have to be repaid if it is not spent by July 16th 2015. 
 
 

Agenda Item 6 Page 1



2.0 Proposal Details 

2.1 The planning requirement is to provide a direct foot/cycle path from the 
Lancaster – Morecambe cycle path (the “Greenway”) to the site. This is 
reflected in the Section 106 Agreement which requires the money to be spent 
on “the construction of a cycle path along a route to be determined by the 
Council between the Land (Sainsbury’s) and Greenway and then onto 
Bartholomew Road / Wingate Avenue”. 

2.2 Improving the cycle/pedestrian network linking Morecambe’s residential areas 
and Sainsbury’s will encourage less use of the private car by shoppers and 
employees. Using the school playing field has not proved to be feasible due 
to the loss of outdoor playing space. Instead, it is proposed to improve the 
existing on-road cycle link between Lancaster Road and the “Greenway” via 
Christie Avenue which in turn opens up routes to the large residential area 
between the cycle route and Oxcliffe Road (see plan showing overall route).  

2.3 This will involve improvements in the vicinity of the superstore, and a link 
between the cycle route and Bartholomew Road to facilitate access for 
cyclists, wheelchair users and pushchairs, through improvements to the 
existing footpath. Specifically, a new bridge will replace the existing wooden 
footbridge and a wider path will enable joint use between pedestrians and 
cyclists, with new and improved surfacing providing much safer access (see 
detailed plan).  

2.4 As the proposal improves existing routes, there are no additional 
maintenance costs associated with the scheme. The new bridge will require 
less maintenance in the long term than the existing one as it will be 
constructed of more durable materials. 
 

3.0 Details of Consultation  

3.1 Extensive consultation took place during consideration of the planning 
application. Additional consultation will take place with ward members and 
any responses will be reported verbally. 
 

4.0      Options and Options Analysis (including risk assessment) 

 Option 1: Do not undertake 
the improvements 

Option 2: Implement 
improvements as currently 
planned 

Advantages Existing staff resources can 
be utilised elsewhere 

Achieves long held wish to 
improve links to Greenway. 
No additional cost to the Council 
other than existing staff time. 
(see comment above re ongoing 
maintenance) 

Disadvantages No improvements to 
greenway. Section 106 
money repaid. Lost 
opportunity. 

Some staff time involved. 

Risks Reputational risk with public 
and potential future funders. 
Would undermine future 
Section 106 negotiations. 

Need to progress quickly to 
avoid “payback” scenario if 
scheme is not completed before 
July 16th deadline. This is 
considered low risk given the 
nature of the works involved. 

Page 2



5.0       Officer Preferred Option (and comments) 
5.1   Option 2 is the officer preferred option as it delivers highly desirable 

improvements to pedestrian and cycle network at no additional cost to the 
Council. 

6.0      Conclusion 
6.1     As detailed in paragraph 5.1 above. 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO POLICY FRAMEWORK 
 
The proposal will contribute to the Council’s Clean, Green and Safe Places and Health and 
Wellbeing priorities. 
 

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
(including Health & Safety, Equality & Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, 
HR, Sustainability and Rural Proofing) 

None arising directly as a result of this report. 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  

The Section 106 Agreement is legally binding between the parties involved. The agreement 
requires the City Council to repay the money if it is not expended within 5 years of its receipt 
by the Council i.e. by 16th July 2015. 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

There are no additional financial implications arising for the City Council as a result of the 
proposed improvements as the implementation costs will be 100% funded from external 
monies currently held in the s106 reserve for this purpose.  It is expected that any ongoing 
revenue costs for maintenance and staff time will be contained within existing resources as 
the proposal covers the enhancement of an existing route, whilst using more durable 
materials. 

It is re-iterated that any unspent monies will need to be returned to the Developer if the 
works are not commenced and completed by the deadline of July 16th 2015 and so there is a 
need to progress fairly quickly at this stage as the works (including appropriate planning and 
preparation time) are likely to take up to two months.   

OTHER RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

Human Resources: 

The project will be managed by the Engineering Team in the Regeneration and Planning 
Service utilising existing staff resources. This is manageable within existing workloads. 

Information Services: 

None 

Property: 

The land required for the improvements is owned by the City Council. 

Open Spaces: 

None 

Page 3



SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS 

The Section 151 Officer has been consulted and has no comments. 

MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS 

The Monitoring Officer has been consulted and has no comments. 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

none 

Contact Officer: David Lawson 
Telephone:  01524 582331 
E-mail: dlawson@lancaster.gov.uk 
 

 

Page 4



Page 5



Page 6



 
 

CABINET  
 
 

Happy Mount Park – Master Plan 2015-2025 
17th February 2015 

 
Report of Chief Officer (Environment) 

 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
To seek approval for the Happy Mount Park Master Plan 2015-2025 
 

Key Decision x Non-Key Decision  Referral from Cabinet 
Member  

Date of notice of forthcoming 
key decision 

19 January 2015 

This report is public 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS  

(1) To approve the new master plan for Happy Mount Park 2015-2025. 

(2) To delegate decisions relating to the delivery of the master plan to 
Chief Officer (Environment), in line with financial regulations. 

(3) That where appropriate the City Council acts as accountable body for 
external funding that is raised to deliver the master plan and that the 
Chief Officer (Environment) is authorised to bid for, where appropriate, 
and accept external funding that contributes to the master plan in line 
with financial regulations. 

(4) To endorse the use of the renewals reserve for the replacement of 
paths in the park over a 5 year period. 

(5) That Cabinet notes the efforts of volunteers in Happy Mount Park and 
many other Parks and areas of open space in the District and 
expresses thanks for the ongoing contribution they make. 

1.0 Introduction 

 

1.1 Clean, Green and Safe places are a priority for the Council. A measure of 
success in this regard is the number of projects that directly involve local 
communities in improving local areas, parks and open spaces. This report will 
focus specifically on Happy Mount Park. 

 
1.2 Happy Mount Park is an extremely popular park for both locals and tourists, 

Agenda Item 7 Page 7



especially in warmer weather.  Over the years, many improvements have 
been made, such as the introduction of the splash park and the natural 
adventure play area, which have led to the increasing popularity of the park. 
The effective management and maintenance of the park is recognised 
nationally by the fact the park consistently achieves Green Flag status. 
 
In accord with best practice work has been taking place to develop a long 
term plan for the park. The purpose of the master plan is to ensure the council 
effectively manages the park over the next ten years through identifying the 
future direction of the park, key areas to focus on for preservation, and 
opportunities for additional funding.   
 

1.3 Extensive consultation is development of the plan has established that the 
majority of people are very happy with the park and are keen to preserve it as 
it is. From the consultation a vision and key principles for the future 
development of park have been established.  
 
The vision is- 
 
To preserve Happy Mount Park as a green park which incorporates a mix of 
traditional and modern attractions, catering for visitors of all ages. 
 

Key principles are;  
 
Maintain the current character of the park and preserve it for future 
generations. 

 
Develop the Park in such a way that the changes will be sustainable both 
financially and ecologically whilst allowing for maximum enjoyment of its 
beautiful wildlife and fun activities.  
 
Respect the historic background of the park in its general design and layout. 
 

2.0 Proposal Details 

 

2.1 As outlined above over the last year a comprehensive consultation process 
has taken place to develop a long term master plan for Happy Mount Park.   
The master plan is attached at Appendix A. Cabinet should note that during 
the consultation process it has been made very clear that, due to the financial 
pressures facing the Council, delivery of the master plan is entirely dependent 
on accessing external funding.  
 

2.2 It is extremely unlikely that the Council itself would be eligible for external 
funding. However, there is a well- established ‘Friends of’ group in the park. 
These volunteers have over a number of years now devoted many hours to 
improving the park. The combination of a long term vision for the park, 
Council commitment to the future of the Park and a thriving ‘Friends of’ group 
means that with ongoing support from the Council there is a realistic prospect 
of the master plan being delivered. 

 

Page 8



2.3 As would be expected the consultation process also highlighted three areas 
of operational concern- Lack of car parking, Lack of toilet facilities/condition of 
toilet facilities during busy periods and the condition of the footpaths.  
 
Proposals to tackle these issues are- 
 
Car Parking- Additional signage is required to indicate Coastal Road Car 
Park is the identified car parking area for the park. The issue is mainly 
seasonal and additional parking cannot be made within the park.  The only 
other option available to residents is to request the area to become a 
residential parking area, this had a mixed response. 
 
Toilets- The toilets in HMP were fully refurbished only a few years ago. It is 
not cost effective to build additional toilets in the park when in reality 
additional toilet capacity would only be utilised for a few weeks of the year. 
Furthermore, it was found the main issues related to families with young 
people having to pack-up their stuff to go to the toilet as it is at the opposite 
end to the two main attractions, the splash park and play area.  Also as there 
are no changing facilities in the splash park it appears people are using the 
toilets instead which means that on summer days the toilets get wet and 
messy quickly.  On balance the best way of resolving this would be to look at 
installing some changing facilities in the Splash Park as part of the delivery of 
the master plan.  
 
Pathways- many of the pathways within the park are either in very poor 
condition or are deteriorating.  £13,500 has already been allocated for 
emergency repairs this financial year.  However, to maintain the safety of the 
park all the pathways will need replacing over the next five years at a cost of 
approximately £100,000.  Cabinet are requested to endorse a replacement 
programme using the existing renewals reserve. 

 

3.0 Details of Consultation  

3.1 Consultation has been undertaken at various stages throughout the process 
of developing the plan.  This has involved reviewing previous questionnaire 
based consultation, meeting with officers and stakeholders, five advertised 
public consultation sessions in the park and a dedicated Facebook 
consultation group for the park. 
 

3.2 Through the consultation process a group of interested people was formed to 
help develop the detail of the plan.  This group ‘Happy Mount Park Project 
Group’ is now constituted and keen to start delivery of the master plan if 
approved.   
 
Initial projects that already have potential funding / resources would be a) the 
Japanese gardens- as we have funding secured to design this element further 
as well as a keen volunteer group; b) The traditional area at the front of the 
park; c) the woodland area  
 
 
 
 
 

Page 9



4.0 Options and Options Analysis (including risk assessment) 

 Option 1: Approve the master 
plan for delivery  

Option 2: Continue without a 
master plan 

Advantages The master plan helps focus 
current and future resources on 
areas and attractions that will 
enhance the park. (I.e. the current 
balance of green space to hard 
landscape should be maintained 
or enhanced; Wildlife should be 
encouraged focusing on the areas 
identified within the plan;  The 
park does not have capacity for 
an increase in users during peak 
times, therefore, additional 
events, etc. should focus on 
enhancing the length of the day 
(i.e. evening or morning usage or 
extending the season) 
 
  
The plan will also help support 
applications to external funders to 
preserve and enhance the park 

The opportunities to preserve 
and enhance the park through 
additional funding support would 
be very much reduced. 
 
There would be no clear 
guidance to the development of 
the park.  This can be 
particularly difficult when 
considering new opportunities. 

Disadvantages  Less potential for external 
funding opportunities 

Risks Funding for development is not 
secured.  If the volunteer groups 
disband it would be difficult for the 
council to obtain funding from 
external sources. 

The park may slip into decline 
without proper forward planning 

5.0 Officer Preferred Option (and comments) 

5.1 The preferred option is option 1.  The park is very popular and well used it is 
importance to have a plan for the future to ensure it remains popular. 
 

5.2 The three identified operational issues; toilets, car parking and pathways 
should be noted. 
 

6.0  Conclusion 

6.1 The master plan will assist in allocating current and future resources within 
the park, to both preserve the park and enhance its assets. 
 

6.2 The plan will help support applications to external funders to preserve and 
enhance the park.  
 

6.3 Three operational issues (car parking, pathways and toilets) have been 
identified as part of this process which should be noted. 

 

 
 

Page 10



 

RELATIONSHIP TO POLICY FRAMEWORK 
 
As outlined in the report 
 

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
(including Health & Safety, Equality & Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, 
HR, Sustainability and Rural Proofing) 

The master plan takes account of design issues relating to accessibility, community safety, 
sustainability etc. As the master plan is delivered individual elements will be assessed for 
impact. 

 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  

None as a result of this report 

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

If members approve the Officer recommendation (option 1) there will be capital costs of 
£100,000 over 5 years to be funded from the renewals reserve for replacement of pathways.  

All other additional expenditure associated with implementing the master plan is expected to 
be met from external funding.  The master plan contains a mixture of capital and revenue 
expenditure and where capital expenditure is incurred such as building of new changing 
facilities at the splash park, there will be on-going capital charges and revenue costs for 
maintaining newly generated assets which will have an impact on revenue budgets in future 
years. It is expected however, that the ongoing maintenance costs will be met from within 
existing resources. 

Where proposals can be financed fully from external funding and/or existing budgets, then 
following appropriate due diligence the approved budgets would be updated to enable their 
implementation, under Officer delegations. 

Should any proposals not be affordable in this way, then they would be referred back for 
Cabinet’s initial consideration (ahead of potential referral to Council as part of the relevant 
year’s budget process). 

If option 2 is approved it is likely that the park will slip into further decline and revenue costs 
are likely to increase year on year to cover reactive repairs and maintenance which become 
necessary in order to keep the park in a safe and operational condition. Visitor numbers 
could also fall potentially resulting in reduced income from the café and concession facilities. 

It is reiterated that the replacement of footpaths is essential for health & safety reasons and 
failure to carry out these works will put us at risk of claims for personal injury. 

 

OTHER RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

Human Resources: 

None 

Information Services: 

None  

Property: 

Page 11



As outlined in the report 

Open Spaces: 

As outlined in the report 

 

SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS 

The s151 Officer has been consulted and her comments reflected in the report.  She would 
add that on the basis that the park will continue as an attraction for the foreseeable future, 
the proposals represent a reasonable and efficient way forward to manage the financial 
sustainability, affordability and prudence aspects of its development.  The application of the 
Financial Regulations provides for appropriate input from the s151 Officer and/or 
Accountancy and other professional support as appropriate. 

MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS 

The Monitoring Officer has been consulted and has no further comments. 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

None 

Contact Officer: Mark Davies 
Telephone:  01524 582401 
E-mail: mdavies@lancaster.gov.uk 
 

 

Page 12



Page 13



CABINET  

Corporate Performance and Financial Monitoring 
2014/15 – Quarter 3 

17 February 2015 

Report of the Chief Officer (Governance) and  
Chief Officer (Resources) 

 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 

To present the corporate performance and financial monitoring reports and other supporting 
statements for Quarter 3 of the 2014/15 performance monitoring cycle 

Key Decision  Non-Key Decision X Referral from Cabinet 
Member  

Date of notice of forthcoming key decision N/A 

This report is public 

OFFICER RECOMMENDATIONS 

(1) That Cabinet considers the corporate performance and monitoring 
reports and appendices and makes any recommendations as 
appropriate. 

1. Corporate Performance Monitoring 

1.1. On the 20 January 2015, Cabinet considered a review of performance and 
progress towards the achievement of corporate priorities at the mid-point of 
the first year of the life of the 2014 - 2016 Corporate Plan.  This report 
provides a further update at the end of Quarter 3 covering the period 01 
September 2014 – 31 December 2014.   

1.2. The priorities are reinforced by headline corporate outcomes and success 
measures, as well as indicators, milestones and activities at an operational 
level.  Together with qualitative / contextual information these provide a 
greater understanding of factors having an impact on performance and overall 
delivery of the Corporate Plan.  Details of measures that have been updated 
in Quarter 3 are set out in Appendix A  

1.3. Set out at Appendix B(i) and B(ii) is the data for complaints received in in 
Quarters 1, 2 and 3 in line with the council’s Complaints Policy.  The tables 
indicate the number of:  Complaints by: Service - Table 1; Complaints by 
Stage -Table 2 and Complaints by Type – Table 3. 

1.4. In summary, the total number of complaints received to the end of Quarter 3 
is 107.  Of these, 42 have been upheld, 37 not upheld, 12 partially upheld and 
16 still awaiting an outcome.  Of particular note is the positive and significant 
reduction in the number of complaints received across all Services in Quarter 
3 being 20, compared to Quarter 1 where 43 complaints were made and 
Quarter 2 with 44 complaints were received. 

2. Corporate Financial Monitoring 

2.1. The Quarter 3 financial monitoring report attached at Appendix C sets out the 
latest position when compared to the revised estimate.  The key points to note 
are: 

Agenda Item 8Page 14



• General Fund revenue budget underspend of £82K, projected to 
become £79K by the year end. 

• Housing Revenue Account underspend of £13K, projected to remain 
the same. 

• Council Tax surplus of £1M. 

• Sundry Debt level at £3M of which £1.7M relates to Housing Benefit 
Overpayment recoveries.  Overall a 7% reduction on the previous 
quarter. 

• Council Housing Rent arrears circa £260K, a 9% reduction on the 
previous quarter. 

2.2. Also attached at Appendix D is the latest Treasury Management report for 
Quarter 3, and at Appendix E the Property Group report. 

3. Conclusions 

3.1. This report and the Corporate Plan 2014 – 2016 Quarter 3 Performance 
Summary Update sets out the progress being made towards the delivery of 
the Corporate Plan 2014 – 16 as at 31 December 2014.  Overall, the update 
at the end of Quarter 3 of the first year of the 2014 – 16 Corporate Plan 
provides an indication that the council is continuing to move forward well in 
the delivery of longer term corporate plan priorities.    

3.2. An analysis of corporate complaints shows a marked reduction in the number 
received between Quarters 3 and that in both Quarters 1 and 2.  This 
improvement can be partly attributable to a better understanding of complaint 
trends and types and continuous improvement enabling lessons to be learned 
from reasons why complaints arise and action being taken to address their 
root cause.  

 

RELATIONSHIP TO POLICY FRAMEWORK 

This report is a requirement of the council’s Performance Management Framework in 
support of the delivery of key priorities and outcomes as set out in the overall policy 
framework and specifically in the Corporate Plan 2014 -16. 

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
(including Health & Safety, Equality & Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, 
HR, Sustainability and Rural Proofing) 

None directly arising from this report 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  

None directly arising from this report 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

None directly arising from this report 

OTHER RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

Human Resources / Information Services / Property / Open Spaces: 

References and any related implications contained within Appendix A 

Page 15



SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS 

The Section 151 Officer has been consulted and has no further comments. 

MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS 

The Monitoring Officer has been consulted and has no further comments. 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

none 

Contact Officer:  Corporate Performance 
Monitoring - Bob Bailey, Performance 
Manager: Telephone: 01524 582018; 
Email: rbailey@lancaster.gov.uk 
Corporate Financial Monitoring - Andrew 
Clarke, Financial Services Manager   
Telephone:  01524 582138; E-mail: 
aclarke@lancaster.gov.uk  
Ref: Corporate Performance and Financial 
Monitoring 2014/15 Qtr 3 

 

Page 16



17
 D

ec
em

be
r 2

01
4 

 
1 

| 
11

 

Co
rp

or
at

e 
Pl

an
 2

01
4 

/ 
20

16
 - 

Q
ua

rt
er

 3
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 S

um
m

ar
y 

U
pd

at
e 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
A

pp
en

di
x 

A
 

M
ea

su
re

 
Co

m
m

en
ts

 

Pr
io

ri
ty

: C
le

an
, G

re
en

 &
 S

af
e 

Pl
ac

es
 

O
ut

co
m

e:
 Im

pa
ct

 o
f c

ri
m

e 
an

d 
an

ti
-s

oc
ia

l b
eh

av
io

ur
 a

cr
os

s 
th

e 
di

st
ric

t w
ill

 b
e 

m
in

im
is

ed
 

W
or

k 
w

ith
 th

e 
Po

lic
e 

an
d 

Co
m

m
un

ity
 S

af
et

y 
Pa

rt
ne

rs
 to

 m
in

im
is

e 
th

e 
im

pa
ct

 o
f c

rim
e 

an
d 

an
ti-

so
ci

al
 b

eh
av

io
ur

 

H
al

f Y
ea

rl
y 

M
ea

su
re

 –
 Q

ua
rt

er
 2

 U
pd

at
e:

 
Th

e 
Co

un
ci

l c
on

tin
ue

s 
to

 a
ct

 a
s 

a 
ke

y 
pa

rt
ne

r i
n 

en
su

rin
g 

th
e 

Co
m

m
un

ity
 S

af
et

y 
Pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

p 
de

liv
er

s 
on

 it
s 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
pr

io
rit

ie
s,

 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

m
ak

in
g 

us
e 

of
 n

ew
 p

ow
er

s 
to

 ta
ck

le
 A

nt
i-S

oc
ia

l B
eh

av
io

ur
 (A

SB
) a

nd
 r

ed
uc

e 
do

m
es

tic
 v

io
le

nc
e 

an
d 

ab
us

e.
 

Re
du

ce
 h

at
e 

cr
im

e 
an

d 
th

e 
fe

ar
 o

f c
rim

e 
fe

lt 
by

 m
in

or
ity

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

 
H

al
f Y

ea
rl

y 
M

ea
su

re
 –

 Q
ua

rt
er

 2
 U

pd
at

e:
 

As
 p

ar
t o

f t
he

 w
id

er
 c

om
m

un
ity

 s
af

et
y 

w
or

k 
a 

jo
in

t p
ro

je
ct

 w
ith

 W
yr

e 
Bo

ro
ug

h 
Co

un
ci

l a
im

s 
to

 ra
is

in
g 

aw
ar

en
es

s 
of

 h
at

e 
cr

im
e 

an
d 

ho
w

 to
 re

po
rt

 it
 th

ro
ug

h 
ev

en
ts

, t
ar

ge
te

d 
ca

m
pa

ig
ns

 a
nd

 ta
lk

s 
to

 s
ch

oo
ls

 a
nd

 m
in

or
ity

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

 g
ro

up
s 

fa
ci

lit
at

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l. 
 A

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t a

m
ou

nt
 o

f w
or

k 
al

so
 in

vo
lv

ed
 c

ar
ry

in
g 

ou
t t

ho
ro

ug
h 

in
ve

st
ig

at
io

ns
 in

to
 a

nt
i-s

oc
ia

l b
eh

av
io

ur
 re

fe
rr

al
s 

re
la

tin
g 

to
 h

at
e 

cr
im

e.
 

O
ut

co
m

e:
 L

oc
al

 n
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
s 

ar
e 

cl
ea

n 
an

d 
sa

fe
 a

nd
 re

si
de

nt
s 

ha
ve

 a
 s

en
se

 o
f p

rid
e 

in
 th

e 
di

st
ric

t 

Pe
rc

ep
tio

n 
of

 p
eo

pl
e 

w
ho

 li
ve

 in
, w

or
k 

in
, o

r 
vi

si
t t

he
 d

is
tr

ic
t t

ha
t t

he
 s

tr
ee

ts
 a

nd
 p

ub
lic

 
sp

ac
es

 a
re

 s
af

e 
an

d 
cl

ea
n 

is
 in

cr
ea

se
d 

A
nn

ua
l M

ea
su

re
: 

Th
is

 d
at

a 
is

 ta
ke

n 
fr

om
 th

e 
an

nu
al

 L
iv

in
g 

in
 L

an
ca

sh
ire

 s
ur

ve
y 

re
po

rt
 w

hi
ch

 w
ill

 b
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
at

 th
e 

en
d 

of
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 y

ea
r.

 

In
cr

ea
se

d 
nu

m
be

r o
f p

ro
je

ct
s 

th
at

 d
ire

ct
ly

 
in

vo
lv

e 
lo

ca
l c

om
m

un
iti

es
 in

 im
pr

ov
in

g 
lo

ca
l 

ar
ea

s,
 p

ar
ks

 a
nd

 o
pe

n 
sp

ac
es

 

Q
ua

rt
er

ly
 M

ea
su

re
 –

 Q
ua

rt
er

 3
 u

pd
at

e:
  

N
in

et
ee

n 
gr

ou
ps

 w
ith

 a
 v

ar
ie

ty
 o

f p
ro

je
ct

s 
ar

e 
be

in
g 

su
pp

or
te

d 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f p
la

y 
ar

ea
s,

 a
llo

tm
en

ts
, S

ka
te

pa
rk

s 
an

d 
pa

rk
s.

  G
ro

up
s 

in
cl

ud
e 

ne
w

ly
 fo

rm
ed

 g
ro

up
s,

 P
ar

is
he

s 
an

d 
Fr

ie
nd

s 
gr

ou
ps

.  
O

th
er

 g
ro

up
s 

ar
e 

su
pp

or
te

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
w

id
er

 
in

iti
at

iv
es

 s
uc

h 
as

 th
e 

La
nc

as
te

r G
re

en
sp

ac
e 

Fo
ru

m
 a

nd
 c

on
su

lta
tio

n 
to

ol
ki

ts
 w

hi
ch

 h
av

e 
be

en
 d

ev
el

op
ed

 in
 c

on
ju

nc
tio

n 
w

ith
 

La
nc

as
te

r U
ni

ve
rs

ity
. 

Fo
ur

 p
ro

je
ct

s 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 to

 d
at

e 
be

in
g:

 L
an

gr
id

ge
 P

la
y 

Ar
ea

, R
eg

en
t P

ar
k 

Pl
ay

 A
re

a;
 C

in
de

rl
an

e 
A

llo
tm

en
t a

nd
 Y

ea
la

nd
 

Pa
ri

sh
 p

la
y 

ar
ea

.  
Th

e 
Fr

ie
nd

s 
of

 G
re

av
es

 p
ar

k 
ha

ve
 s

ec
ur

ed
 fu

nd
in

g 
to

 d
ev

el
op

 a
 lo

ng
 te

rm
 m

as
te

r p
la

n 
fo

r 
th

e 
pa

rk
 a

nd
. 

Ry
el

an
ds

 P
ar

k 
fr

ie
nd

s 
ha

ve
 s

ec
ur

ed
 e

xt
er

na
l s

up
po

rt
 to

 ta
ke

 fo
rw

ar
d 

a 
BM

X 
pr

oj
ec

t.
  T

he
 c

ou
nc

il 
is

 s
up

po
rt

in
g 

th
e 

Fr
ie

nd
s 

of
 

W
ill

ia
m

so
n 

Pa
rk

 to
 re

ne
w

 th
e 

pl
ay

 a
re

a.
 

O
ut

co
m

e:
 T

he
 c

ou
nc

il’
s 

im
pa

ct
 o

n 
th

e 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t w
ill

 b
e 

m
in

im
is

ed
 

En
er

gy
 s

tr
at

eg
y 

in
 p

la
ce

 a
nd

 a
gr

ee
d 

H
al

f Y
ea

rl
y 

M
ea

su
re

 –
 Q

ua
rt

er
 2

 U
pd

at
e:

  
Fe

as
ib

ili
ty

 s
tu

di
es

 a
re

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 b

ei
ng

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
n 

to
 e

xp
lo

re
 k

ey
 a

sp
ec

ts
 o

f t
he

 s
tr

at
eg

y,
 th

e 
re

su
lts

 o
f w

hi
ch

 w
ill

 in
fo

rm
 t

he
 

co
nt

en
ts

 o
f t

he
 fi

na
l s

tr
at

eg
y.

  I
t i

s 
pl

an
ne

d 
to

 h
av

e 
a 

fin
al

 s
tr

at
eg

y 
in

 p
la

ce
 b

y 
ea

rl
y 

20
15

. 
An

nu
al

 re
du

ct
io

n 
in

 e
ne

rg
y 

us
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

co
un

ci
l's

 o
pe

ra
tio

ns
 

A
nn

ua
l M

ea
su

re
:  

D
at

a 
on

 th
e 

co
un

ci
l’s

 e
ne

rg
y 

co
ns

um
pt

io
n 

w
ill

 b
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
at

 th
e 

en
d 

of
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 y

ea
r a

nd
 a

 y
ea

r o
n 

ye
ar

 c
om

pa
ri

so
n 

w
ill

 b
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
at

 th
is

 ti
m

e.
  T

he
 r

ec
en

t c
ha

ng
es

 in
 u

se
 a

t S
t L

eo
na

rd
s 

H
ou

se
 a

re
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

to
 h

av
e 

a 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 im
pa

ct
 o

n 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l’s
 

en
er

gy
 c

on
su

m
pt

io
n.

 
An

nu
al

 re
du

ct
io

n 
in

 c
ar

bo
n 

em
is

si
on

s 
fr

om
 

th
e 

co
un

ci
l's

 o
pe

ra
tio

ns
 

A
nn

ua
l M

ea
su

re
: 

D
at

a 
on

 th
e 

co
un

ci
l’s

 c
ar

bo
n 

em
is

si
on

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

at
 th

e 
en

d 
of

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 y
ea

r a
nd

 a
 y

ea
r o

n 
ye

ar
 c

om
pa

ri
so

n 
w

ill
 b

e 
m

ad
e 

at
 th

is
 ti

m
e.

 T
he

 r
ec

en
t c

ha
ng

es
 in

 u
se

 a
t S

t L
eo

na
rd

s 
H

ou
se

 a
re

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
to

 h
av

e 
a 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 im

pa
ct

 o
n 

th
e 

co
un

ci
l’s

 
ca

rb
on

 e
m

is
si

on
s.

 
 

Page 17



17
 D

ec
em

be
r 2

01
4 

 
2 

| 
11

 

M
ea

su
re

 
Co

m
m

en
ts

 

Pr
io

ri
ty

: C
le

an
, G

re
en

 &
 S

af
e 

Pl
ac

es
 

O
ut

co
m

e:
 T

he
 c

ou
nc

il’
s 

im
pa

ct
 o

n 
th

e 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t w
ill

 b
e 

m
in

im
is

ed
 (c

on
tin

ue
d)

 

M
ai

nt
ai

n 
an

d/
or

 im
pr

ov
e 

av
er

ag
e 

St
an

da
rd

 
As

se
ss

m
en

t P
ro

ce
du

re
 (S

AP
) r

at
in

g 
in

 
co

un
ci

l h
om

es
 to

 a
 h

ig
h 

le
ve

l 

A
nn

ua
l M

ea
su

re
: 

Th
e 

co
nd

iti
on

s 
su

rv
ey

 o
f t

he
 c

ou
nc

il’
s 

ho
us

in
g 

st
oc

k 
ha

s 
re

ce
nt

ly
 b

ee
n 

co
m

pl
et

ed
.  

D
at

a 
fr

om
 th

e 
de

ta
ile

d 
re

vi
ew

 is
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 
be

in
g 

an
al

ys
ed

 a
nd

 w
ill

 b
e 

re
po

rt
ed

 a
t t

he
 e

nd
 o

f t
he

 y
ea

r 
Am

ou
nt

 o
f h

ou
se

ho
ld

 w
as

te
 r

eu
se

d,
 

re
cy

cl
ed

 o
r 

co
m

po
st

ed
 is

 m
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

Q
ua

rt
er

ly
 M

ea
su

re
 –

 Q
ua

rt
er

 3
 u

pd
at

e:
 

Th
is

 m
ea

su
re

 is
 r

ep
or

te
d 

3 
m

on
th

s 
in

 a
rr

ea
rs

 –
 d

at
a 

fo
r t

he
 th

ird
 q

ua
rt

er
 w

ill
 b

e 
va

lid
at

ed
 in

 M
ar

ch
.  

Th
e 

co
m

bi
ne

d 
to

nn
ag

e 
fo

r 
Q

ua
rt

er
 2

 (J
ul

y 
to

 S
ep

te
m

be
r)

 w
as

 4
1.

8%
 b

ei
ng

 1
7.

3%
 d

ry
 m

at
er

ia
ls

 a
nd

 2
6.

5%
 fo

od
/g

ar
de

n 
w

as
te

. T
hi

s 
re

m
ai

ns
 r

el
at

iv
el

y 
hi

gh
 

ev
en

 th
ou

gh
 th

e 
ec

on
om

ic
 d

ow
nt

ur
n 

ha
s 

ha
d 

an
 im

pa
ct

 o
n 

co
ns

um
er

 s
pe

nd
in

g 
w

hi
ch

 h
as

 re
du

ce
d 

th
e 

vo
lu

m
e 

of
 g

oo
ds

 b
ei

ng
 

re
pl

ac
ed

 a
nd

 d
is

po
se

d 
of

, a
nd

 a
 re

du
ct

io
n 

by
 m

an
uf

ac
tu

re
rs

 a
nd

 re
ta

ile
rs

 in
 th

e 
am

ou
nt

 o
f p

ac
ka

gi
ng

 u
se

d 
fo

r f
oo

d 
an

d 
co

ns
um

er
 g

oo
ds

. 
In

cr
ea

se
 in

co
m

e 
fr

om
 e

ne
rg

y 
an

d 
re

cy
cl

in
g 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 
H

al
f Y

ea
rl

y 
M

ea
su

re
 –

 Q
ua

rt
er

 2
 U

pd
at

e:
 

Th
e 

co
un

ci
l h

as
 re

ce
nt

ly
 a

dd
ed

 d
om

es
tic

 s
iz

ed
 s

ol
ar

 p
ho

to
-v

ol
ta

ic
 in

st
al

la
tio

ns
 a

t t
w

o 
m

or
e 

co
un

ci
l h

ou
si

ng
 p

ro
pe

rt
ie

s 
an

d 
is

 
co

nt
in

ui
ng

 to
 id

en
tif

y 
si

te
s 

w
he

re
 s

ol
ar

 p
ho

to
-v

ol
ta

ic
 in

st
al

la
tio

ns
 m

ay
 b

e 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

.  
 

 
 

Page 18



17
 D

ec
em

be
r 2

01
4 

 
3 

| 
11

 

M
ea

su
re

 
Co

m
m

en
ts

 

Pr
io

ri
ty

: H
ea

lt
h 

&
 W

el
lb

ei
ng

 

O
ut

co
m

e:
 E

nh
an

ce
d 

qu
al

ity
 o

f l
ife

 o
f l

oc
al

 re
si

de
nt

s 
th

ro
ug

h 
ac

ce
ss

 to
 a

ff
or

da
bl

e,
 d

ec
en

t h
ou

si
ng

 

In
cr

ea
se

d 
nu

m
be

r o
f i

m
pr

ov
ed

 h
om

es
 

Q
ua

rt
er

ly
 M

ea
su

re
 –

 Q
ua

rt
er

 3
 u

pd
at

e:
 

Th
is

 m
ea

su
re

 re
po

rt
s 

on
 th

e 
nu

m
be

r o
f h

om
es

 im
pr

ov
ed

 in
 th

e 
pr

iv
at

e 
se

ct
or

.  
It

 in
cl

ud
es

 p
ro

pe
rt

ie
s 

in
 th

e 
pr

iv
at

e 
re

nt
ed

 s
ec

to
r 

th
at

 h
av

e 
be

en
 im

pr
ov

ed
 th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
in

te
rv

en
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

H
ou

si
ng

 S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 T

ea
m

 a
nd

 th
os

e 
im

pr
ov

ed
 in

 th
e 

ow
ne

r o
cc

up
ie

d 
se

ct
or

 th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

w
or

k 
of

 th
e 

co
un

ci
l’s

 H
om

e 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t A
ge

nc
y 

(H
IA

). 
 

13
43

 h
om

es
 h

av
e 

be
en

 im
pr

ov
ed

 a
t t

he
 e

nd
 o

f Q
ua

rt
er

 3
. 

Im
pr

ov
e 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 h
ou

si
ng

 
Q

ua
rt

er
ly

 M
ea

su
re

 –
 Q

ua
rt

er
 3

 u
pd

at
e:

  
Th

is
 is

 a
 n

ew
 m

ea
su

re
 fo

r 
20

14
/1

5.
  T

he
 m

ea
su

re
 r

ep
or

ts
 o

n 
th

e 
nu

m
be

r o
f h

ou
se

ho
ld

s 
th

at
 h

av
e 

be
en

 a
ss

is
te

d 
in

 fi
nd

in
g 

pe
rm

an
en

t a
cc

om
m

od
at

io
n 

in
to

 o
ne

 o
f t

hr
ee

 c
at

eg
or

ie
s 

of
 te

nu
re

, b
ei

ng
: C

ou
nc

il 
H

ou
si

ng
, P

riv
at

e 
Re

gi
st

er
ed

 P
ro

vi
de

r 
of

 S
oc

ia
l 

H
ou

si
ng

 a
nd

 P
riv

at
e 

Re
nt

ed
 S

ec
to

r 
At

 th
e 

en
d 

of
 Q

ua
rt

er
 3

, 6
49

 h
ou

se
ho

ld
s 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
as

si
st

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
H

ou
si

ng
 O

pt
io

ns
 T

ea
m

 (H
om

el
es

sn
es

s)
 a

nd
 th

e 
Ch

oi
ce

 B
as

ed
 

Le
tt

in
gs

 T
ea

m
.  

 
In

cr
ea

se
 n

um
be

r o
f a

ff
or

da
bl

e 
ho

m
es

 
H

al
f Y

ea
rl

y 
M

ea
su

re
 –

 Q
ua

rt
er

 2
 U

pd
at

e:
  

Es
tim

at
ed

 c
om

pl
et

io
ns

 fo
r 2

01
4/

20
15

: 1
63

.  
Th

e 
es

tim
at

ed
 n

um
be

r o
f c

om
pl

et
ed

 a
ff

or
da

bl
e 

ho
m

es
 in

 2
01

4/
20

15
 c

oi
nc

id
es

 w
ith

 
th

e 
en

d 
of

 th
e 

Af
fo

rd
ab

le
 H

om
es

 P
ro

gr
am

m
e 

1 
(A

H
P1

 2
01

1-
20

15
), 

w
hi

ch
 is

 th
e 

gr
an

t f
un

di
ng

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
by

 th
e 

H
om

es
 a

nd
 

Co
m

m
un

iti
es

 A
ge

nc
y 

to
 c

om
pl

et
e 

sc
he

m
es

 b
y 

31
 M

ar
ch

 2
01

5.
  F

ou
r 

AH
P1

 fu
nd

ed
 s

ch
em

es
 a

re
 n

ow
 o

n 
si

te
.  

A
 fu

rt
he

r 
tw

o 
sc

he
m

es
 w

ith
 A

ff
or

da
bl

e 
H

om
es

 G
ua

ra
nt

ee
s 

Pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

fu
nd

in
g 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
un

til
 2

01
7 

ar
e 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 to
 b

e 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 a
he

ad
 o

f 
tim

e.
 

Te
n 

af
fo

rd
ab

le
 h

ou
si

ng
 u

ni
ts

, s
ec

ur
ed

 th
ro

ug
h 

pl
an

ni
ng

 g
ai

n 
(a

 le
vy

 o
n 

th
e 

in
cr

ea
se

d 
va

lu
e 

of
 la

nd
) a

re
 c

lo
se

 to
 c

om
pl

et
io

n 
at

 
M

oo
r P

la
tt

, C
at

on
.  

Fo
ur

 o
th

er
 p

la
nn

ed
 a

ff
or

da
bl

e 
ho

us
in

g 
sc

he
m

es
 h

av
e 

no
t y

et
 s

ta
rt

ed
 o

n 
si

te
.  

O
f t

he
se

 tw
o 

ha
ve

 ‘l
iv

e’
 

pl
an

ni
ng

 p
er

m
is

si
on

 a
nd

 tw
o 

ar
e 

cu
rr

en
tly

 p
en

di
ng

.  
  

A 
nu

m
be

r o
f o

th
er

 h
ou

si
ng

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 w

ith
 ‘l

iv
e’

 p
la

nn
in

g 
pe

rm
is

si
on

s 
fo

r 
af

fo
rd

ab
le

 h
ou

si
ng

 a
re

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
to

 c
om

e 
fo

rw
ar

d 
so

on
. 

O
ut

co
m

e:
 H

ea
lth

 a
nd

 w
el

lb
ei

ng
 o

f o
ur

 c
iti

ze
ns

 is
 im

pr
ov

ed
 

In
cr

ea
se

d 
nu

m
be

r o
f p

eo
pl

e 
pa

rt
ic

ip
at

in
g 

in
 

sp
or

ts
 a

nd
 le

is
ur

e 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 

Q
ua

rt
er

ly
 M

ea
su

re
 –

 Q
ua

rt
er

 3
 U

pd
at

e:
 

Th
is

 m
ea

su
re

 m
on

ito
rs

 a
ll 

th
ro

ug
hp

ut
 a

t S
al

t A
yr

e 
Sp

or
ts

 C
en

tr
e 

(S
A

SC
) a

nd
 th

e 
Co

m
m

un
ity

 S
w

im
m

in
g 

Po
ol

s 
at

 H
ey

sh
am

, H
or

nb
y 

an
d 

Ca
rn

fo
rt

h .
  A

ct
iv

iti
es

 a
t S

AS
C 

at
tr

ac
te

d 
ov

er
 8

4,
00

0 
pe

op
le

 d
ur

in
g 

th
e 

qu
ar

te
r w

hi
ls

t t
he

 c
om

m
un

ity
 s

w
im

m
in

g 
po

ol
s 

w
er

e 
co

lle
ct

iv
el

y 
at

te
nd

ed
 b

y 
ov

er
 4

1,
00

0 
cu

st
om

er
s.

  A
 n

um
be

r 
of

 o
th

er
 p

ro
gr

am
m

es
 a

nd
 e

ve
nt

s 
in

cl
ud

in
g:

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
 in

 c
om

m
un

it
ie

s;
 

sc
ho

ol
s 

co
ac

hi
ng

 a
nd

 h
ol

id
ay

 a
ct

iv
ity

 a
nd

 s
po

rt
s 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t p

ro
gr

am
m

es
 h

av
e 

al
so

 b
ee

n 
ru

n 
du

rin
g 

th
e 

qu
ar

te
r w

hi
ch

 jo
in

tly
 

in
vo

lv
ed

 o
ve

r 
1,

10
0 

pa
rt

ic
ip

an
ts

. 
M

ax
im

is
e 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

 fo
r a

cc
es

s 
to

 
in

no
va

tiv
e 

le
is

ur
e 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 b
y 

w
or

ki
ng

 
co

lla
bo

ra
tiv

el
y 

w
ith

 p
ub

lic
 a

nd
 p

riv
at

e 
se

ct
or

 p
ar

tn
er

s 

Q
ua

rt
er

ly
 M

ea
su

re
 –

 Q
ua

rt
er

 3
 U

pd
at

e:
 

O
ff

ic
er

s 
ca

rr
ie

d 
ou

t s
of

t m
ar

ke
t t

es
tin

g 
w

ith
 a

 v
ie

w
 to

 d
et

er
m

in
in

g 
th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l f

or
 th

e 
pr

oc
ur

em
en

t o
f a

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t p
ar

tn
er

 
th

at
 w

ou
ld

 e
na

bl
e 

re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t w
or

k 
to

 b
e 

un
de

rt
ak

en
 a

t S
al

t A
yr

e 
Sp

or
ts

 C
en

tr
e 

(S
A

SC
) i

n 
th

e 
sh

or
t a

nd
 m

ed
iu

m
 te

rm
.  

In
 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
15

, C
ab

in
et

 w
ill

 b
e 

as
ke

d 
to

 c
on

si
de

r o
pt

io
ns

 fo
r 

th
e 

fu
tu

re
 o

f S
AS

C 
w

ith
 a

 v
ie

w
 s

ee
ki

ng
 a

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t p
ar

tn
er

 to
 

in
ve

st
 in

 a
nd

 im
pr

ov
e 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
at

 S
AS

C.
  N

ot
e:

 A
t i

ts
 m

ee
ti

ng
 o

n 
20

 Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
15

, C
ab

in
et

 u
na

ni
m

ou
s 

re
so

lv
ed

 th
at

 o
ff

ic
er

s 
co

m
m

en
ce

 p
ro

cu
re

m
en

t w
or

k 
to

 s
el

ec
t a

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t p
ar

tn
er

 a
nd

 r
ep

or
t b

ac
k 

on
 d

et
ai

le
d 

pr
op

os
al

s 
an

d 
fin

an
ci

al
 

im
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 p
ri

or
 to

 e
nt

er
in

g 
in

to
 a

 c
on

tr
ac

tu
al

 a
gr

ee
m

en
t 

Page 19



17
 D

ec
em

be
r 2

01
4 

 
4 

| 
11

 

M
ea

su
re

 
Co

m
m

en
ts

 

Pr
io

ri
ty

: H
ea

lt
h 

&
 W

el
lb

ei
ng

 

O
ut

co
m

e:
 H

ea
lth

 a
nd

 w
el

lb
ei

ng
 o

f o
ur

 c
iti

ze
ns

 is
 im

pr
ov

ed
 (c

on
tin

ue
d)

 

In
cr

ea
se

d 
nu

m
be

r o
f v

ul
ne

ra
bl

e 
ho

us
eh

ol
ds

 
be

ne
fit

tin
g 

fr
om

 W
ar

m
 H

om
es

 In
iti

at
iv

e s
 

Q
ua

rt
er

ly
 M

ea
su

re
 –

 Q
ua

rt
er

 3
 u

pd
at

e:
  

Th
is

 m
ea

su
re

 re
po

rt
s 

on
 th

e 
nu

m
be

r o
f h

ou
se

ho
ld

s 
- b

ot
h 

ow
ne

r o
cc

up
ie

rs
 a

nd
 p

riv
at

e 
te

na
nt

s 
- b

en
ef

iti
ng

 fr
om

 in
te

rv
en

tio
ns

 to
 

im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

le
ve

l o
f a

ff
or

da
bl

e 
w

ar
m

th
 in

 th
e 

ho
m

es
 o

f v
ul

ne
ra

bl
e 

re
si

de
nt

s.
  T

he
 s

ch
em

es
 in

cl
ud

e 
a 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

 ra
ng

in
g 

fr
om

 re
pl

ac
in

g 
in

ad
eq

ua
te

 b
oi

le
rs

 to
 th

e 
pa

ym
en

t o
f f

ue
l b

ill
s.

  T
he

 n
um

be
r o

f i
m

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 to

 d
at

e 
ar

e 
la

rg
el

y 
du

e 
to

 th
e 

co
m

pl
et

io
n 

of
 w

or
ks

 a
pp

ro
ve

d 
du

rin
g 

20
13

/1
4 

an
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

ut
ili

si
ng

 fu
nd

s 
al

lo
ca

te
d 

in
 th

at
 y

ea
r.

   

Ad
di

tio
na

l f
un

di
ng

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
se

cu
re

d 
fo

r 
20

14
/1

5,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

a 
fu

rt
he

r £
7,

00
0 

du
rin

g 
Q

ua
rt

er
 3

.  
LE

SS
 h

av
e 

be
en

 c
om

m
is

si
on

ed
 to

 
pr

om
ot

e 
th

e 
w

or
k 

of
 th

e 
H

ou
si

ng
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

t A
ge

nc
y 

an
d 

th
e 

co
un

ci
l i

s 
w

or
ki

ng
 w

ith
 o

th
er

 a
ut

ho
ri

tie
s 

in
 L

an
ca

sh
ir

e 
to

 
pr

om
ot

e 
th

e 
Co

sy
 H

om
es

 in
 L

an
ca

sh
ire

 (C
H

iL
) s

ch
em

e.
  

Fu
nd

in
g 

is
 n

o 
lo

ng
er

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
fo

r a
 s

ch
em

e 
sp

ec
ifi

ca
lly

 ta
rg

et
in

g 
te

na
nt

s 
in

 th
e 

pr
iv

at
e 

se
ct

or
 b

ut
 v

ul
ne

ra
bl

e 
ho

us
eh

ol
ds

 a
re

 
be

ne
fit

in
g 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

in
te

rv
en

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
H

ou
si

ng
 S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 T
ea

m
 in

 p
rio

rit
is

in
g 

th
e 

el
im

in
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
Ca

te
go

ry
 1

 h
az

ar
d 

of
 

‘E
xc

es
s 

Co
ld

’. 

O
ve

r 6
00

 h
ou

se
ho

ld
s 

ha
d 

be
ne

fit
ed

 fr
om

 W
ar

m
 H

om
e 

In
iti

at
iv

es
 b

y 
th

e 
en

d 
of

 Q
ua

rt
er

 3
. 

Fa
ci

lit
at

e 
lo

ng
 te

rm
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 in

 
tr

an
sp

or
ta

tio
n 

to
 im

pr
ov

e 
lo

ca
l a

ir 
qu

al
ity

 
H

al
f Y

ea
rl

y 
M

ea
su

re
 –

 Q
ua

rt
er

 2
 U

pd
at

e:
  

Th
e 

co
un

ci
l h

as
 fo

rm
al

ly
 a

pp
ro

ve
d 

its
 L

oc
al

 A
ir 

Q
ua

lit
y 

St
ra

te
gy

.  
Th

e 
St

ra
te

gy
 fo

cu
ss

es
 in

iti
al

ly
 o

n 
be

ha
vi

ou
ra

l c
ha

ng
e 

as
 th

e 
m

os
t 

cr
iti

ca
l f

ac
to

r t
o 

su
cc

es
sf

ul
 d

el
iv

er
y 

of
 a

ir 
qu

al
ity

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

.  
O

ff
ic

er
s 

ar
e 

no
w

 w
or

ki
ng

 w
ith

 P
ub

lic
 H

ea
lth

 a
nd

 H
ig

hw
ay

s 
at

 
La

nc
as

hi
re

 C
ou

nt
y 

Co
un

ci
l, 

to
ge

th
er

 w
ith

 d
is

tr
ic

t c
ou

nc
il 

pa
rt

ne
rs

, t
o 

de
si

gn
 th

e 
‘la

rg
e-

sc
al

e 
ch

an
ge

’ p
ro

je
ct

 c
om

m
en

ci
ng

 w
ith

 a
n 

Ai
r Q

ua
lit

y 
Su

m
m

it 
fo

r i
nf

lu
en

ce
rs

 e
ar

ly
 in

 2
01

5.
  A

 s
pe

ci
fic

 s
tu

dy
 m

ea
su

rin
g 

em
is

si
on

s 
fr

om
 ta

xi
s 

is
 u

nd
er

w
ay

 –
 d

at
a 

ha
s 

be
en

 
ga

th
er

ed
 a

nd
 is

 n
ow

 b
ei

ng
 a

ss
es

se
d.

  
M

ai
nt

ai
n 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f ‘
br

oa
dl

y’
 c

om
pl

ia
nt

 
fo

od
 b

us
in

es
se

s 
(c

at
eg

or
y 

3-
5)

 
Q

ua
rt

er
ly

 M
ea

su
re

 –
 Q

ua
rt

er
 3

 U
pd

at
e:

  
1,

14
7 

bu
si

ne
ss

es
 a

re
 c

on
si

de
re

d 
br

oa
dl

y 
co

m
pl

ia
nt

 (3
 ra

tin
g 

or
 h

ig
he

r)
 r

ep
re

se
nt

in
g 

97
%

 o
f a

ll 
ra

tin
gs

 is
su

ed
.  

Th
er

e 
ar

e 
a 

to
ta

l o
f 

1,
21

0 
re

gi
st

er
ed

 b
us

in
es

se
s 

in
 th

e 
La

nc
as

te
r d

is
tr

ic
t,

 2
4 

of
 w

hi
ch

 a
re

 a
w

ai
tin

g 
in

sp
ec

tio
n 

be
in

g 
ne

w
 b

us
in

es
s 

or
 u

nd
er

 n
ew

 
ow

ne
rs

hi
p.

  T
he

re
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

a 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 in
cr

ea
se

 s
in

ce
 2

01
1 

in
 th

e 
nu

m
be

r o
f 5

 s
ta

r (
to

p)
 ra

tin
g 

bu
si

ne
ss

es
, r

is
in

g 
fr

om
 7

85
 to

 
92

7.
  I

n 
th

e 
sa

m
e 

pe
rio

d,
 th

e 
nu

m
be

r o
f b

us
in

es
se

s 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 to
 b

e 
no

n-
co

m
pl

ia
nt

 (2
 o

r b
el

ow
) h

as
 d

ro
pp

ed
 fr

om
 7

6 
to

 3
9.

  T
hi

s 
ha

s 
be

en
 a

ch
ie

ve
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

a 
ra

ng
e 

of
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

 a
im

ed
 a

t t
ac

kl
in

g 
un

sa
tis

fa
ct

or
y 

fo
od

 h
yg

ie
ne

 s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 in

 fo
od

 b
us

in
es

s,
 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
ad

vi
ce

 to
 F

oo
d 

Bu
si

ne
ss

 O
pe

ra
to

rs
, f

or
m

al
 im

pr
ov

em
en

t 
/ 

pr
oh

ib
iti

on
 n

ot
ic

es
 a

nd
 /

 o
r p

ro
se

cu
tio

n.
 

N
ot

 a
ll 

bu
si

ne
ss

es
 r

ec
ei

ve
 a

 ra
tin

g,
 o

nl
y 

th
os

e 
fo

od
 b

us
in

es
se

s 
th

at
 s

up
pl

y 
fo

od
 d

ire
ct

 to
 th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 a
re

 in
cl

ud
ed

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
fo

od
 

hy
gi

en
e 

ra
tin

g 
sc

he
m

e.
  W

he
re

 a
 ra

tin
g 

is
 is

su
ed

, t
he

 b
us

in
es

s 
is

 e
nc

ou
ra

ge
d 

to
 d

is
pl

ay
 th

e 
ra

tin
g 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
bu

si
ne

ss
 b

ut
, a

s 
ye

t,
 

th
er

e 
is

 n
o 

le
ga

l r
eq

ui
re

m
en

t t
o 

do
 s

o.
 

    

Page 20



17
 D

ec
em

be
r 2

01
4 

 
5 

| 
11

 

M
ea

su
re

 
Co

m
m

en
ts

 

Pr
io

ri
ty

: H
ea

lt
h 

&
 W

el
lb

ei
ng

 

O
ut

co
m

e:
 H

ea
lth

 a
nd

 w
el

lb
ei

ng
 o

f o
ur

 c
iti

ze
ns

 is
 im

pr
ov

ed
 (c

on
tin

ue
d)

 
M

ai
nt

ai
ni

ng
 a

de
qu

at
e 

su
pp

ly
 to

 re
du

ce
 

de
m

an
d 

le
d 

un
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
pr

ic
e 

ri
se

s 
in

 th
e 

ho
us

in
g 

m
ar

ke
t 

H
al

f Y
ea

rl
y 

M
ea

su
re

 –
 Q

ua
rt

er
 2

 U
pd

at
e:

  
Th

e 
co

un
ci

l n
ee

ds
 to

 m
ai

nt
ai

n 
a 

fiv
e-

ye
ar

 s
up

pl
y 

of
 h

ou
si

ng
 a

t a
ll 

tim
es

.  
Th

is
 is

 a
ch

ie
ve

d 
by

 g
ra

nt
in

g 
su

ff
ic

ie
nt

 p
la

nn
in

g 
co

ns
en

ts
, 

or
 a

llo
ca

tin
g 

en
ou

gh
 s

ite
s 

in
 th

e 
lo

ca
l p

la
n,

 s
o 

th
at

 th
e 

co
un

ci
l c

an
 d

em
on

st
ra

te
 th

at
 a

ny
 p

oi
nt

 in
 ti

m
e 

fiv
e-

ye
ar

s’
 w

or
th

 o
f 

de
liv

er
ab

le
 h

ou
si

ng
 s

ite
s 

ar
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
to

 th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t i

nd
us

tr
y.

  T
he

 re
qu

ir
em

en
t s

pe
ci

fie
d 

w
ith

 th
e 

co
un

ci
l’s

 a
do

pt
ed

 C
or

e 
St

ra
te

gy
, i

s 
fo

r 
40

0 
ne

w
 h

om
es

 p
er

 y
ea

r,
 m

ea
ni

ng
 th

at
 s

up
pl

y 
su

ff
ic

ie
nt

 fo
r 2

00
0 

ne
w

 h
om

es
 is

 n
ee

de
d,

 p
lu

s 
an

y 
ba

ck
lo

g 
th

at
 h

as
 

no
t b

ee
n 

de
liv

er
ed

 to
 d

at
e.

   
An

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 b

uf
fe

r m
us

t a
ls

o 
be

 a
dd

ed
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 in
 c

ir
cu

m
st

an
ce

s 
w

he
re

 d
el

iv
er

y 
ha

s 
be

en
 

po
or

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

fo
r 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t a

re
 g

iv
en

 c
on

se
nt

.  
Cu

rr
en

t s
up

pl
y 

is
 c

al
cu

la
te

d 
to

 b
e 

eq
ui

va
le

nt
 to

 3
.2

 y
ea

rs
.  

 

It
 is

 a
nt

ic
ip

at
ed

 th
at

 th
is

 w
ill

 im
pr

ov
e 

du
rin

g 
th

e 
ne

xt
 t

w
el

ve
 m

on
th

s 
as

 n
ew

 s
ite

s 
ar

e 
gr

an
te

d 
pl

an
ni

ng
 c

on
se

nt
 a

nd
 d

ev
el

op
er

s 
ex

pe
ct

at
io

ns
 o

f t
he

 ra
te

 o
f d

ev
el

op
m

en
t a

re
 c

ha
ng

ed
.  

 

H
ou

se
 p

ric
es

 c
on

tin
ue

 to
 b

e 
hi

gh
 - 

th
e 

av
er

ag
e 

co
st

 n
ow

 b
ei

ng
 £

15
3,

63
5.

  T
hi

s 
is

 a
lm

os
t 5

0%
 h

ig
he

r t
ha

n 
th

e 
av

er
ag

e 
ho

us
e 

pr
ic

e 
fig

ur
e 

in
 L

an
ca

sh
ir

e.
   

Th
e 

di
st

ri
ct

 h
as

 e
xp

er
ie

nc
ed

 e
xc

ep
tio

na
lly

 lo
w

 le
ve

ls
 o

f n
ew

 h
ou

si
ng

 b
ui

ld
 o

ve
r t

he
 la

st
 fi

ve
 y

ea
rs

.  
Th

is
 is

 in
 th

e 
co

nt
ex

t o
f 

ev
id

en
ce

 th
at

 s
ug

ge
st

s 
th

at
 th

e 
di

st
ric

t’
s 

ho
us

in
g 

ne
ed

s 
ar

e 
gr

ea
te

r t
ha

n 
an

tic
ip

at
ed

 in
 th

e 
ad

op
te

d 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y.

  L
an

d 
su

ita
bl

e 
fo

r f
ur

th
er

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t w
ill

 b
e 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
in

 th
e 

La
nd

 A
llo

ca
tio

ns
 d

oc
um

en
t d

ue
 to

 b
e 

ad
op

te
d 

by
 la

te
 2

01
6 

/ 
ea

rly
 2

01
7.

 
Im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
w

el
lb

ei
ng

 o
f o

ur
 r

es
id

en
ts

 
th

ro
ug

h 
co

lla
bo

ra
tiv

e,
 p

re
ve

nt
at

iv
e 

an
d 

re
ac

tiv
e 

m
ea

su
re

s  

Q
ua

rt
er

ly
 M

ea
su

re
 –

 Q
ua

rt
er

 3
 U

pd
at

e:
  

W
or

ki
ng

 in
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 w

ith
 L

an
ca

sh
ire

 C
ou

nt
y 

Co
un

ci
l’s

 P
ub

lic
 H

ea
lth

 C
om

m
is

si
on

er
s 

a 
co

m
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 G
en

er
al

 P
ra

ct
iti

on
er

 
re

fe
rr

al
 s

ch
em

e 
is

 b
ei

ng
 d

el
iv

er
ed

 a
t S

al
t A

yr
e 

Sp
or

ts
 C

en
tr

e.
  C

ur
re

nt
ly

 1
58

 c
lie

nt
s 

ar
e 

si
gn

ed
 u

p 
to

 th
e 

sc
he

m
e 

w
ith

 o
ve

r 
30

0 
re

fe
rr

al
s 

re
ce

iv
ed

 in
 th

e 
la

st
 q

ua
rt

er
. 

A 
va

ri
et

y 
of

 lo
w

 im
pa

ct
 e

xe
rc

is
e 

cl
as

se
s 

to
 h

el
p 

vu
ln

er
ab

le
 r

es
id

en
ts

 to
 im

pr
ov

e 
th

ei
r h

ea
lth

 a
nd

 n
ew

 c
yc

lin
g 

se
ss

io
ns

 to
 

en
co

ur
ag

e 
pe

op
le

 b
ac

k 
in

to
 c

yc
lin

g 
in

 a
 s

af
e 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
w

el
l a

tt
en

de
d 

w
ith

 n
ea

rl
y 

1,
00

0 
pe

op
le

 ta
ki

ng
 p

ar
t i

n 
Q

ua
rt

er
 3

.  
A 

ra
ng

e 
of

 s
po

rt
s 

an
d 

le
is

ur
e 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 fo
r a

du
lts

 w
ith

 le
ar

ni
ng

 d
is

ab
ili

tie
s 

ha
ve

 a
ls

o 
be

en
 d

ev
el

op
ed

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
as

si
st

ed
 

cy
cl

in
g,

 m
ul

ti-
sp

or
ts

, a
nd

 d
is

ab
ili

ty
 fo

ot
ba

ll,
 a

tt
ra

ct
in

g 
ne

ar
ly

 5
00

 p
eo

pl
e 

in
 th

e 
qu

ar
te

r.
 

In
 d

ev
el

op
in

g 
th

is
 m

ea
su

re
 fu

rt
he

r p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 o
n 

a 
nu

m
be

r o
f s

up
pl

em
en

ta
ry

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l h
ea

lth
 a

ct
io

ns
 w

ill
 a

ls
o 

be
 

in
co

rp
or

at
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

en
d 

of
 th

e 
ye

ar
. 

 
 

Page 21



17
 D

ec
em

be
r 2

01
4 

 
6 

| 
11

 

M
ea

su
re

 
Co

m
m

en
ts

 

Pr
io

ri
ty

: C
om

m
un

it
y 

Le
ad

er
sh

ip
 

O
ut

co
m

e:
 C

om
m

un
iti

es
 a

re
 b

ro
ug

ht
 t

og
et

he
r a

nd
 th

e 
m

aj
or

 is
su

es
 a

ff
ec

tin
g 

th
e 

di
st

ric
t a

re
 a

dd
re

ss
ed

 th
ro

ug
h 

w
or

ki
ng

 in
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 

Im
pr

ov
e 

ne
ig

hb
ou

rh
oo

d 
w

or
ki

ng
 b

y 
en

ga
gi

ng
 w

ith
 c

om
m

un
iti

es
 to

 u
nd

er
st

an
d 

th
ei

r n
ee

ds
 a

nd
 e

m
po

w
er

in
g 

th
em

 to
 

de
liv

er
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

lo
ca

lly
 

A
nn

ua
l M

ea
su

re
: 

Th
es

e 
m

ea
su

re
s 

ar
e 

in
te

nd
ed

 to
 s

ho
w

 h
ow

 th
e 

co
un

ci
l i

s 
m

ak
in

g 
pr

og
re

ss
 th

ro
ug

h 
w

or
ki

ng
 w

ith
 a

 ra
ng

e 
of

 p
ar

tn
er

 o
rg

an
is

at
io

ns
 

an
d 

th
e 

w
id

er
 c

om
m

un
ity

 to
 d

el
iv

er
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

an
d 

a 
nu

m
be

r o
f i

ni
tia

tiv
es

 a
re

 u
nd

er
w

ay
 w

ith
 p

ar
tn

er
s,

 c
om

m
un

ity
 g

ro
up

s 
an

d 
co

un
ci

l t
en

an
ts

.  
 

Th
es

e,
 a

s 
w

el
l a

s 
a 

nu
m

be
r o

f o
th

er
 m

ea
su

re
s,

 a
re

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
in

g 
to

w
ar

ds
 a

ch
ie

vi
ng

 th
e 

pr
in

ci
pa

l(s
) o

f a
n 

En
su

rin
g 

Co
un

ci
l a

s 
ap

pr
ov

ed
 b

y 
Ca

bi
ne

t a
nd

 in
co

rp
or

at
ed

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
Et

ho
s 

of
 th

e 
co

un
ci

l i
n 

th
e 

Co
rp

or
at

e 
Pl

an
 2

01
4 

-2
01

6 
ap

pr
ov

ed
 b

y 
Co

un
ci

l i
n 

Ju
ly

 2
01

4.
  S

ho
rt

ly
 a

ft
er

 th
e 

Co
rp

or
at

e 
Pl

an
 w

as
 a

pp
ro

ve
d,

 a
n 

in
de

pe
nd

en
t I

nv
es

to
rs

 in
 P

eo
pl

e 
(II

P)
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t p
ra

is
ed

 th
e 

co
un

ci
l f

or
 it

s 
co

m
m

itm
en

t t
o 

th
e 

fu
tu

re
 d

el
iv

er
y 

of
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

as
 a

n 
En

su
rin

g 
Co

un
ci

l. 
  

As
 s

uc
h,

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 m
an

ag
em

en
t,

 m
on

ito
rin

g 
an

d 
re

po
rt

in
g 

is
 d

ev
el

op
in

g 
to

 s
up

po
rt

 s
ta

ff
 a

nd
 m

an
ag

em
en

t i
n 

fa
ci

ng
 th

e 
ch

al
le

ng
es

, a
nd

 ta
ki

ng
 a

dv
an

ta
ge

 o
f t

he
 m

an
y 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

, f
ac

in
g 

th
e 

co
un

ci
l a

s 
it 

m
ak

es
 it

s 
tr

an
si

tio
n 

to
 b

ec
om

in
g 

an
 E

ns
u

rin
g 

Co
un

ci
l. 

 T
hi

s 
w

ill
 in

vo
lv

e 
in

co
rp

or
at

io
n 

of
 a

 ‘c
on

tin
uo

us
 im

pr
ov

em
en

t p
la

n’
, a

s 
re

co
m

m
en

de
d 

by
 th

e 
IIP

, a
nd

 li
nk

in
g 

ex
is

tin
g 

an
d 

ne
w

 m
ea

su
re

s 
to

 th
e 

ei
gh

t p
rin

ci
pl

es
 a

nd
 /

 o
r t

he
 te

n 
re

la
te

d 
st

ra
te

gi
es

 –
 th

e 
fo

rm
al

 r
ep

or
tin

g 
of

 w
hi

ch
 is

 p
la

nn
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

en
d 

of
 

th
e 

cu
rr

en
t f

in
an

ci
al

 y
ea

r.
  

M
ai

nt
ai

n 
w

or
ki

ng
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 w
ith

 
vo

lu
nt

ar
y,

 c
om

m
un

ity
, f

ai
th

, a
rt

s 
an

d 
cu

ltu
re

 g
ro

up
s 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
im

po
rt

an
t s

er
vi

ce
s 

ar
e 

de
liv

er
ed

 
Co

nt
in

ue
 to

 im
pr

ov
e 

cu
st

om
er

 s
er

vi
ce

, 
re

du
ce

 w
as

te
 a

nd
 im

pr
ov

e 
ef

fe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

th
ro

ug
h 

co
lla

bo
ra

tiv
e 

w
or

ki
ng

 w
ith

 p
ar

tn
er

s 
an

d 
se

rv
ic

e 
pr

ov
id

er
s 

En
su

re
 W

ar
d 

Co
un

ci
llo

rs
 fe

el
 s

up
po

rt
ed

 in
 

th
ei

r C
om

m
un

ity
 L

ea
de

rs
hi

p 
ro

le
 

H
al

f Y
ea

rl
y 

M
ea

su
re

 –
 Q

ua
rt

er
 2

 U
pd

at
e:

  
D

em
oc

ra
tic

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
co

nt
in

ue
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 w
ar

d 
co

un
ci

llo
rs

 fe
el

 s
up

po
rt

ed
 in

 th
ei

r c
om

m
un

ity
 le

ad
er

sh
ip

 ro
le

, b
y 

of
fe

rin
g 

a 
ra

ng
e 

of
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 a

nd
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s.

  R
ec

en
tly

, N
or

th
 W

es
t E

m
pl

oy
er

s 
ga

ve
 a

 s
em

in
ar

 o
n 

th
e 

fu
tu

re
 ro

le
 o

f 
co

un
ci

llo
rs

 a
nd

 a
dd

re
ss

in
g 

th
e 

ch
an

gi
ng

 ro
le

 o
f l

oc
al

 d
em

oc
ra

cy
 a

nd
 h

ow
 e

le
ct

ed
 m

em
be

rs
 e

ng
ag

e 
w

ith
 th

ei
r l

oc
al

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

. 
Th

er
e 

ha
s 

al
so

 b
ee

n 
a 

re
ce

nt
 s

es
si

on
 o

n 
ne

ig
hb

ou
rh

oo
d 

pl
an

ni
ng

, a
t w

hi
ch

 c
ou

nc
ill

or
s 

di
sc

us
se

d 
th

e 
po

w
er

 o
f l

oc
al

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

 
to

 fo
rm

 n
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t p

la
ns

 a
nd

 a
 b

rie
fin

g 
la

te
r i

n 
th

e 
ye

ar
 w

ill
 h

ig
hl

ig
ht

 n
ew

 c
om

m
un

ity
 p

ow
er

s 
to

 ta
ck

le
 a

nt
i-

so
ci

al
 b

eh
av

io
ur

.  
Pl

an
s 

ar
e 

be
in

g 
m

ad
e 

fo
r 

M
em

be
rs

 In
du

ct
io

n 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

th
e 

20
15

 lo
ca

l e
le

ct
io

ns
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 c
om

m
un

ity
 

le
ad

er
sh

ip
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 fo

r 
ne

w
 a

nd
 re

tu
rn

in
g 

M
em

be
rs

. 

O
ut

co
m

e:
 W

el
l r

un
, v

al
ue

 fo
r 

m
on

ey
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

ar
e 

va
lu

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 a
nd

 d
em

on
st

ra
te

 g
oo

d 
go

ve
rn

an
ce

, o
pe

nn
es

s 
an

d 
tr

an
sp

ar
en

cy
 w

ill
 b

e 
de

liv
er

ed
 

G
ai

n 
an

 ‘u
nq

ua
lif

ie
d’

 v
al

ue
 fo

r 
m

on
ey

 
co

nc
lu

si
on

 fr
om

 o
ur

 E
xt

er
na

l A
ud

ito
rs

 
A

nn
ua

l M
ea

su
re

: 
Th

e 
co

un
ci

l w
as

 g
iv

en
 a

n 
un

qu
al

ifi
ed

 v
al

ue
 fo

r 
m

on
ey

 o
pi

ni
on

 in
 th

e 
Ex

te
rn

al
 A

ud
ito

rs
 O

pi
ni

on
 o

n 
th

e 
20

13
/1

4 
A

nn
ua

l A
cc

ou
nt

s,
 

is
su

ed
 o

n 
17

th
 S

ep
te

m
be

r 2
01

4.
 

D
el

iv
er

 q
ua

lit
y 

se
rv

ic
es

 th
ro

ug
h 

a 
sk

ill
ed

 
an

d 
m

ot
iv

at
ed

 w
or

kf
or

ce
 s

up
po

rt
ed

 b
y 

le
ar

ni
ng

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
an

d 
w

ay
s 

of
 w

or
ki

ng
 

th
at

 a
re

 a
cc

es
si

bl
e 

to
 a

ll 

A
nn

ua
l M

ea
su

re
: 

Re
al

 b
en

ef
its

 to
 b

e 
ga

in
ed

 fr
om

 a
 b

et
te

r a
lig

nm
en

t o
f t

he
 b

us
in

es
s 

cr
iti

ca
l f

un
ct

io
ns

 o
f h

um
an

 re
so

ur
ce

s,
 o

rg
an

is
at

io
na

l 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t a
nd

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 m
an

ag
em

en
t l

ed
 to

 th
e 

fo
rm

at
io

n 
of

 H
um

an
 R

es
ou

rc
es

 a
nd

 O
rg

an
is

at
io

na
l D

ev
el

op
m

en
t i

n 
ea

rly
 

20
14

.  
Th

is
 p

ro
vi

de
s 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

 to
 fl

ex
ib

ly
 m

an
ag

e 
an

d 
re

in
fo

rc
e 

ch
an

ge
 th

ro
ug

h 
ne

w
 w

ay
s 

of
 w

or
ki

ng
.  

In
vo

lv
in

g 
st

af
f i

n 
th

e 
ch

an
ge

 p
ro

ce
ss

 a
nd

 s
up

po
rt

in
g 

th
em

 in
 g

ai
ni

ng
 th

e 
sk

ill
s 

an
d 

kn
ow

le
dg

e 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y 

to
 s

ol
ve

 p
ro

bl
em

s 
an

d 
ta

ke
 a

dv
an

ta
ge

 o
f t

he
se

 
op

po
rt

un
iti

es
 w

ill
 h

el
p 

to
 a

ch
ie

ve
 a

nd
 s

us
ta

in
 h

ig
h 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 a
nd

 p
ro

du
ct

iv
ity

, s
up

po
rt

 c
on

tin
uo

us
 im

pr
ov

em
en

t a
nd

 d
el

iv
er

 
qu

al
ity

 s
er

vi
ce

s.
   

Bu
si

ne
ss

 im
pr

ov
em

en
t i

s 
be

co
m

in
g 

an
 e

st
ab

lis
he

d 
pa

rt
 o

f t
he

 c
ou

nc
il’

s 
co

m
m

itm
en

t t
o 

de
ve

lo
pi

ng
 a

 s
ki

lle
d 

w
or

kf
or

ce
, p

ro
vi

di
ng

 
a 

m
or

e 
fle

xi
bl

e,
 c

oo
rd

in
at

ed
 a

nd
 in

no
va

tiv
e 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 to
 m

ee
tin

g 
bu

si
ne

ss
 n

ee
ds

.  
Bu

si
ne

ss
 im

pr
ov

em
en

t p
ro

je
ct

s 
ar

e 
un

de
rw

ay
 

in
 k

ey
 a

re
as

 o
f w

or
k 

th
at

 h
av

e 
be

en
 c

ho
se

n 
to

 m
ax

im
is

e 
ad

de
d 

va
lu

e 
an

d 
dr

iv
e 

ou
t w

as
te

.  
 

 

Page 22



17
 D

ec
em

be
r 2

01
4 

 
7 

| 
11

 

M
ea

su
re

 
Co

m
m

en
ts

 

Pr
io

ri
ty

: C
om

m
un

it
y 

Le
ad

er
sh

ip
 

O
ut

co
m

e:
 W

el
l r

un
, v

al
ue

 fo
r 

m
on

ey
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

ar
e 

va
lu

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 a
nd

 d
em

on
st

ra
te

 g
oo

d 
go

ve
rn

an
ce

, o
pe

nn
es

s 
an

d 
tr

an
sp

ar
en

cy
 w

ill
 b

e 
de

liv
er

ed
 (c

on
tin

ue
d)

 

Im
pr

ov
e 

st
an

da
rd

s 
of

 e
qu

al
ity

 a
nd

 d
iv

er
si

ty
 

H
al

f Y
ea

rl
y 

M
ea

su
re

 –
 Q

ua
rt

er
 2

 U
pd

at
e:

 
In

 M
ay

, B
us

in
es

s 
Co

un
ci

l a
ck

no
w

le
dg

ed
 th

e 
co

un
ci

l’s
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 re
qu

ire
m

en
t t

o 
m

ee
t t

he
 P

ub
lic

 S
ec

to
r E

qu
al

ity
 D

ut
y 

(P
SE

D
) a

nd
 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 fi
ve

 e
qu

al
ity

 o
bj

ec
tiv

es
 a

nd
 a

n 
eq

ua
lit

y 
an

d 
di

ve
rs

ity
 a

ct
io

n 
pl

an
 d

ev
el

op
ed

 in
 re

sp
on

se
 to

 r
eq

ue
st

s 
fo

r 
ac

tio
n 

fr
om

 th
e 

Eq
ua

lit
y 

an
d 

H
um

an
 R

ig
ht

s 
Co

m
m

is
si

on
 (E

H
RC

). 
 T

he
 e

qu
al

it
y 

ob
je

ct
iv

es
 w

er
e 

su
bs

eq
ue

nt
ly

 in
co

rp
or

at
ed

 in
to

 th
e 

Co
rp

or
at

e 
Pl

an
 

20
14

 -2
01

6 
ap

pr
ov

ed
 b

y 
co

un
ci

l i
n 

Ju
ly

. 
Si

nc
e 

th
en

 e
xt

en
si

ve
 w

or
k 

ha
s 

be
en

 c
ar

rie
d 

ou
t -

 a
nd

 is
 o

ng
oi

ng
 - 

to
w

ar
ds

 c
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

PS
ED

 a
nd

 it
s 

co
re

 p
ur

po
se

 o
f 

in
te

gr
at

in
g 

co
ns

id
er

at
io

n 
of

 e
qu

al
ity

 a
nd

 g
oo

d 
re

la
tio

ns
 in

to
 d

ay
-t

o-
da

y 
bu

si
ne

ss
.  

G
oo

d 
pr

og
re

ss
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

m
ad

e 
th

at
 s

er
ve

s 
to

 
de

m
on

st
ra

te
 th

e 
co

un
ci

l’s
 c

om
m

itm
en

t a
nd

 le
ad

er
sh

ip
 o

n 
eq

ua
lit

y 
an

d 
di

ve
rs

ity
, b

ut
 m

or
e 

w
or

k 
ne

ed
s 

to
 b

e 
do

ne
 to

 e
m

be
d 

an
d 

in
co

rp
or

at
e 

th
is

 in
to

 p
ol

ic
y 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t,

 d
ec

is
io

n 
m

ak
in

g 
an

d 
se

rv
ic

e 
de

liv
er

y.
  O

ve
ra

ll 
pr

og
re

ss
 w

ill
 b

e 
re

po
rt

ed
 to

 C
ou

nc
il 

in
 

M
ay

 2
01

5.
 

Im
pr

ov
e 

ou
r u

nd
er

st
an

di
ng

 o
f t

he
 n

ee
ds

 o
f 

ou
r c

om
m

un
iti

es
 a

nd
 p

ro
vi

de
 e

qu
al

ity
 o

f 
ac

ce
ss

 to
 o

ur
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

an
d 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

 

A
nn

ua
l M

ea
su

re
: 

Th
is

 is
 li

nk
ed

 to
, a

nd
 w

ill
 b

e 
in

fo
rm

ed
 b

y,
 th

e 
de

ve
lo

pi
ng

 m
ea

su
re

s 
fo

r t
he

 C
om

m
un

ity
 L

ea
de

rs
hi

p 
ou

tc
om

e:
 C

om
m

un
iti

es
 a

re
 

br
ou

gh
t t

og
et

he
r a

nd
 th

e 
m

aj
or

 is
su

es
 a

ff
ec

tin
g 

th
e 

di
st

ric
t a

re
 a

dd
re

ss
ed

 t
hr

ou
gh

 w
or

ki
ng

 in
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 w

hi
ch

 w
ill

 im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

co
un

ci
l’s

 u
nd

er
st

an
di

ng
 o

f t
he

 n
ee

ds
 o

f o
ur

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

. 

Th
e 

co
un

ci
l w

as
 o

ne
 o

f t
he

 fi
rs

t i
n 

th
e 

N
or

th
 W

es
t t

o 
su

cc
es

sf
ul

ly
 a

do
pt

 a
 L

oc
al

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t C
or

e 
St

ra
te

gy
 w

hi
ch

 d
em

on
st

ra
te

s 
th

at
 th

e 
co

un
ci

l u
nd

er
st

an
ds

 th
e 

re
la

tio
ns

hi
ps

 b
et

w
ee

n 
its

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

 a
nd

 th
e 

lo
ca

l e
co

no
m

y 
an

d 
is

 a
bl

e 
to

 p
la

n 
ef

fe
ct

iv
el

y 
fo

r 
th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f s

us
ta

in
ab

le
 g

ro
w

th
 a

nd
 jo

b 
cr

ea
tio

n.
   

  
 

Page 23



17
 D

ec
em

be
r 2

01
4 

 
8 

| 
11

 

M
ea

su
re

 
Co

m
m

en
ts

 

Pr
io

rit
y:

 S
us

ta
in

ab
le

 E
co

no
m

ic
 G

ro
w

th
 

O
ut

co
m

e:
 S

us
ta

in
ab

le
 e

co
no

m
ic

 g
ro

w
th

 a
nd

 jo
bs

 w
ill

 b
e 

cr
ea

te
d 

in
 k

ey
 s

ec
to

rs
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 e
ne

rg
y,

 k
no

w
le

dg
e,

 h
ea

lth
 a

nd
 v

is
ito

r e
co

no
m

y 

N
ew

 a
nd

 im
pr

ov
ed

 e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t s
ite

s 
an

d 
pr

em
is

es
 w

ill
 b

ec
om

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

in
 k

ey
 

bu
si

ne
ss

 lo
ca

tio
ns

 ta
rg

et
in

g 
ke

y 
se

ct
or

s 

H
al

f Y
ea

rl
y 

M
ea

su
re

 –
 Q

ua
rt

er
 2

 U
pd

at
e:

 
W

or
k 

ha
s 

co
nt

in
ue

d 
to

 b
rin

g 
fo

rw
ar

d 
ke

y 
si

te
s 

w
hi

ch
 a

re
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

ly
 s

ui
ta

bl
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

ta
rg

et
 s

ec
to

rs
 o

f t
he

 K
no

w
le

dg
e 

Ec
on

om
y 

an
d 

En
er

gy
. 

In
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 w

ith
 L

an
ca

st
er

 U
ni

ve
rs

ity
 a

nd
 L

an
ca

sh
ire

 th
e 

Co
un

ty
 C

ou
nc

il,
 th

e 
La

nc
as

te
r U

ni
ve

rs
ity

 H
ea

lth
 In

no
va

tio
n 

Ca
m

pu
s 

(f
or

m
er

ly
 k

no
w

n 
as

 th
e 

La
nc

as
te

r U
ni

ve
rs

ity
 S

ci
en

ce
 P

ar
k)

 h
as

 m
ov

ed
 fo

rw
ar

d 
to

 th
e 

po
in

t w
he

re
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t s

ho
ul

d 
co

m
m

en
ce

 in
 m

id
-2

01
5.

  T
hi

s 
ha

s 
be

en
 m

ad
e 

po
ss

ib
le

 b
y 

an
 a

w
ar

d 
of

 £
17

M
 fr

om
 th

e 
La

nc
as

hi
re

 E
co

no
m

ic
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
’s

 G
ro

w
th

 
D

ea
l a

nd
 fu

nd
in

g 
fr

om
 L

an
ca

st
er

 U
ni

ve
rs

ity
, H

ig
he

r E
du

ca
tio

n 
Fu

nd
in

g 
Co

un
ci

l a
nd

 th
e 

pr
iv

at
e 

se
ct

or
.  

W
he

n 
fu

lly
 o

pe
ra

tio
na

l, 
th

er
e 

w
ill

 b
e 

th
e 

ca
pa

bi
lit

y 
to

 m
or

e 
th

an
 2

,0
00

 jo
bs

 a
nd

 a
n 

an
nu

al
 e

co
no

m
ic

 im
pa

ct
 o

f n
ea

rl
y 

£1
00

M
. 

Th
e 

D
is

tr
ic

t’
s 

ot
he

r k
ey

 fu
tu

re
 e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t l

oc
at

io
n 

is
 H

ey
sh

am
 G

at
ew

ay
.  

Th
is

 w
ill

 b
en

ef
it 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
ly

 fr
om

 th
e 

im
pr

ov
ed

 
ac

ce
ss

ib
ili

ty
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

by
 th

e 
H

ey
sh

am
/M

6 
lin

k 
ro

ad
 a

nd
 is

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
ly

 s
ui

te
d 

to
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t i

n 
th

e 
en

er
gy

 s
ec

to
r 

as
 w

el
l a

s 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t g
en

er
at

ed
 b

y 
in

ve
st

m
en

t a
ss

oc
ia

te
d 

w
ith

 th
e 

Po
rt

 o
f H

ey
sh

am
.  

Th
e 

co
un

ci
l i

s 
w

or
ki

ng
 in

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 w
ith

 
La

nc
as

hi
re

 C
ou

nt
y 

Co
un

ci
l, 

Ca
ril

lio
n 

an
d 

ke
y 

bu
si

ne
ss

es
 in

 th
e 

ar
ea

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
a 

co
-o

rd
in

at
ed

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
is

 a
do

pt
ed

 fo
r 

br
in

gi
ng

 
si

te
s 

fo
rw

ar
d 

an
d 

de
liv

er
in

g 
in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 a
nd

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l i
m

pr
ov

em
en

ts
. 

Lo
ok

in
g 

ah
ea

d,
 th

e 
fo

rt
hc

om
in

g 
La

nd
 A

llo
ca

tio
ns

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t P
la

n 
D

oc
um

en
t (

pa
rt

 o
f t

he
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n)
 w

ill
 r

ev
ie

w
 th

e 
ne

ed
 fo

r,
 

an
d 

su
pp

ly
 o

f, 
em

pl
oy

m
en

t s
ite

s 
an

d 
de

te
rm

in
e 

w
he

th
er

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 s

ite
s 

ar
e 

ne
ed

ed
 in

 th
e 

fu
tu

re
. 

A 
Lo

ca
l P

la
n 

fo
r 

th
e 

di
st

ric
t a

do
pt

ed
 

H
al

f Y
ea

rl
y 

M
ea

su
re

 –
 Q

ua
rt

er
 2

 U
pd

at
e:

 
Th

e 
co

un
ci

l’s
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
ad

op
te

d 
in

 2
00

4 
co

in
ci

de
d 

w
ith

 c
ha

ng
es

 to
 th

e 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 s

ys
te

m
, w

hi
ch

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
a 

tw
o 

st
ag

e 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 fo

r 
th

e 
re

pl
ac

em
en

t L
oc

al
 P

la
n,

 b
ei

ng
 a

 C
or

e 
St

ra
te

gy
 fo

llo
w

ed
 b

y 
ot

he
r s

ub
si

di
ar

y 
do

cu
m

en
ts

.  
Th

e 
co

un
ci

l a
do

pt
ed

 it
s 

Co
re

 S
tr

at
eg

y 
in

 2
00

8,
 h

ow
ev

er
, t

he
 n

at
io

na
l g

ui
da

nc
e 

ch
an

ge
d 

ag
ai

n 
in

 2
01

3 
re

su
lti

ng
 in

 w
or

k 
be

in
g 

fo
cu

ss
ed

 o
n 

fiv
e 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t P
la

n 
D

oc
um

en
ts

 (D
PD

s)
 th

at
 to

ge
th

er
 w

ill
 fo

rm
 th

e 
co

un
ci

l’s
 n

ew
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
an

d 
su

pe
rs

ed
e 

th
e 

Co
re

 S
tr

at
eg

y.
 

Al
l f

iv
e 

of
 th

e 
D

PD
s 

ne
ed

 to
 b

e 
pr

ep
ar

ed
 a

nd
 a

do
pt

ed
.  

It
 is

 in
te

nd
ed

 th
at

 tw
o 

of
 th

es
e,

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t M
an

ag
em

en
t [

Pl
an

ni
ng

 
Po

lic
ie

s]
 a

nd
 th

e 
M

or
ec

am
be

 A
re

a 
Ac

tio
n 

Pl
an

 w
ill

 b
e 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 fo

r 
ad

op
tio

n 
at

 fu
ll 

Co
un

ci
l o

n 
th

e 
17

th
 D

ec
em

be
r 2

01
4.

 (N
ot

e:
 

Th
es

e 
w

er
e 

ap
pr

ov
ed

)  
Th

e 
re

m
ai

ni
ng

 th
re

e 
D

PD
s 

ar
e 

al
l b

ei
ng

 w
or

ke
d 

on
 w

ith
 a

 p
la

nn
ed

 a
do

pt
io

n 
da

te
 o

f l
at

e 
20

16
 /

 e
ar

ly
 2

01
7 

- t
he

se
 a

re
: L

an
d 

Al
lo

ca
tio

ns
; A

rn
si

de
 S

ilv
er

da
le

 A
O

N
B;

 a
nd

 G
yp

sy
, T

ra
ve

lle
r,

 a
nd

 T
ra

ve
lli

ng
 S

ho
w

 p
eo

pl
e 

A
cc

om
m

od
at

io
n.

 
In

w
ar

d 
in

ve
st

m
en

t o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
m

ax
im

is
ed

 b
y 

w
or

ki
ng

 w
ith

 k
ey

 p
ar

tn
er

s,
 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
th

e 
un

iv
er

si
tie

s 
of

 L
an

ca
st

er
 a

nd
 

Cu
m

br
ia

, U
ni

ve
rs

ity
 H

os
pi

ta
ls

 M
or

ec
am

be
 

Ba
y 

an
d 

Br
iti

sh
 L

an
d 

H
al

f Y
ea

rl
y 

M
ea

su
re

 –
 Q

ua
rt

er
 2

 U
pd

at
e:

 
W

or
k 

is
 o

ng
oi

ng
 to

 s
up

po
rt

 th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f t
he

 H
ea

lth
 In

no
va

tio
n 

Ca
m

pu
s 

at
 L

an
ca

st
er

 U
ni

ve
rs

ity
, w

hi
ch

 h
as

 ju
st

 r
ec

ei
ve

d 
£1

7M
 o

f G
ro

w
th

 D
ea

l f
un

di
ng

, a
nd

 to
 w

or
k 

w
ith

 B
rit

is
h 

La
nd

 to
 b

rin
g 

fo
rw

ar
d 

pl
an

s 
fo

r 
a 

ci
ty

 c
en

tr
e 

re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t.
  T

o 
su

pp
or

t 
fu

rt
he

r i
nv

es
tm

en
t f

ro
m

 in
di

ge
no

us
 b

us
in

es
se

s,
 th

e 
co

un
ci

l i
s 

be
gi

nn
in

g 
w

or
k 

w
ith

 p
ar

tn
er

s 
to

 fu
rt

he
r u

nd
er

st
an

d 
th

e 
lo

ng
 te

rm
 

sk
ill

s 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 u
nd

er
pi

n 
gr

ow
th

 a
nd

 to
 p

os
iti

on
 th

e 
di

st
ric

t a
s 

a 
go

od
 p

la
ce

 to
 li

ve
 a

nd
 w

or
k 

to
 a

tt
ra

ct
 k

ey
 w

or
ke

rs
 in

 th
e 

fu
tu

re
.  

    

Page 24



17
 D

ec
em

be
r 2

01
4 

 
9 

| 
11

 

M
ea

su
re

 
Co

m
m

en
ts

 

Pr
io

rit
y:

 S
us

ta
in

ab
le

 E
co

no
m

ic
 G

ro
w

th
 

O
ut

co
m

e:
 S

us
ta

in
ab

le
 e

co
no

m
ic

 g
ro

w
th

 a
nd

 jo
bs

 w
ill

 b
e 

cr
ea

te
d 

in
 k

ey
 s

ec
to

rs
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 e
ne

rg
y,

 k
no

w
le

dg
e,

 h
ea

lth
 a

nd
 v

is
ito

r e
co

no
m

y 
(c

on
tin

ue
d)

 

Le
ve

l o
f s

up
po

rt
 fo

r b
us

in
es

s 
gr

ow
th

 a
nd

 
sk

ill
s 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t w

ill
 b

e 
m

ax
im

is
ed

 
H

al
f Y

ea
rl

y 
M

ea
su

re
 –

 Q
ua

rt
er

 2
 U

pd
at

e:
 

As
si

st
ed

 A
re

a 
St

at
us

 w
as

 s
uc

ce
ss

fu
lly

 o
bt

ai
ne

d 
pe

rm
itt

in
g 

th
e 

gr
an

tin
g 

of
 e

xt
ra

 p
ub

lic
 fi

na
nc

ia
l s

up
po

rt
 to

 e
nt

er
pr

is
es

 in
 

ec
on

om
ic

al
ly

 d
is

ad
va

nt
ag

ed
 lo

ca
tio

ns
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 s
ix

 L
an

ca
st

er
 W

ar
ds

; P
ou

lto
n,

 W
es

tg
at

e,
 O

ve
rt

on
, B

ul
k,

 C
as

tle
 a

nd
 D

uk
es

.  

In
pu

t i
nt

o 
th

e 
su

cc
es

sf
ul

 L
an

ca
sh

ire
 E

co
no

m
ic

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 G
ro

w
th

 D
ea

l s
ub

m
is

si
on

 to
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t s
ec

ur
ed

 th
e 

la
rg

es
t s

in
gl

e 
pr

oj
ec

t a
llo

ca
tio

n 
of

 £
17

M
 fo

r 
La

nc
as

te
r U

ni
ve

rs
ity

 H
ea

lth
 In

no
va

tio
n 

Ca
m

pu
s 

to
 e

st
ab

lis
h 

ne
w

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
an

d 
a 

te
st

 s
pa

ce
 fo

r 
co

m
pa

ni
es

 c
ar

ry
in

g 
ou

t p
ro

du
ct

 a
nd

 s
er

vi
ce

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t i
n 

co
lla

bo
ra

tio
n 

w
ith

 th
e 

un
iv

er
si

ty
 a

nd
 h

ea
lth

ca
re

 b
od

ie
s.

 

W
or

k 
is

 p
ro

gr
es

si
ng

 o
n 

th
e 

re
vi

ew
 o

f e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t l
an

d 
w

hi
ch

 is
 p

ro
vi

di
ng

 a
n 

an
al

ys
is

 o
f t

he
 d

is
tr

ic
t’

s 
un

de
rly

in
g 

lo
ca

l e
co

no
m

ic
 

co
nd

iti
on

s 
an

d 
bu

si
ne

ss
 a

ct
iv

ity
 p

ro
fil

e;
 fu

tu
re

 e
co

no
m

ic
 g

ro
w

th
 fo

re
ca

st
 a

nd
 im

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 fo

r 
th

e 
av

ai
la

bi
lit

y 
of

 th
e 

su
pp

ly
 o

f 
bu

si
ne

ss
 p

re
m

is
es

, e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t l
an

d 
an

d 
w

or
kf

or
ce

 s
ki

lls
.  

W
he

n 
co

m
pl

et
e,

 th
e 

fin
di

ng
s 

w
ill

 h
el

p 
sh

ap
e 

po
lic

y,
 s

et
 a

ct
io

ns
 to

 ta
ke

 
ad

va
nt

ag
e 

of
 fu

tu
re

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
an

d 
re

m
ov

e 
/ 

m
iti

ga
te

 c
on

st
ra

in
ts

 to
 b

us
in

es
s 

gr
ow

th
, l

oc
al

 s
ki

lls
 a

nd
 e

m
pl

oy
ab

ili
ty

 n
ee

ds
.  

To
 d

at
e,

 D
is

tr
ic

t b
as

ed
 c

om
pa

ni
es

 h
av

e 
se

cu
re

d 
a 

to
ta

l o
f £

22
0k

 in
ve

st
m

en
t f

ro
m

 th
e 

La
nc

as
hi

re
 R

eg
io

na
l G

ro
w

th
 F

un
d,

 
ge

ne
ra

tin
g 

m
at

ch
in

g 
pr

iv
at

e 
in

ve
st

m
en

t o
f £

88
0k

 fo
r n

ew
 m

an
uf

ac
tu

rin
g 

ba
se

d 
gr

ow
th

.  
A 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
pr

in
ci

pl
e 

ha
s 

be
en

 a
do

pt
ed

 
fo

r 
pr

om
ot

in
g 

th
e 

us
e 

of
 lo

ca
l p

eo
pl

e 
an

d 
bu

si
ne

ss
 th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n 
an

d 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

st
ag

es
 o

f m
aj

or
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

pr
op

os
al

s.
  

Su
pp

or
tin

g 
sm

al
l b

us
in

es
s 

as
 im

po
rt

an
t 

co
m

po
ne

nt
s 

of
 th

ri
vi

ng
 re

ta
il 

ce
nt

re
s 

H
al

f Y
ea

rl
y 

M
ea

su
re

 –
 Q

ua
rt

er
 2

 U
pd

at
e:

  
Th

e 
co

un
ci

l’s
 k

ey
 ro

le
 a

s 
le

vy
 p

ay
er

 /
 c

ol
le

ct
or

 a
nd

 s
up

po
rt

er
 o

f t
he

 L
an

ca
st

er
 B

us
in

es
s 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t D

is
tr

ic
t 

(B
ID

) i
s 

co
nt

in
ui

ng
 

w
ith

 £
19

8k
 o

f l
ev

y 
fu

nd
s 

su
cc

es
sf

ul
ly

 c
ol

le
ct

in
g 

by
 th

e 
en

d 
of

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

01
4.

   

Ag
re

em
en

t t
o 

a 
pr

op
os

al
 fr

om
 th

e 
La

nc
as

te
r D

is
tr

ic
t C

ha
m

be
r 

of
 T

ra
de

 to
 s

up
po

rt
 a

 fe
as

ib
ili

ty
 s

tu
dy

 fo
r 

a 
M

or
ec

am
be

 B
us

in
es

s 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t D
is

tr
ic

t r
es

ul
te

d 
in

 £
40

k 
be

in
g 

m
ad

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

to
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

e 
to

 th
e 

in
ve

st
ig

at
iv

e 
w

or
k 

an
d 

pl
an

s 
to

 s
ec

ur
e 

a 
BI

D
 

ba
llo

t i
n 

20
16

. 

Pr
ov

is
io

n 
as

 th
e 

ac
co

un
ta

bl
e 

bo
dy

 in
 s

up
po

rt
 o

f t
he

 P
or

ta
s 

Pi
lo

t I
ni

tia
tiv

e 
le

d 
by

 M
or

ec
am

be
 T

ow
n 

Co
un

ci
l a

nd
 th

e 
M

or
ec

am
be

 
To

w
n 

Te
am

, w
he

re
 v

ar
io

us
 in

iti
at

iv
es

 a
re

 p
ro

gr
es

si
ng

 w
ith

 a
ro

un
d 

£1
7k

 re
m

ai
ni

ng
 o

f t
he

 o
ri

gi
na

l £
10

0k
 to

 c
om

m
it 

to
 p

ro
je

ct
s.

 

As
 p

ar
t o

f t
he

 T
ow

ns
ca

pe
 H

er
ita

ge
 In

iti
at

iv
e 

(T
H

I) 
2 

– 
A 

Vi
ew

 fo
r 

Er
ic

 a
 p

ilo
t b

us
in

es
s 

su
pp

or
t a

nd
 a

dv
ic

e 
sc

he
m

e 
ha

s 
be

en
 

in
iti

at
ed

 in
 th

e 
TH

I a
re

a 
of

 c
en

tr
al

 M
or

ec
am

be
.  

Th
is

 is
 a

ss
is

tin
g 

up
 to

 1
9 

bu
si

ne
ss

es
 in

 th
e 

ar
ea

 a
nd

 th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t w

ill
 b

e 
us

ed
 to

 
de

ve
lo

p 
ot

he
r 

sm
al

l b
us

in
es

s 
su

pp
or

t i
ni

tia
tiv

es
 w

he
re

 fu
nd

in
g 

an
d 

su
pp

or
t i

s 
av

ai
la

bl
e.

  T
he

 p
ro

je
ct

 s
up

po
rt

s 
be

sp
ok

e 
fr

om
 a

 
pr

of
es

si
on

al
 b

us
in

es
s 

ad
vi

se
r;

 d
ia

gn
os

tic
 b

us
in

es
s 

an
al

ys
is

 a
nd

 a
ct

io
n 

pl
an

ni
ng

, a
nd

 th
e 

op
po

rt
un

ity
 to

 a
pp

ly
 fo

r 
a 

sm
al

l c
as

h 
gr

an
t t

o 
in

iti
at

e 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

ac
tio

ns
.  

 

At
 th

e 
en

d 
of

 th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t a

 d
et

ai
le

d 
sc

he
m

e 
ev

al
ua

tio
n 

re
po

rt
 w

ill
 b

e 
pr

od
uc

ed
. 

 
 

Page 25



17
 D

ec
em

be
r 2

01
4 

 
10

 |
 1

1 

M
ea

su
re

 
Co

m
m

en
ts

 

Pr
io

rit
y:

 S
us

ta
in

ab
le

 E
co

no
m

ic
 G

ro
w

th
 

O
ut

co
m

e:
 T

he
 a

tt
ra

ct
iv

en
es

s 
an

d 
of

fe
r o

f t
he

 d
is

tr
ic

t,
 a

s 
a 

pl
ac

e 
to

 v
is

it 
or

 in
ve

st
 in

, w
ill

 b
e 

im
pr

ov
ed

 

La
nc

as
te

r a
nd

 M
or

ec
am

be
 u

rb
an

 c
en

tr
es

 
w

ill
 b

e 
en

ha
nc

ed
 b

y 
in

ve
st

m
en

t i
n 

th
e 

bu
ilt

 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t,
 h

er
ita

ge
 a

ss
et

s 
an

d 
th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 
re

al
m

 

H
al

f Y
ea

rl
y 

M
ea

su
re

 –
 Q

ua
rt

er
 2

 U
pd

at
e:

   
La

nc
as

te
r:

  W
or

ki
ng

 in
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 w

ith
 L

an
ca

sh
ire

 C
ou

nt
y 

Co
un

ci
l t

he
 s

ec
on

d 
ph

as
e 

of
 w

or
ks

 to
 d

el
iv

er
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 to

 s
tr

ee
ts

 
an

d 
sp

ac
es

 th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

La
nc

as
te

r S
qu

ar
e 

Ro
ut

es
 p

ro
je

ct
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

co
m

pl
et

ed
.  

Th
is

 c
om

pr
is

ed
 o

f w
or

ks
 to

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
tly

 u
pg

ra
de

 
th

e 
fa

br
ic

 o
f C

he
ap

si
de

, H
or

se
sh

oe
 C

or
ne

r,
 P

en
ny

 S
tr

ee
t,

 M
ar

ke
t S

qu
ar

e 
an

d 
pa

rt
 o

f M
ar

ke
t S

tr
ee

t w
ith

 c
ar

ef
ul

 d
es

ig
n 

to
 c

re
at

e 
m

uc
h 

m
or

e 
sp

ac
io

us
, l

es
s 

cl
ut

te
re

d 
st

re
et

sc
ap

es
.  

Th
is

 in
te

gr
al

 w
or

k 
w

ill
 im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
ec

on
om

ic
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 a

nd
 e

nv
ir

on
m

en
ta

l 
qu

al
ity

 o
f t

he
 c

ity
.  

 

In
 th

e 
se

co
nd

 h
al

f o
f t

he
 y

ea
r 

w
or

ks
 t

o 
th

e 
sa

m
e 

st
an

da
rd

 o
f i

m
pr

ov
em

en
t 

w
ill

 b
e 

ca
rr

ie
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

to
 th

e 
ba

ck
 o

f t
he

 M
us

eu
m

 a
nd

 
th

e 
le

ng
th

 o
f M

ar
ke

t S
tr

ee
t t

o 
its

 ju
nc

tio
n 

w
ith

 K
in

g 
St

re
et

. 

As
 p

ar
t o

f t
he

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 n

ow
 in

 p
la

ce
, w

or
k 

w
ith

 L
an

ca
sh

ire
 C

ou
nt

y 
Co

un
ci

l i
s 

be
in

g 
ta

ke
n 

fo
rw

ar
d 

to
 e

xp
lo

re
 

op
tio

ns
 fo

r 
th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f t

he
 m

us
eu

m
s 

of
fe

r i
n 

La
nc

as
te

r c
ity

 c
en

tr
e,

 in
 li

ne
 w

ith
 th

e 
ci

ty
’s

 n
ew

 s
ta

tu
s 

as
 o

ne
 o

f E
ng

la
nd

’s
 

11
 h

er
ita

ge
 c

it
ie

s.
   

 

Pr
op

os
ed

 c
ha

ng
es

 a
nd

 im
pr

ov
em

en
t f

or
 th

e 
ou

td
oo

r C
ha

rt
er

 M
ar

ke
t a

nd
 th

e 
m

an
ag

em
en

t o
f t

ra
ff

ic
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

pe
de

st
ri

an
 z

on
e 

ar
e 

pl
an

ne
d 

in
 th

e 
se

co
nd

 h
al

f o
f t

he
 y

ea
r,

 s
ub

je
ct

 to
 c

ou
nc

il 
de

ci
si

on
s.

  T
hi

s 
w

ill
 e

nh
an

ce
 h

ow
 s

tr
ee

ts
 a

nd
 s

pa
ce

s 
ar

e 
m

an
ag

ed
, 

m
ax

im
is

in
g 

th
e 

be
ne

fit
 o

f t
he

 in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 m
ad

e 
an

d 
m

ak
in

g 
th

e 
ci

ty
 c

en
tr

e 
as

 s
oc

ia
bl

e 
an

d 
ec

on
om

ic
al

ly
 s

uc
ce

ss
fu

l. 

Co
m

pl
em

en
ta

ry
 to

 a
ll 

of
 th

is
 w

or
k 

is
 th

e 
on

go
in

g 
de

liv
er

y 
of

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
by

 th
e 

co
un

ci
l t

o 
m

an
ag

e,
 m

ai
nt

ai
n 

an
d 

im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

pu
bl

ic
 

re
al

m
. 

Ce
nt

ra
l M

or
ec

am
be

:  
Th

e 
M

or
ec

am
be

 A
re

a 
Ac

tio
n 

Pl
an

 (M
AA

P)
 s

et
s 

ou
t a

 r
ea

l f
oc

us
 o

n 
st

re
et

s 
an

d 
sp

ac
es

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
ce

nt
ra

l 
ar

ea
 th

at
 r

eq
ui

re
 a

 c
om

bi
na

tio
n 

of
 w

or
ks

 to
 re

co
nf

ig
ur

e 
ce

rt
ai

n 
el

em
en

ts
 a

nd
 im

pr
ov

e 
an

d 
be

tt
er

 m
an

ag
e 

ke
y 

lo
ca

tio
ns

.  
 

Ca
bi

ne
t s

et
 p

rio
rit

ie
s 

fo
r i

m
pr

ov
em

en
t i

n 
Ap

ril
 2

01
3 

an
d 

pr
op

os
al

s 
ar

e 
no

w
 b

ei
ng

 w
or

ke
d 

up
.  

W
hi

ls
t,

 fu
nd

in
g 

th
e 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l 
w

or
ks

 is
 v

er
y 

ch
al

le
ng

in
g,

 fo
cu

s 
is

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 o

n 
m

ak
in

g 
th

e 
be

st
 p

os
si

bl
e 

us
e 

of
 t

he
 re

so
ur

ce
s 

al
re

ad
y 

co
m

m
itt

ed
.  

 

Ap
pr

ov
ed

 a
nd

 d
ue

 to
 b

e 
im

pl
em

en
te

d 
in

 2
01

5 
is

 a
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t p
ro

je
ct

 to
 u

pl
ift

 th
e 

co
nd

iti
on

 o
f m

ai
n 

st
re

et
s 

fo
cu

si
ng

 o
n 

in
te

rli
nk

in
g 

pa
rt

s 
of

 E
us

to
n 

Ro
ad

, M
ar

ke
t S

tr
ee

t a
nd

 V
ic

to
ria

 S
tr

ee
t.

  O
th

er
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 d

el
iv

er
ab

le
 in

 2
01

5 
sh

ou
ld

 in
cl

ud
e 

ch
an

ge
s 

to
 c

ar
 p

ar
ks

 e
ith

er
 s

id
e 

of
 ‘E

ric
’ t

o 
pr

ov
id

e 
a 

be
tt

er
 b

al
an

ce
 b

et
w

ee
n 

th
e 

us
e 

of
 s

pa
ce

 fo
r l

ei
su

re
 a

nd
 c

ar
 p

ar
ki

ng
 a

nd
 

m
ak

in
g 

th
es

e 
ar

ea
s 

be
tt

er
 a

nd
 s

af
er

 fo
r p

ed
es

tr
ia

n 
m

ov
em

en
t.

  T
he

se
 c

ha
ng

es
 s

ho
ul

d 
he

lp
 to

 in
cr

ea
se

 fo
ot

fa
ll 

in
 th

e 
to

w
n 

ce
nt

re
.  

Ac
ro

ss
 m

uc
h 

of
 c

en
tr

al
 M

or
ec

am
be

, h
ow

ev
er

, s
ig

ni
fic

an
t i

m
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 to
 p

ub
lic

 re
al

m
 is

 h
ea

vi
ly

 d
ep

en
de

nt
 o

n 
se

cu
rin

g 
ne

w
 

in
ve

st
m

en
t a

nd
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t,

 th
e 

pr
os

pe
ct

s 
fo

r 
w

hi
ch

 a
re

 v
er

y 
un

ce
rt

ai
n 

at
 p

re
se

nt
. 

Ec
on

om
ic

 im
pa

ct
 o

f t
he

 a
rt

s 
in

 th
e 

di
st

ric
t 

w
ill

 b
e 

m
ea

su
re

d 
w

ith
 th

e 
Co

un
ci

l m
ov

in
g 

to
w

ar
ds

 a
n 

en
su

rin
g 

ro
le

 to
 s

up
po

rt
 a

 r
an

ge
 

of
 d

el
iv

er
y 

pa
rt

ne
rs

 

Q
ua

rt
er

ly
 M

ea
su

re
 –

 Q
ua

rt
er

 3
 u

pd
at

e:
  

A 
nu

m
be

r o
f S

er
vi

ce
 L

ev
el

 A
gr

ee
m

en
ts

 w
ith

 lo
ca

l a
rt

s 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

ns
 a

re
 in

 p
la

ce
 - 

th
e 

in
di

vi
du

al
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 o

f w
hi

ch
 w

ill
, i

n 
th

e 
m

ai
n,

 b
e 

as
se

ss
ed

 a
t t

he
 e

nd
 o

f t
he

 y
ea

r.
  S

om
e 

in
 y

ea
r r

ev
ie

w
s 

ha
ve

, h
ow

ev
er

, b
ee

n 
ca

rr
ie

d 
ou

t w
ith

 th
os

e 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

ns
 

as
se

ss
ed

 b
ei

ng
 w

el
l o

n 
th

e 
w

ay
 to

 d
el

iv
er

in
g 

ag
re

ed
 o

ut
co

m
es

. 

Th
e 

ro
le

 o
f t

he
 S

to
re

y 
as

 a
 c

en
tr

e 
fo

r c
re

at
iv

e 
ar

ts
 is

 g
ro

w
in

g 
an

d 
ad

di
tio

na
l i

nc
om

e 
ha

s 
be

en
 g

en
er

at
ed

 a
s 

a 
re

su
lt 

w
ith

 th
e 

bu
ild

in
g 

no
w

 d
ev

el
op

in
g 

a 
re

pu
ta

tio
n 

as
 a

 g
oo

d 
ve

nu
e 

fo
r 

m
an

y 
ac

tiv
iti

es
.  

79
%

 o
f t

he
 m

an
ag

ed
 w

or
ks

pa
ce

 is
 n

ow
 o

cc
up

ie
d 

an
d 

w
or

k 
co

nt
in

ue
s 

to
 s

ec
ur

e 
ad

di
tio

na
l t

en
an

ts
 d

ur
in

g 
Q

ua
rt

er
 4

.  
 

Th
e 

Pl
at

fo
rm

 in
 M

or
ec

am
be

 p
ro

vi
de

s 
a 

fu
ll 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

of
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

 th
at

 b
y 

th
e 

en
d 

Q
ua

rt
er

 3
 in

cl
ud

ed
 3

6 
pr

of
es

si
on

al
 

ac
ts

/p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

s 
an

d 
al

m
os

t 1
00

 p
riv

at
e 

bo
ok

in
gs

 c
ov

er
in

g 
a 

w
id

e 
va

ri
et

y 
of

 e
nt

er
ta

in
m

en
t f

ro
m

 li
ve

 m
us

ic
/t

he
at

re
 to

 te
a 

da
nc

es
 a

nd
, c

of
fe

e 
m

or
ni

ng
s.

  A
tt

en
da

nc
es

 a
t e

ve
nt

s 
he

ld
 a

t T
he

 P
la

tf
or

m
 h

av
e 

to
pp

ed
 1

6,
50

0 
to

 d
at

e.
 

Page 26



17
 D

ec
em

be
r 2

01
4 

 
11

 |
 1

1 

M
ea

su
re

 
Co

m
m

en
ts

 

Pr
io

rit
y:

 S
us

ta
in

ab
le

 E
co

no
m

ic
 G

ro
w

th
 

O
ut

co
m

e:
 L

an
ca

st
er

 a
nd

 M
or

ec
am

be
 B

ay
 w

ill
 b

e 
re

co
gn

is
ed

 a
s 

im
po

rt
an

t d
es

tin
at

io
ns

 

D
es

tin
at

io
n 

br
an

ds
 fo

r 
La

nc
as

te
r a

nd
 th

e 
Lu

ne
 V

al
le

y 
an

d 
M

or
ec

am
be

 B
ay

 w
ill

 b
e 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
w

ith
 p

ar
tn

er
s 

to
 e

st
ab

lis
h 

th
es

e 
ar

ea
s 

as
 im

po
rt

an
t v

is
ito

r d
es

tin
at

io
ns

 

Q
ua

rt
er

ly
 M

ea
su

re
 –

 Q
ua

rt
er

 3
 u

pd
at

e:
  

Th
e 

La
nc

as
te

r a
nd

 M
or

ec
am

be
 B

ay
 d

es
tin

at
io

n 
br

an
ds

 h
av

e 
no

w
 b

ee
n 

su
cc

es
sf

ul
ly

 la
un

ch
ed

 a
t t

w
o 

hi
gh

 p
ro

fil
e 

ev
en

ts
 in

 
N

ov
em

be
r a

nd
 Ja

nu
ar

y.
  P

re
ss

 c
ov

er
ag

e 
ha

s 
be

en
 v

er
y 

go
od

 a
nd

 p
ar

tn
er

 in
vo

lv
em

en
t i

s 
hi

gh
. 

W
or

k 
w

ill
 n

ow
 c

on
tin

ue
 to

 fu
rt

he
r d

ev
el

op
 a

nd
 im

pl
em

en
t t

he
 b

ra
nd

s 
an

d 
un

de
rt

ak
e 

de
st

in
at

io
n 

m
ar

ke
tin

g 
at

 a
 n

at
io

n
al

 a
nd

 
in

te
rn

at
io

na
l l

ev
el

.  

La
nc

as
te

r h
as

 n
ow

 a
ch

ie
ve

d 
m

em
be

rs
hi

p 
of

 th
e 

En
gl

is
h 

H
er

ita
ge

 C
iti

es
 G

ro
up

 a
nd

 th
e 

te
am

 is
 e

ng
ag

in
g 

w
ith

 in
te

rn
at

io
na

l G
ro

up
 

To
ur

 O
pe

ra
to

rs
 to

 b
rin

g 
th

ei
r 

cl
ie

nt
 g

ro
up

s 
in

to
 th

e 
di

st
ric

t a
s 

vi
si

to
rs

. 

O
ut

co
m

e:
 L

an
ca

st
er

 a
nd

 M
or

ec
am

be
 B

ay
 w

ill
 b

e 
re

co
gn

is
ed

 a
s 

im
po

rt
an

t d
es

tin
at

io
ns

 (c
on

tin
ue

d)
 

Vi
si

to
r n

um
be

rs
 a

nd
 s

pe
nd

 w
ill

 b
e 

in
cr

ea
se

d 
Q

ua
rt

er
ly

 M
ea

su
re

 –
 Q

ua
rt

er
 3

 u
pd

at
e:

  
At

 th
e 

en
d 

of
 Q

ua
rt

er
 3

 o
ve

r 
17

9,
00

0 
un

iq
ue

 v
is

its
 w

er
e 

m
ad

e 
to

 th
e 

co
un

ci
l’s

 v
is

ito
r w

eb
si

te
, u

p 
fr

om
 a

ro
un

d 
15

7,
00

0 
at

 th
e 

sa
m

e 
pe

rio
d 

in
 2

01
3/

14
. 

Ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 a
re

 in
 n

ow
 in

 p
la

ce
 to

 u
til

is
e 

M
ar

ke
tin

g 
La

nc
as

hi
re

’s
 w

eb
si

te
, v

is
itl

an
ca

sh
ire

, f
or

 th
e 

co
un

ci
l’s

 o
nl

in
e 

de
st

in
at

io
ns

 
pr

om
ot

io
n 

w
hi

ch
 h

as
 s

ee
n 

a 
dr

am
at

ic
 in

cr
ea

se
 in

 u
ni

qu
e 

w
eb

si
te

 v
is

ito
rs

 in
 th

e 
la

st
 y

ea
r 

re
ac

hi
ng

 o
ve

r 8
12

,0
00

 a
t t

he
 e

nd
 o

f 
Q

ua
rt

er
 3

.  
 

An
 e

st
im

at
ed

 2
1,

50
0 

pe
op

le
 a

tt
en

de
d 

Li
gh

t u
p 

La
nc

as
te

r 2
01

4 
ov

er
 th

e 
tw

o 
ni

gh
ts

, u
p 

fr
om

 1
9,

85
0 

la
st

 y
ea

r.
  A

n 
in

de
pe

nd
en

t 
ev

al
ua

tio
n 

of
 th

is
 e

ve
nt

, r
ec

en
tly

 p
ub

lis
he

d,
 e

st
im

at
es

 th
at

 th
at

 L
ig

ht
 u

p 
La

nc
as

te
r g

en
er

at
ed

 a
ro

un
d 

£5
73

,0
00

 o
f e

co
no

m
ic

 
ac

tiv
ity

. 

Th
e 

fin
al

 e
co

no
m

ic
 e

va
lu

at
io

n 
fo

r 
th

e 
Vi

nt
ag

e 
Fe

st
iv

al
, w

hi
ch

 a
tt

ra
ct

ed
 4

0,
00

0 
vi

si
to

rs
 to

 M
or

ec
am

be
, i

s 
du

e 
to

 b
e 

pu
bl

is
he

d 
so

on
.  

Ar
ou

nd
 a

 q
ua

rt
er

 o
f t

ho
se

 v
is

iti
ng

 h
ad

 n
ev

er
 b

ee
n 

to
 M

or
ec

am
be

 b
ef

or
e 

an
d 

fe
ed

ba
ck

 o
n 

th
e 

ev
en

t 
ha

s 
be

en
 v

er
y 

po
si

tiv
e.

  
Th

e 
Vi

nt
ag

e 
Fe

st
iv

al
 a

tt
ra

ct
ed

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
tly

 m
or

e 
pe

op
le

 th
an

 th
e 

si
m

ila
r S

ea
si

de
 F

es
tiv

al
, w

hi
ch

 a
tt

ra
ct

ed
 a

n 
ar

ou
nd

 1
6,

00
0 

pe
op

le
.  

Pl
an

s 
ar

e 
no

w
 u

nd
er

w
ay

 fo
r 

Vi
nt

ag
e 

an
d 

Li
gh

t U
p 

fe
st

iv
al

s 
fo

r 2
01

5.
 

Th
e 

VI
C 

Te
am

 h
av

e 
re

ac
he

d 
th

e 
La

nc
as

hi
re

 T
ou

ri
sm

 fi
na

ls
 m

os
t y

ea
rs

 a
nd

 th
is

 y
ea

r a
re

 p
ro

ud
 to

 b
e 

re
pr

es
en

tin
g 

La
nc

as
hi

re
 in

 t
he

 
Vi

si
t E

ng
la

nd
 N

at
io

na
l T

ou
ris

m
 A

w
ar

ds
 2

01
5 

Cu
st

om
er

 C
ar

e 
ca

te
go

ry
. 

To
ta

l v
is

ito
r e

nq
ui

rie
s 

fo
r 

Ap
ri

l t
o 

D
ec

em
be

r 2
01

4 
ha

ve
 e

xc
ee

d 
10

0,
00

0 
– 

a 
lit

tle
 lo

w
er

 th
an

 a
t t

he
 s

am
e 

pe
ri

od
 la

st
 y

ea
r 

– 
bu

t s
til

l 
a 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 n

um
be

r c
on

si
de

ri
ng

 a
 r

ed
uc

tio
n 

in
 o

pe
ni

ng
 h

ou
rs

 fo
r 

bo
th

 V
IC

’s
 a

nd
 th

e 
cl

os
ur

e 
of

 th
e 

fo
ot

pa
th

 o
ut

si
de

 th
e 

St
or

ey
 

be
tw

ee
n 

Ju
ly

 a
nd

 S
ep

te
m

be
r.

  8
6%

 o
f e

nq
ui

rie
s 

ar
e 

fa
ce

 to
 fa

ce
 re

fle
ct

in
g 

th
e 

ro
le

 V
IC

’s
 p

la
y 

in
 d

ea
lin

g 
w

ith
 v

is
ito

rs
 w

he
n 

th
ey

 
ar

riv
e 

in
 th

e 
di

st
ri

ct
.  

 

G
ro

ss
 in

co
m

e 
at

 th
e 

VI
C’

s 
ha

s 
in

cr
ea

se
d 

fr
om

 £
23

1,
00

0 
to

 £
23

9,
00

0 
in

 th
e 

pe
rio

d 
fr

om
 A

pr
il 

to
 D

ec
em

be
r 2

01
4.

 
 

Page 27



Table 1:  Complaints by Service

Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 
Not upheld 7 5 5 17
Partially upheld 2 2 0 4
Upheld 17 15 5 37
Open Cases 1 4 1 6

Total by Service by Quarter 27 26 11 64

Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 
Not upheld 2 0 0 2
Partially upheld 0 0 0 0
Upheld 0 0 0 0
Open Cases 1 1 0 2

Total by Service by Quarter 3 1 0 4

Status by Service 
Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 

Not upheld 2 3 2 7
Partially upheld 1 2 0 3
Upheld 0 2 0 2
Open Cases 2 1 0 3

Total by Service by Quarter 5 8 2 15

Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 
Not upheld 1 3 2 6
Partially upheld 1 2 1 4
Upheld 0 0 0 0
Open Cases 0 1 1 2

Total by Service by Quarter 2 6 4 12

Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 
Not upheld 3 0 2 5
Partially upheld 0 0 1 1
Upheld 1 2 0 3
Open Cases 2 1 0 3

Total by Service by Quarter 6 3 3 12

Total by Quarter - All Services 43 44 20 107

Regeneration & Planning

Resources

Total by StatusStatus by Service 
Environmental Services

Governance

Health & Housing

Appendix B (i):  Complaints Data 01 April - 31 December 2014

Status by Service 

Status by Service 

Status by Service 

Total by Status

Total by Status

Total by Status

Total by Status

Page 28



Table 2: Complaints by Stage

Status by Stage Stage 1 Stage 2 Ombudsman Total by Status

Not upheld 31 3 3 37
Partially upheld 9 1 2 12
Upheld 41 0 1 42
Open Cases 8 0 8 16

Total by Stage 89 4 14 107

Table 3: Complaints by Type

Failure to follow procedure 19 1 3 2 2 27
Failure to take account of relevant matters 7 2 5 1 15
Mailice, bias or discrimination 1 0 1
Neglect or unjustifiable delay 21 1 2 24
Unhelpful attitude of employee 14 6 1 6 27
Open Cases 2 3 3 2 3 13

Total by Service 64 4 15 12 12 107

Appendix B (i):  Complaints Data 01 April - 31 December 2014

Total by StatusStatus by Complaint Type Environmental Governance Health & Housing
Regeneration & 

Planning
Resources

Page 29



Appendix C 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

HEADLINE INFORMATION: 

• General Fund revenue budget underspend of £82K, projected 
to become £79K by the year end. 
 

• Housing Revenue Account underspend of £13K, projected to 
remain the same. 
 

• Council Tax surplus of circa £1M. 
 

• Sundry Debt level at £3M of which £1.7M relates to Housing 
Benefit Overpayment recoveries.  Overall a 7% reduction on 
the previous quarter. 
 

• Council Housing Rent Arrears circa £260K (9% reduction on 
previous quarter). 

 

 

Report of: Financial Services Manager 

Corporate Financial Monitoring 
Quarter 3: October – December 2014 

      

Page 30



Prepared by Financial Services (Resources)  1 

 

1 Introduction 

This monitoring report for 2014/15 sets out an indicative corporate picture of the Council’s 
financial performance for the period ending 31 December 2014.   

The report summarises the budgetary variances arising through services’ monitoring, and 
also identifies any omissions, updates and/or actions required.  In addition there are 
various other specific sections including capital expenditure and financing, the Housing 
Revenue Account (HRA), revenue collection performance and various reserves.  The 
content and format of this report will continue to evolve, to draw on both national and local 
finance matters. 

It should be noted that this quarter’s monitoring is based on the Revised Budget. 

 

2 General Fund Revenue Monitoring 

1.1 General Fund Summary Position 

 
The current overall General Fund summary position shows that at the end of December 
there is a net underspend of £82K against the revised budget.  This is forecast to 
increase slightly to £79K by the end of the year, allowing for known, quantified variances.   

  

The underspend of £661K previously forecast at Qtr2 increased to £816K as part of the 
revised estimate process, and has been transferred into general balances.  Full details of 
the underspend have been reported to Cabinet during the current budget process.The 
latest forecast underspend is in addition to the £816K;  it follows the pattern of services 
achieving savings where they can.   

 Annual 
Budget 
£000’s 

Current 
Variance 
£000’s 

Full Year 
Projection 
£000’s 

Salaries 19,508 (39) (53) 
Transport 1,771 - - 
Premises 9,670 (21) (23) 
Supplies & Services 15,302 3 (10) 
Fees & Charges (15,790) (25) 7 
Grants & Contributions (3,784) - - 
Other Net Budgets (8,137) - - 

Total 18,540 (82) (79) 

 

1.3 Main Budget Variances 

Annex A details the major true variances identified to date that have been included within 
individual services’ monitoring reports.  The variances reported cover employees, premises, 
transport, supplies and services and general income;  some adverse impact in respect of 

Page 31



Prepared by Financial Services (Resources)  2 

treasury management (exchange rate risks) may come through at year end, but this is not 
yet certain or quantifiable .  A service by service picture in the following graph. 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2 General Fund Capital Programme 

2.1 Capital Expenditure & Financing 

The capital programme has been updated and 
reported to Members as part of the current budget 
process.  

The latest gross programme stands at £9.8M 
which is reduction of £400K from the original 
estimate.   

At the end of December there were spend and 
commitments of £4.4M against the latest approved 
programme leaving £5.4M still to spend. Details of 
spend against each scheme is shown at Annex B. 

The performance of the Council’s property 
portfolio has strong linkages with capital 
investment and financing, and therefore at this 
point attention is drawn to the Property Group 
report at Appendix B, provided alongside this 
financial monitoring report.    

  

3 Revenue Collection Performance 

3.1 Collection Fund Monitoring 

3.1.1 Council Tax Yield (Total Collectable) 

This section provides a summary analysis of the current surplus or deficit on the Fund, 
shown in the table below.  Such a surplus or deficit arises because of the great many 
changes in liability that occur throughout the year.  Furthermore, any difference between 
estimated and actual collection performance will ultimately have a bearing. 
 

£0M

£2M

£4M

£6M

£8M

£10M

£12M

Budget Remaining
Spend & Commitments

Page 32



Prepared by Financial Services (Resources)  3 

The table goes on to compare budgeted council tax yield, or total amount collectable, with 
the yield position as at 31 December: 

    £000’s 

Collection Fund Surplus (December 2014)    (990)    

 
Represented by: 

    

       2013/14 Collection Fund Surplus higher than 
forecast 

  (568) 

 In-Year Movements to Date:   
 Lower Council Tax Support than estimated (290)  
 Net of Higher Second Homes/Lower Empty 

Homes income 
+38  

 Other Movements (net increases) in Tax Base (170) (422) 
      (990) 

  
Of which the City Council would retain 13% 

 
(129) 

     
Note:  Budgeted 

Projection 
£000’s 

Actual 
Position 
£000’s 

  

    Total Council Tax Collectable (Yield)   59,105  59,804   
    Actual amount collected   (50,873)  (50,873)  85%  

Amount Outstanding   8,232  8,931   

 
As at 31 December, there is an estimated surplus of £990K (Qtr2 £1.129M), which is £139K 
less than the last period. 
 
This year’s position is made up of: 
 
- additional surplus brought forward from 2013/14 of £568K; 

 
- £290K lower than estimated council tax support.  This will continue to fluctuate as 

claimants’ circumstances change, but since establishing the scheme proposals back in 
the autumn/winter of 2012, the trend is still that the total support being claimed is lower 
than expected; 

 
- overall £38K lower than estimated income from second/empty homes (specifically 

identifiable); 
 

- a balance of £170K (Qtr2 £373K) relating to other movements in the tax base or other 
factors which have still to be substantiated. 

 
Should the tax base increase each year by more than originally estimated, this too helps 
towards balancing the General Fund revenue budget for future years. 
 
 

3.1.2 Business Rates Retention 

The following table shows the latest retained business rates position at the end of 
December.   
 
The table shows provisional additional income of £1.624M, of which 50% (£812K) is 
payable to Central Government and 50% retained by the Council.  However, it should be 
noted that this position could change significantly depending on the outcome of appeals.   

Page 33



Prepared by Financial Services (Resources)  4 

 
At present, a total provision of £9M has been made for appeals prior to 31 March 2014, 
which includes £7M in respect of a number of very large appeals.  However, latest 
projections estimate potential liabilities at £12.6M to 31 March 2014.  Separately, a further 
£2.8M is currently provided for appeals after 01 April 2014.   
 
Due to the uncertainty surrounding appeal valuations, it would not be prudent to assume 
this is all guaranteed additional income to the Council until these appeals have been 
settled.  New indications are that the larger appeals may be settled by 31 March 2015. 
 

 2014/15 
£000’s 

Net Collectable Amount of Business Rates 68.358 
Less: Provision for Appeals (6.376) 
Less: Cost of Collection (0.229) 

Net retained business rates 61.753 

Add:  
Less: Central Government Share – 50% (30.877) 
Less: County Council & Fire Authority Share – 10% (6.175) 

Lancaster’s Retained Business Rates Share – 40% 24.701 

Less: Tariff payable to Central Government (19.392) 
Add Back: Cost of Collection 0.229 
Add: Small Business Rates Relief Grant 1.195 

Total Amount of Retained Business Rates 6.733 

Less: Lancaster’s Baseline Funding Level (5.109) 

Provisional Additional Income 1.624 

 
Split as follows: 

 

50% Levy Payable to Central Government 0.812 
50% Retained by Lancaster 0.812 

 
 

3.2 Council Tax and Business Rates Collection 
 
The percentage collected for council tax is in line with the target. However, for Business 
Rates the actual collection is much lower than the target.  This is due to businesses opting 
to pay by 12 instalments instead of the previous 10.  The impact of this option was 
unknown when the target was set, but it is anticipated that the overall position will be in line 
by the end of the year. 

 
 

Percentage 
Collected 

2013/14 
 

2014/15 
 

2014/15 
Target 

 

2014/15 
Actual 

 

Status 

 All Years  In Year  

Council Tax  78.3% 77.8% 85.2% 85.1% On 
Target 

Business Rates 89.1% 81.6% 87.6% 82.0% Behind 

Page 34



Prepared by Financial Services (Resources)  5 

£0K

£200K

£400K

£600K

£800K

£1,000K

£1,200K

£1,400K

0-28
days

29-58
days

59-90
days

91-182
days

183-363
days

364+
days

Analysis of Aged Debt

Sep-14 Dec-14

SERVICE  < 28 Days 
 28-59 
Days 

 60-91 
Days 

 92-183 
Days 

 184-364 
Days 

 365+ 
Days 

 TOTAL 

£ £ £ £ £ £ £

Enviromental Services 132,428     134,049     63,762       327,898     76,984       44,618       779,739     

Governance -            -            -            350           3,641        4,824        8,815        

Regeneration & Planning 19,171       5,164        13,001       1,696        -            3,968        43,001       

Resources 207,758     27,601       34,823       50,024       58,939       100,187     479,334     

Health & Housing 22,657       37,839       1,299        1,479        5,903        15,084       84,262       

Hsg Benefits (Revenues) 120,897     114,319     86,784       116,676     185,651     1,041,125  1,665,453  

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

3.3 Sundry Debts 

This section sets out the latest position on the level of outstanding sundry debts (excluding 
Council Housing).  At the end of December the total debt outstanding was just under 
£3.1M, which is a reduction of £234K on the previous quarter.     
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
  
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Target 

 June 14 Sept 14 

 £000’s £000’s 

0-28 days 704 503 

29-58 days 216 319 

59-90 days 127 200 

91-182 days 695 498 

183-363 days 384 331 

364+ days 1,170 1,210 

 3,295 3,061 

Previous Year 2,753 3,035 

Page 35



Prepared by Financial Services (Resources)  6 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4 Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 

4.1 HRA Revenue Position 

 
At the end of December the position for the HRA shows a net underspend of £13K 
against the revised budget, which is currently projected to remain the same until the 
year end.  Details of the variances are as follows: 

    
Employees    Current (£9,300) Forecast (£16,300) 
There have been further turnover savings within management and administration. 
 
 
Income    Current (£3,500) Forecast +£2,800 
Net additional income projected to become a shortfall, mainly as a result of reduced income 
from Lifelines and Telecare. 
 

4.2 Council Housing Rent Arrears 

This section monitors the level of tenant arrears, to indicate any impact from welfare 
reforms and/or the wider economy on rent collection and in turn, to inform whether any 
specific actions are necessary.  It will also feed into future reviews of the bad debt 
provision. 

The following chart shows the current level of arrears compared to the previous 2 years.    
At the end of December, the level of arrears for 2014/15 is £257K (Qtr 2 £282K) which is 
£25K less than the previous quarter this year.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 36



Prepared by Financial Services (Resources)  7 

 

 

 

4.3 HRA Capital Programme 

This section analyses actual spend and commitments against the Council Housing Capital 
Programme at the end of December.  To date spend and commitments total £3.313M 
against the programme of £4.861M leaving a balance of £1.548M.   

 Current 
Approved 
Programme 

£000’s 

Spend & 
Commitments 

to Date 
£000’s 

Budget 
Remaining 
£000’s 

Adaptations 320 200 120 

Energy Efficiency / Boiler Replacement 720 473 247 

Bathroom / Kitchen Refurbishment 1,294 803 491 

External Refurbishments 958 832 126 

Environmental Improvements 890 537 353 

Rewiring 64 35 29 

Fire Precaution Works 268 146 122 

Lift Replacement 60 0 60 

Re-roofing / Window Renewals 287 287 0 

TOTAL 4,861 3,313 1,548 

 

5 Provisions and Reserves 

This section provides an update on key provisions and reserves. 
 

5.1 Insurance Provision 

The current balance on the insurance provision is £250K, after making net payments of 
£68K in settlement of claims made. The estimated value of claims outstanding is £216K, 
which is £34K less than the current provision.   

5.2 Bad Debt Provision 

The level of the provision has been assessed in simple terms based on assumed levels of 
write-off as a proportion of debt outstanding.  Based on the figures shown in section 3.3 the 
required level of provision would be as follows: 
 

Period Debt 
£000’s 

% Cover 
Required 

Value 
£000’s 

Up to 1 Month 382 1% 4 

1 Month to 3 Months 318 5% 16 

3 Months to 365 Days 527 10% 53 

Over 365 Days  169 50% 84 

Page 37



Prepared by Financial Services (Resources)  8 

HBen Overpayments 1,665 60% 999 

TOTAL 3,061  1,156 

 
The current balance on the General Fund Bad Debt provision is £1.150M which is £6K less 
than the requirement indicated.  A formal assessment has be undertaken as part of the 
current budget process and a further £100K added to the provision on top of the £100K 
already budgeted for.  Any shortfall between now and the end of the financial year will be 
addressed as part of the closedown process. 
 
As highlighted previously, the planned implementation and roll out of Universal Credit could 
potentially increase risks regarding the future recovery of housing benefit overpayments 
and this will continue to be monitored. 
 
 

6 Contract Procedure Rules and Other Exceptions to Tender 

In accordance with the latest approved contract procedure rules all exceptions to tender 
and other significant contract variations will be reported as part of the quarterly corporate 
monitoring process.   
 
There is one exception to report for this quarter relating to Electoral Management Software 
(£60K contract over 5 years), which was granted on the grounds that there was only one 
software provider that could satisfy the statement of needs provided by Governance 
Services. 
 
 

 

Page 38



Su
bj
ec
ti
ve
!A
re
a

Se
rv
ic
e

Re
as
on

!fo
r!
V
ar
ia
nc
e

Em
pl

oy
ee

s
En

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l!S

er
vi

ce
s

Tu
rn

ov
er

!s
av

in
gs

"
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!
(4

,7
00

)
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

G
ov

er
na

nc
e!

Se
rv

ic
es

Tu
rn

ov
er

!s
av

in
gs

(1
,9

00
)

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!

(1
,5

00
)

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

H
ea

lth
!&

!H
ou

si
ng

Tu
rn

ov
er

!s
av

in
gs

(1
6,

10
0)

!!!
!!!

!!!
(2

1,
90

0)
!!!

!!!
!!!

!

Re
ge

ne
ra

tio
n!

&
!P

la
nn

in
g

Tu
rn

ov
er

!s
av

in
gs

(6
,9

00
)

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!

(2
4,

50
0)

!!!
!!!

!!!
!

Re
so

ur
ce

s
Ad

di
tio

na
l!t

ur
no

ve
r!s

av
in

gs
!p

en
di

ng
!IC

T!
re

st
ru

ct
ur

e
(1

4,
00

0)
!!!

!!!
!!!

(3
8,
90

0)
!!!
!!

"
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
(5
2,
60

0)
!!!
!!

Pr
em

is
es

H
ea

lth
!&

!H
ou

si
ng

Sa
lt!

Ay
re

!S
po

rt
s!

Ce
nt

re
!"

!n
et

!re
du

ce
d!

ga
s!

co
st

!/
!in

cr
ea

se
d!

el
ec

tr
ic

ity
!c

os
ts

80
0

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!

(4
00

)
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

Re
ge

ne
ra

tio
n!

&
!P

la
nn

in
g

Re
du

ce
d!

en
er

gy
!c

os
ts

!a
t!t

he
!P

la
tf

or
m

!d
ue

!to
!n

ew
!h

ea
tin

g!
sy

st
em

(1
,0

00
)

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!

(3
,9

00
)

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

Re
so

ur
ce

s
Ad

di
tio

na
l!s

av
in

gs
!in

!c
on

ne
ct

io
n!

w
ith

!S
t.

Le
on

ar
d'

s!
H

ou
se

(2
0,

90
0)

!!!
!!!

!!!
(2
1,
10

0)
!!!
!!

(1
8,

80
0)

!!!
!!!

!!!
!

(2
3,
10

0)
!!!
!!

Su
pp

lie
s!

&
!S

er
vi

ce
s

En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l!S
er

vi
ce

s
In

cr
ea

se
d!

w
as

te
!d

is
po

sa
l!c

ha
rg

es
1,

50
0

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!
2,

20
0

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!

G
ov

er
na

nc
e

M
em

be
rs

!a
llo

w
an

ce
s!

&
!s

ub
sc

rip
tio

ns
/l

eg
al

!c
os

ts
(1

,5
00

)
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!
(1

,1
00

)
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

H
ea

lth
!&

!H
ou

si
ng

In
cr

ea
se

!in
!n

um
be

r!o
f!f

un
er

al
s!

ha
vi

ng
!to

!b
e!

pa
id

!fo
r!b

y!
th

e!
Co

un
ci

l
4,

20
0

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!
4,

20
0

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!

Re
ge

ne
ra

tio
n!

&
!P

la
nn

in
g

U
nd

er
sp

en
d!

on
!C

hr
is

tm
as

!L
ig

ht
s!

m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

"
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!
(9

,1
00

)
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

U
nd

er
sp

en
d!

on
!P

la
tf

or
m

!g
en

er
al

!e
xp

en
se

s!
an

d!
m

ar
ke

tin
g

(8
00

)
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

3,
40

0
!!!
!!!
!!!

(6
,3

00
)

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

(1
0,
10

0)
!!!
!!

Fe
es

!&
!C

ha
rg

es
En

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l!S

er
vi

ce
s

In
cr

ea
se

d!
in

co
m

e!
at

!n
ur

se
ry

!&
!W

ill
ia

m
so

n!
Pa

rk
!v

en
ue

!h
ire

(1
,1

00
)

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!

(9
,3

00
)

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

Sa
le

!o
f!s

ur
pl

us
!s

to
ne

!a
t!a

uc
tio

n
(1

,5
00

)
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!
(1

,5
00

)
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

Sa
le

!o
f!v

eh
ic

le
!p

lu
s!

in
cr

ea
se

d!
in

co
m

e!
fr

om
!d

om
es

tic
!c

ol
le

ct
io

ns
!&

!b
in

!d
el

iv
er

ie
s

(4
,7

00
)

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!

(7
,5

00
)

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

H
ea

lth
!&

!H
ou

si
ng

Sa
lt!

Ay
re

!S
po

rt
s!

Ce
nt

re
!"

!n
et

!re
du

ct
io

n!
in

!in
co

m
e,

!m
ai

nl
y!

Re
fle

xi
on

s
3,

30
0

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!
11

,9
00

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!

Ca
rn

fo
rt

h!
Po

ol
!"

!n
et

!a
dd

iti
on

al
!in

co
m

e
(5

,7
00

)
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!
(3

,0
00

)
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

In
cr

ea
se

d!
pe

st
!c

on
tr

ol
!in

co
m

e!
an

d!
ad

di
tio

na
l!E

nv
iro

nm
en

t!P
ro

te
ct

io
n!

Ce
rt

ifi
ca

te
s

(1
0,

20
0)

!!!
!!!

!!!
(1

0,
20

0)
!!!

!!!
!!!

!

Re
ge

ne
ra

tio
n!

&
!P

la
nn

in
g

Ca
pi

ta
l!s

al
ar

ie
s!

do
w

n!
m

or
e!

th
an

!e
xp

ec
te

d!
du

e!
to

!d
el

ay
ed

!re
cr

ui
tm

en
t

"
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!
29

,9
00

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!

Ad
di

tio
na

l!e
as

em
en

t!i
nc

om
e!

fr
om

!e
ne

rg
y!

su
pp

lie
r

(3
,2

00
)

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!

(3
,2

00
)

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

Re
so

ur
ce

s
Tr

ea
su

ry
!M

an
ag

em
en

t
(2

,0
00

)
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!
(2
5,
10

0)
!!!
!!

?
7,
10

0
!!!
!!!
!!!

TO
TA

L
(8
1,
70

0)
!!!
!!!
!!!
!

(7
8,
70

0)
!!!
!!!
!!!
!

!""#$%!

Cu
rr
en

t!
V
ar
ia
nc
es

Pr
oj
ec
ti
on

!fo
r!
Ye

ar

CO
RP

O
RA

TE
!F
IN
A
N
CI
A
L!
M
O
N
IT
O
RI
N
G
:!G

en
er
al
!F
un

d!
Re

ve
nu

e!
Bu

dg
et

Page 39



A
nn

ua
l!B
ud

ge
t!!

£
V
ar
ia
nc
e!
!!!
!

£

A
nn

ua
l!

Bu
dg

et
!!!
!!!

£
V
ar
ia
nc
e!
!!!
!

£
A
nn

ua
l!

Bu
dg

et
!!!
!!!
!!!
!£

V
ar
ia
nc
e!
!!!
!

£

A
nn

ua
l!

Bu
dg

et
!!!
!!

£
V
ar
ia
nc
e!
!!!

£
A
nn

ua
l!

Bu
dg

et
!!!
!!!
!!!
!£

V
ar
ia
nc
e!
!!!
!!!

£
A
nn

ua
l!B

ud
ge
t!

£
V
ar
ia
nc
e!
!!!
!!!
!!!
!

£
A
nn

ua
l!B

ud
ge
t!!

£
To

ta
l!V

ar
ia
nc
e!
!

£
EX

PE
N
D
IT
U
RE

Em
pl
oy

ee
s

8,
07

8,
50

0
!!!

!!!
!!

"
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!
1,

28
0,

90
0

!!!
(1

,9
00

)
!!!

!!!
!!!

!
3,

37
7,

00
0

!!!
!!!

!
(1

6,
10

0)
!!!

!!!
!!

59
1,

70
0

!!!
!!

"
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

2,
43

4,
60

0
!!!

!!!
(6

,9
00

)
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!

3,
74

5,
50

0
!!!

!!!
!!

(1
4,

00
0)

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!
19
,5
08
,2
00

!!!
!!!

(3
8,
90

0)
!!!
!!!
!!

Tr
an

sp
or
t!R

el
at
ed

!E
xp
en

di
tu
re

1,
47

7,
30

0
!!!

!!!
!!

"
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!
27

,2
00

!!!
!!!

!!!
"

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!

20
1,

20
0

!!!
!!!

!!!
!

"
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!
4,

60
0

!!!
!!!

!!!
!

"
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

49
,5

00
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
"

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!
10

,9
00

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!
"

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
1,
77
0,
70
0

!!!
!!!
!!!

"
!!!
!!!
!!!
!!!
!!!
!

Pr
em

is
es
!R
el
at
ed

!E
xp
en

di
tu
re

6,
55

4,
00

0
!!!

!!!
!!

"
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!
14

,3
00

!!!
!!!

!!!
"

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!

81
3,

70
0

!!!
!!!

!!!
!

80
0

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!

"
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!

"
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

67
5,

20
0

!!!
!!!

!!!
!

(1
,0

00
)

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!
1,

61
2,

60
0

!!!
!!!

!!
(2

0,
90

0)
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!

9,
66
9,
80
0

!!!
!!!
!!!

(2
1,
10

0)
!!!
!!!
!!

Su
pp

lie
s!
an

d!
Se
rv
ic
es

3,
98

7,
50

0
!!!

!!!
!!

1,
50

0
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!
1,

10
5,

20
0

!!!
(1

,5
00

)
!!!

!!!
!!!

!
1,

23
6,

20
0

!!!
!!!

!
4,

20
0

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

4,
90

0
!!!

!!!
!!!

!
"

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
2,

21
9,

40
0

!!!
!!!

(8
00

)
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!
6,

74
8,

50
0

!!!
!!!

!!
"

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
15
,3
01
,7
00

!!!
!!!

3,
40
0

!!!
!!!
!!!
!!!

Re
ch
ar
ge
s

1,
11

1,
70

0
!!!

!!!
!!

"
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!
11

,2
00

!!!
!!!

!!!
"

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!

29
,3

00
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
"

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!

"
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!

"
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

"
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!

"
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!

"
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!

"
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

1,
15
2,
20
0

!!!
!!!
!!!

"
!!!
!!!
!!!
!!!
!!!
!

D
eb

t!P
re
m
ia

"
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

"
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!
"

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!

"
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!

"
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!
"

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!
"

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
"

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!
"

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!
16

,7
00

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!
"

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
16
,7
00

!!!
!!!
!!!
!!!
!!

"
!!!
!!!
!!!
!!!
!!!
!

H
ou

si
ng
!B
en

ef
it
!P
ay
m
en

ts
"

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
"

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!

"
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!
"

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!
"

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!

"
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!

"
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

"
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!

"
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!

43
,2

53
,0

00
!!!

!!
"

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
43
,2
53
,0
00

!!!
!!!

"
!!!
!!!
!!!
!!!
!!!
!

In
te
re
st
!P
ay
m
en

ts
"

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
"

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!

"
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!
"

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!
"

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!

"
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!

"
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

"
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!

"
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!

3,
10

3,
90

0
!!!

!!!
!!

"
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

3,
10
3,
90
0

!!!
!!!
!!!

"
!!!
!!!
!!!
!!!
!!!
!

TO
TA

L!
EX

PE
N
D
IT
U
RE

21
,2

09
,0

00
!!!

!!!
1,

50
0

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!

2,
43

8,
80

0
!!!

(3
,4

00
)

!!!
!!!

!!!
!

5,
65

7,
40

0
!!!

!!!
!

(1
1,

10
0)

!!!
!!!

!!
60

1,
20

0
!!!

!!
"

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
5,

37
8,

70
0

!!!
!!!

(8
,7

00
)

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!
58

,4
91

,1
00

!!!
!!

(3
4,

90
0)

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!
93
,7
76
,2
00

!!!
!!!

(5
6,
60

0)
!!!
!!!
!!

IN
CO

M
E

Cu
st
om

er
!F
ee
s!
an

d!
Ch

ar
ge
s

(6
,4

16
,8

00
)

!!!
!!!

!
(7

,3
00

)
!!!

!!!
!!!

!
(6

07
,7

00
)

!!!
!!

"
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!
(2

,0
17

,6
00

)
!!!

!!
(1

2,
60

0)
!!!

!!!
!!

(3
,7

00
)

!!!
!!!

!!
"

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
(1

,0
70

,9
00

)
!!!

!!
(3

,2
00

)
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!

(5
,6

73
,4

00
)

!!!
!!!

(2
,0

00
)

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
(1
5,
79

0,
10

0)
!!!
!!

(2
5,
10

0)
!!!
!!!
!!

G
ov

er
nm

en
t!G

ra
nt
s

"
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

"
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!
(1

46
,7

00
)

!!!
!!

"
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!
(1

50
,4

00
)

!!!
!!!

!!!
"

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!

"
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!

"
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

(9
0,

20
0)

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!

"
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!

(4
6,

03
4,

70
0)

!!!
!

"
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

(4
6,
42

2,
00

0)
!!!
!!

"
!!!
!!!
!!!
!!!
!!!
!

In
te
re
st

(3
,9

00
)

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
"

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!

"
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!
"

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!

(2
00

)
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!
"

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!

"
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!

"
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

"
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!

"
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!

(1
89

,8
00

)
!!!

!!!
!!!

!
"

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
(1
93

,9
00

)
!!!
!!!
!!!
!!

"
!!!
!!!
!!!
!!!
!!!
!

O
th
er
!G
ra
nt
s!
an

d!
Co

nt
ri
bu

ti
on

s
(1

,5
50

,4
00

)
!!!

!!
"

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!

(1
3,

80
0)

!!!
!!!

!
"

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!
(4

75
,0

00
)

!!!
!!!

!
"

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!
"

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

"
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!

(9
96

,1
00

)
!!!

!!!
"

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!

(7
48

,9
00

)
!!!

!!!
!!

"
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!

(3
,7
84

,2
00

)
!!!
!!

"
!!!
!!!
!!!
!!!
!!!
!

Ca
pi
ta
l!F
in
an

ci
ng
!In

co
m
e

"
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!

"
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!
"

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
"

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!
"

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!

"
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!

"
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
"

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!
"

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!

"
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!
(1

50
,0

00
)

!!!
!!!

!!
"

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!
(1
50

,0
00

)
!!!
!!!
!!!

"
!!!
!!!
!!!
!!!
!!!
!

Re
ch
ar
ge
s

(1
0,

98
6,

20
0)

!!!
!!

"
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!
(1

04
,5

00
)

!!!
!!

"
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!
(5

2,
00

0)
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!
"

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!

"
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!

"
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

(3
5,

80
0)

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!

"
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!

(6
18

,3
00

)
!!!

!!!
!!!

!
"

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
(1
1,
79

6,
80

0)
!!!
!!

"
!!!
!!!
!!!
!!!
!!!
!

TO
TA

L!
IN
CO

M
E

(1
8,

95
7,

30
0)

!!!
!!

(7
,3

00
)

!!!
!!!

!!!
!

(8
72

,7
00

)
!!!

!!
"

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!

(2
,6

95
,2

00
)

!!!
!!

(1
2,

60
0)

!!!
!!!

!!
(3

,7
00

)
!!!

!!!
!!

"
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

(2
,1

93
,0

00
)

!!!
!!

(3
,2

00
)

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!
(5

3,
41

5,
10

0)
!!!

!
(2

,0
00

)
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

(7
8,
13

7,
00

0)
!!!
!!

(2
5,
10

0)
!!!
!!!
!!

N
ET
!A
PP

RO
PR

IA
TI
O
N
S

(2
,9

00
)

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!
"

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!

(2
7,

60
0)

!!!
!!!

!
"

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!
(2

3,
10

0)
!!!

!!!
!!!

"
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!

"
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
"

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!
60

,9
00

!!!
!!!

!!!
!

"
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!
2,

89
3,

50
0

!!!
!!!

"
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!

2,
90
0,
80
0

!!!
!!!
!

"
!!!
!!!
!!!
!!!
!!!
!

N
ET
!T
O
TA

L
2,
24
8,
80
0

!!!
!!!
!!

(5
,8
00

)
!!!
!!!
!!!
!

1,
53
8,
50
0

!!!
(3
,4
00

)
!!!
!!!
!!!
!

2,
93
9,
10
0

!!!
!!!

(2
3,
70

0)
!!!
!!!
!!

59
7,
50

0
!!!
!!

"
!!!
!!!
!!!
!!!
!!!

3,
24
6,
60
0

!!!
!!!

(1
1,
90

0)
!!!
!!!
!!!
!!

7,
96
9,
50
0

!!!
!!!
!!

(3
6,
90

0)
!!!
!!!
!!!
!!!
!

18
,5
40
,0
00

!!!
!!!

(8
1,
70

0)
!!!
!!!
!!

Re
so
ur
ce
s!
&
!C
or
po

ra
te
!

A
cc
ou

nt
s

En
vi
ro
nm

en
ta
l!S
er
vi
ce
s

G
ov
er
na

nc
e!
Se
rv
ic
es

H
ea
lt
h!
&
!H
ou

si
ng
!

Se
rv
ic
es

M
an

ag
em

en
t!T

ea
m

Re
ge
ne

ra
ti
on

!&
!

Pl
an

ni
ng

Page 40



!""#$%&

'()*+*

%,-./0.1%
23455%
&678#9%

%!:96;<%94%
=;9#%

(4>>?9>#"95%
@A6959;"7?"8%
A37#35B%

%C49;<%
%D;3?;":#%

EAF#35G#"7%0%
@H"7#35G#"7B%

! ! ! ! !
*"F?34">#"9;<%'#3F?:#5
"##$%&'(%)*&+,$-'&'(%. /01222)))))))))) 34156/)))))))))) 34156/)))))))))) 7013859))))))))))))
:;(.)<):$='.)>'?.'):@AB$@% 3/1222)))))))))) 3/1/3C)))))))))) 3/1/3C)))))))))) /3C))))))))))))))))
D?,)E?,F)*&+,$-'&'(%.)E,$G,?&&' 85C1222)))))))) /341C28)))))))) 61/5H)))))))))))))) //C1050)))))))) 73C41/389))))))))
I;.%,;J%)E#?AG,$@(K)*&+,$-'&'(%. 3/C1222)))))))) 4C15H/)))))))))) 4C15H/)))))))))) 7/413C59))))))))))
L'M;J#')N'('O?#. 0451222)))))))) 86133/)))))))))) CC01/33)))))))))) C4818/8)))))))) 7/2H16009))))))))
L'M;J#')P,?JF;(G)QA.%'& 32C1222)))))))) B)))))))))))))))) 32C12H4)))))))))) 32C12H4)))))))) H4))))))))))))))))))
P$;#'%)R$,F. 3/61222)))))))) 4513H8)))))))))) 4513H8)))))))))) 7/015C09))))))))))

)#;<9I%J%)465?"8%'#3F?:#5
I;.?S#'K)T?J;#;%;'.)U,?(%. 5641222)))))))) C241860)))))))) C241860)))))))) 78C416889))))))))
R?,&)V$&'.)QJM'&' 801222)))))))))) 831H56)))))))))) 831H56)))))))))) 7C1C3H9))))))))))))

K#8#"#3;9?4"%J%L<;""?"8
"&'(;%A)*&+,$-'&'(%. 831222)))))))))) B)))))))))))))))) B))))))))))))))) 78312229))))))))))
:$#K)Q%,''%)V$@.;(G)N'G'(',?%;$()Q;%')R$,F. 8431222)))))))) 3H81C8/)))))))) 3H81C8/)))))))) 7/H01H659))))))))
:,;(K#')D#$.')"WW$,K?S#')V$@.;(G).326)QJM'&' 521222)))))))))) 521222)))))))))) 521222)))))))))) B)))))))))))))))))
DM?%.O$,%M)U?,K'(. 315051222))))) B)))))))))))))))) B))))))))))))))) 73150512229)))))
*&+,$-;(G)X$,'J?&S'Y.)X?;()Q%,''%. 3/21222)))))))) 3105C)))))))))))) 01/8C)))))))))))))) 412/2)))))))))))) 733214529))))))))
>?(J?.%',)QZ@?,')N$@%'.) 318301222))))) 3130C158/))))) 31222)))))))))))))) 31306158/))))) 73H213659))))))))
>@('.;K')[?.% /C1222)))))))))) 3C1688)))))))))) 3C1688)))))))))) 7418609))))))))))))
X;KK#'%$()\?%@,')N'.',-').326)QJM'&' 331222)))))))))) B)))))))))))))))) B))))))))))))))) 73312229))))))))))
"#KJ#;WW')N$?K)D?(?#)Q;K')"JJ'..).326)QJM'&' /21222)))))))))) 3514/0)))))))))) 3514/0)))))))))) 7312089))))))))))))
];(G)Q%^R'##;(G%$()P',,?J')"WW$,K?S#')V$@.;(G).3 421222)))))))))) B)))))))))))))))) B))))))))))))))) 74212229))))))))))
"K?J%@.)P$+)_+)U,?(%. 3C41222)))))))) B)))))))))))))))) B))))))))))))))) 73C412229))))))))
X$,'J?&S')PV*/`)")L;'O)W$,)[,;J H8/1222)))))))) 3H142H)))))))))) 3H142H)))))))))) 7H3012469))))))))
N;-',.-;'O).326)QJM'&' 38/1222)))))))) 38/1H22)))))))) 38/1H22)))))))) H22))))))))))))))))
Q'?)<)N;-',)I'W'(J')R$,F. 8/C1222)))))))) 3H1352)))))))))) 01H48)))))))))))))) /31608)))))))))) 782818/09))))))))
P$@J?()D,$..;(G)];(G)Q%,''% 381222)))))))))) 416C4)))))))))))) 416C4)))))))))))) 7818H39))))))))))))

K#5463:#5
D$,+$,?%')E,$+',%A)R$,F. 314321222))))) 6441C36)))))))) 3231H44)))))))))) 523123C)))))))) 731325145C9)))))
*DP)QA.%'&.1)*(W,?.%,@J%@,')<)[Z@;+&'(% 8441222)))))))) 3H31868)))))))) 33318/5)))))))))) /C/1643)))))))) 73H618249))))))))

MNO.PN---%%%%% QN/P-N,R.%%%%% OMPN-MM%%%%%%%%%% /NQRPNQR-%%%%% @1N//MNR/-B%%%%%

7H812229))))))))) B)))))))))))))))) B)))))))))))))))))) B))))))))))))))) H81222)))))))))))
7/168012229)))) 73164/123/9)))) B)))))))))))))))))) 73164/123/9))) 4HH1455)))))))))

@,NRO-N---B%%%% @.NRM,N-.,B%%%% S%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%% @.NRM,N-.,B%%% MOPNMOO%%%%%%%%%

PN.QPN---%%%%% .NPPON,/M%%%%% OMPN-MM%%%%%%%%%% ,NRP1NQ/O%%%%% @/N/R.NR1,B%%%%%C49;<%T#9%L3483;>>#

2*T*K!U%VHT=%(!LWC!U%LKA2K!++*%+ATWCAKWT2%K*LAKC

C49;<%23455%L3483;>>#

23;"95%J%(4"93?X69?4"5
D?+;%?#)D$(%,;S@%;$(.)*(J$&'
D?+;%?#)U,?(%.)*(J$&'
C49;<%*$9#3";<%W":4>#%Y34>%23;"95%J%
(4"93?X69?4"5

Page 41



!

!""#$%&'()(
(

*+,-.,/(01#23415(62$27#8#$9(:1;71#33(<#";19(
=;1(>;$3&%#129&;$(?5(>2?&$#9(,@(=#?14215(*+,/(
<#";19(;A(>B&#A(CAA&D#1(E<#3;41D#3F!

!
,G( H$91;%4D9&;$(
(

"#$! %&'()! %*+$! *,! '-./01/$! *2! "-$.34-5! 6.2.7$8$20! -$941-$3! 0#.0! -$74:.-! 8*210*-127!
-$;*-03! <$! ;-$3$20$+! 0*! 6$8<$-3! *2! 0-$.34-5! ./01=101$3>! ! "#$3$! -$;*-03! ?1::! 2*-8.::5! <$!
;-$3$20$+!.,0$-!0#$!$2+!*,!@42$A!B$;0$8<$-A!C$/$8<$-!.2+!6.-/#!.3!;.-0!*,!0#$!%*42/1:D3!
;$-,*-8.2/$!8.2.7$8$20!,-.8$?*-E>!
!
%*42/1:! .;;-*=$+! 0#$! FGHIJHK! "-$.34-5! B0-.0$75A! ?#1/#! 12/*-;*-.0$3! 0#$! &2=$308$20!
B0-.0$75A!.0! 103!8$$0127!*2!FL!($<-4.-5!FGHI>! !"#13! -$;*-0!*40:12$3!./01=101$3!42+$-0.E$2! 12!
;4-34.2/$!*,!0#*3$!30-.0$71$3!+4-127!0#$!,12.2/1.:!5$.-!4;!0*!0#$!$2+!*,!M0-!N>!
!
"-$.34-5!8.2.7$8$20!13!.!0$/#21/.:!.-$.>!!"*!.33130!?10#!0#$!42+$-30.2+127!*,!0#13!-$;*-0A!.!
7:*33.-5! *,! 0$-83! /*88*2:5! 43$+! 12! "-$.34-5! 6.2.7$8$20! 13! .00./#$+! .0!Annex A>! ! &2!
.++101*2A!0#$!%*42/1::*-D3!O41+$!0*!P*/.:!O*=$-28$20!(12.2/$!.:3*!#.3!.!3$/01*2!*2!0-$.34-5!
.2+! /.3#! 8.2.7$8$20! .2+! .2! 4;+.0$+! O41+$! 13! 2*?! .=.1:.<:$! 0#-*47#! 0#$! 6$8<$-!
&2,*-8.01*2!3$/01*2!*2!0#$!&20-.2$0>!
(
!

(
*G( I488215J(K#2%L&$#(6#3327#3(

(
!! HD#L2$%&D( H$M#398#$93(Q!)! ,4-0#$-! RFGS!?.3! -$/$1=$+! 12! -$:.01*2! 0#$! /:.18!

?10#!0#$!&/$:.2+1/!T.2E!SB(>!"#13!-$;-$3$203!HU!*,!0#$!/:.18!?10#!*2:5!F>VKU!
-$8.12127!0*!<$!/*::$/0$+>!!(
(

!! N;11;O&$7(!D9&M&9&#3(Q! 2*! 2$?! <*--*?127! #.3! <$$2! 42+$-0.E$2! +4-127! 0#$!
,1-30!94.-0$-!*,!0#$!5$.->(

(
!! H$M#398#$9( !D9&M&9&#3( Q! 12=$308$20! 120$-$30! 13! RFS! .#$.+! *,! 0.-7$0! ,*-! 0#$!

0#1-+!94.-0$->!(
(
(
(

PG( QD;$;8&D(4"%29#((provided by Capital Asset Services)(
(
After strong UK GDP growth in 2013 at an annual rate 2.7%, and then in 2014 0.7% in Q1, 
0.9% in Q2 2014 (annual rate 3.2% in Q2), Q3 has seen growth fall back to 0.7% in the 
quarter and to an annual rate of 2.6%.  It therefore appears that growth has eased since the 
surge in the first half of 2014 leading to a downward revision of forecasts for 2015 and 2016, 
albeit that growth will still remain strong by UK standards.  For this recovery to become more 
balanced and sustainable in the longer term, the recovery needs to move away from 
dependence on consumer expenditure and the housing market to exporting, and particularly 
of manufactured goods, both of which need to substantially improve on their recent lacklustre 
performance.  This overall strong growth has resulted in unemployment falling much faster 
than expected. The MPC is now focusing on how quickly slack in the economy is being used 
up. It is also particularly concerned that the squeeze on the disposable incomes of 
consumers should be reversed by wage inflation rising back significantly above the level of 
inflation in order to ensure that the recovery will be sustainable.  There also needs to be a 

Page 42



!

major improvement in labour productivity, which has languished at dismal levels since 2008, 
to support increases in pay rates.  Unemployment is expected to keep on its downward trend 
and this is likely to eventually feed through into a return to significant increases in wage 
growth at some point during the next three years.  However, just how much those future 
increases in pay rates will counteract the depressive effect of increases in Bank Rate on 
consumer confidence, the rate of growth in consumer expenditure and the buoyancy of the 
housing market, are areas that will need to be kept under regular review. 

Also encouraging has been the sharp fall in inflation (CPI), reaching 1.0% in November, the 
lowest rate since September 2002.  Forward indications are that inflation is likely to remain 
around or under 1% for the best part of a year.  The return to strong growth has helped lower 
forecasts for the increase in Government debt over the last year but monthly public sector 
deficit figures during 2014 have disappointed until November.  The autumn statement, 
therefore, had to revise the speed with which the deficit is forecast to be eliminated. 

The U.S. Federal Reserve ended its monthly asset purchases in October 2014. GDP growth 
rates (annualised) for Q2 and Q3 of 4.6% and 5.0% have been stunning and hold great 
promise for strong growth going forward.  It is therefore confidently predicted that the first 
increase in the Fed. rate will occur by the middle of 2015.    

The Eurozone is facing an increasing threat from deflation.  In November the inflation rate fell 
to 0.3%.  However, this is an average for all EZ countries and includes some countries with 
negative rates of inflation.  Accordingly, the ECB did take some rather limited action in June 
and September to loosen monetary policy in order to promote growth and is currently 
expected to embark on quantitative easing early in 2015 to counter this threat of deflation 
and to stimulate growth. 
(

-G( HD#L2$%&D(H$M#398#$93(R"%29#(
!
"#$-$!?.3!.! ,4-0#$-! +130-1<401*2! .33*/1.0$+!?10#! 0#$!%*42/1:D3! *2:5! *4030.2+127! /:.18! W?10#!
SB(XA! ?#1/#! $94.0$+! 0*! HU! *,! 0#$! /:.18! WRFGSX>! "#$! *4030.2+127!8*2$5! .33*/1.0$+! ?10#!
O:1021-! 13! 3:17#0:5!+1,,$-$20! 12! 0#.0! 0#$!*-1712.:! /:.18!#.3!<$$2! -$;.1+!<40! 13!<$127!#$:+! 12!.2!
&/$:.2+1/!<.2E!$3/-*?!.//*420A!2*2$!*,!?#1/#!/.2!<$!-$;.0-1.0$+!.3!5$0>! !"#$3$!,42+3!.-$!
#$:+!12!&/$:.2+1/!S-*24-!W&BSXA!#*?$=$-Y!10!13!:1E$:5!0#.0!3*8$!,4-0#$-!.+Z4308$20!0*!0#$1-!=.:4$!
12!R!30$-:127!?1::!<$!2$$+$+A!12!/:*3127!0#$!.//*4203>!
!

/G( N;11;O&$7(!D9&M&9&#3(
!

[*!2$?!<*--*?127!?.3!42+$-0.E$2!+4-127!M0-!N>!"#$!,*::*?127!7-.;#!3#*?3!0#$!'\PT!-.0$3!
,*-!0#$!:.30!0#-$$!94.-0$-3!$2+127!NH!C$/$8<$-!FGHI>!!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!

Page 43



!

!
!
Q21L5(<#"258#$9(;A()#?9(
],,1/$-3! /*20124$! 0*! 8*210*-! ;*0$201.:! 3.=127! *;;*-042101$3! .33*/1.0$+! ?10#! 0#$! $.-:5!
-$;.58$20!*,!$^130127!+$<0A! 0.E127! 120*!.//*420! 0#$!;-$81483!*-!+13/*4203!.33*/1.0$+!?10#!
$.-:5! -$;.58$20!.2+! 0#$!;-*Z$/0$+!/*30!*,! -$,12.2/127!*-! :*33! 12! 12=$308$20! 120$-$30>! ! ! ![*!
-$.3*2.<:$!*;;*-042101$3!.-*3$!12!M0-!N>!
!
!

SG( H$M#39&$7(!D9&M&9&#3(
(

)3! :.1+! +*?2! 12! 0#$! .;;-*=$+! &2=$308$20! B0-.0$75A! 0#$! .18! 13! 0*! ;-1*-1013$! 3$/4-105! .2+!
:1941+105!*,!0#$!%*42/1:D3!12=$308$203>!!"#13!13!0*!$234-$!0#.0!0#$!%*42/1:!#.3!34,,1/1$20!/.3#!0*!
34;;*-0!103!<4312$33A!<40!.:3*!0*!8121813$!.25!,4-0#$-!/#.2/$!*,!.!/*420$-;.-05!,.1:127!.2+!0#$!
%*42/1:!2*0!<$127!.<:$!0*!-$8*=$!.25!/.3#!+$;*310$+>!
!
"#$! 18;./0!*,!<4312$33! -.0$3! -$0$201*2!#.3!#.+!.!8.-E$+!;*3101=$! 18;./0!*2! 0#$!%*42/1:D3!
/.3#!,:*?!3*!,.-!0#13!5$.->!
!
)::! 12=$308$20!./01=105!#.3!<$$2! 12! :12$!?10#! 0#$!.;;-*=$+!"-$.34-5!B0-.0$75!,*-!FGHIJHK>!)!
,4::!:130!*,!0#$!12=$308$203!.0!0#$!$2+!*,!M0-!N!13!3#*?2!<$:*?!W".<:$!L>HX_!
!
".<:$!L>H!%*420$-;.-05!<.:.2/$3!
!

C9B#1(H$M#398#$93 C"#$&$7 6&$ 62' >L;3&$7
H$%&D29&M#(
<29#

>484L29&M#(
H$9#1#39

T T T T T
%.::_!`TB G G G G G>FKU G
%.::_!P.2/.3#1-$!%*4205!%*42/1: aAabHAGGG HANVLAGGG HFAGGGAGGG NAaNVAGGG G>FKU HFAGaF
%.::_!B=$23E.!c.2+$:3<.2E$2 KAbIIAGGG KAKGGAGGG KAbIIAGGG KAKLaAGGG G>NGU HKAHGb
C6)C( G G FAFFKAGGG HALNaAGGG G>FKU NGL
O*=$-28$20!P1941+105!66( LAGGGAGGG LAGGGAGGG LAGGGAGGG LAGGGAGGG G>FVU HHAaFK
P1941+105!(1-30!66(> LAGGGAGGG LAGGGAGGG LAGGGAGGG LAGGGAGGG G>IGU HVAbaH
&2317#0!66( LAGGGAGGG LAGGGAGGG LAGGGAGGG LAGGGAGGG G>NVU HLAKIb
P:*5+3 LAGGGAGGG LAGGGAGGG LAGGGAGGG LAGGGAGGG G>LGU FKAKHb
B4<d0*0.: NaAaNKAGGG NKAGINAGGG bbANVH !

!
"#$! ,*::*?127! 7-.;#! +13;:.53! 0#$! +1,,$-$20! 12=$308$20! ;-*+4/03! 43$+! <5! 0#$! %*42/1:>! "#$!
8.Z*-105! *,! 0#$!%*42/1:D3! <.:.2/$3! .-$! #$:+! ?10#12! 1230.20! .//$33!66(D3! *-! /.::! .//*4203>!
"#13! 13! ;.-0:5! <$/.43$! 0#$-$! .-$! ;-4+$201.:! /*20-*:3! 0#.0! $234-$! .! /$-0.12! ;$-/$20.7$! 13!
188$+1.0$:5! .=.1:.<:$! .2+! .:3*! 0#$-$! 13! *2:5! .! 38.::! ;**:! *,! /*420$-;.-01$3! 0#.0!8$$0! 0#$!
%*42/1:D3!/-$+10!/-10$-1.!,*-! ,1^$+!0$-8!+$;*3103>!]0#$-!eS!<.2E3A! 0#.0!8$$0!0#$!/-10$-1.!34/#!
.3!cBT%A!-$941-$!84/#!:.-7$-!12=$308$20!.2+!8.-E$0!0#$83$:=$3!.0!84/#!:.-7$-!123010401*2.:!
12=$30*-3!*-!/*-;*-.01*23>!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!

Page 44



!

O-.;#!L>H!&2=$308$20!<.:.2/$3!
!

!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
"?*! RN6! ,1^$+! 0$-8! 12=$308$203! #.=$! <$$2! ;:./$+! ?10#! P:*5+3! T.2E! ,*-! .! ;$-1*+! *,! N!
8*20#3!.0!.!-.0$!*,!G>KVU>!!"#$!,1-30!8.04-$3!*2!Gb!@.24.-5!.2+!0#$!3$/*2+!*2!Hb!@.24.-5A!
.2+!10!13!.201/1;.0$+!0#.0!0#$3$!?1::!<$!12=$30$+!,*-!L!8*20#3!4;*2!8.04-105!.2+!.00-./0!G>VU!
120$-$30>!!P:*5+3!13!301::!;.-0!2.01*2.:13$+!.2+!0#$-$,*-$!/*20124$3!0*!8$$0!0#$!/-10$-1.!*,!f]0#$-!
&23010401*23D! .2+! 0#$! .33*/1.0$+! :18103! 30.0$+! ?10#12! 0#$! "-$.34-5! 6.2.7$8$20! B0-.0$75!
W-$;*-0$+!0*!%*42/1:!*2!FL0#!($<-4.-5!FGHIX>!
!
"#$!-$/$20:5!*;$2$+!.//*420!?10#!B=$23E.!c.2+$:3<.2E$2!*,,$-3!.!+$.:127!,./1:105!?#1/#!13!
.=.1:.<:$!4201:!N!;8A!?#1/#!13!:.0$-!0#.2!.::!*0#$-!/*420$-;.-01$3!/4--$20:5!43$+>!"#13!$2.<:$3!
0#$!%*42/1:!0*!3?$$;!0#$!/484:.01=$!<.:.2/$!#$:+!?10#!"#$!%**;$-.01=$!T.2E!0*!$234-$!0#13!
<.:.2/$!13!.3!/:*3$!0*!g$-*!<5!0#$!$2+!*,!0#$!+.5>!
!
!
I488215(;A(N4%7#9(:;3&9&;$(2$%(:#1A;182$D#!
!
&2!0$-83!*,!;$-,*-8.2/$!.7.1230!$^0$-2.:!<$2/#8.-E3A!0#$!-$04-2!*2!12=$308$203!/*8;.-$+!
0*!0#$!V!+.5!P&T&C!.2+!<.2E!-.0$3!*=$-!0#$!5$.-!0*!+.0$!13!.3!,*::*?3_!

!
T.3$!`.0$! ! ! ! ! G>KGGU!
V!+.5!P&T&C! ! ! ! ! G>NKIU!
P.2/.30$-!%105!%*42/1:!12=$308$203! ! G>NVKU!

!
"#$!-$04-2!13!<$:*?!<.3$!-.0$!.2+!.<*=$!0#$!V!+.5!P&T&C!<$2/#8.-E>!!&2=$308$20!-$04-23!12!
;$-/$20.7$! 0$-83!.-$! :*?$-! 0#.2! 0#*3$!43$+! 12! 0#$!<4+7$0A!<40! :.-7$-!/.3#!<.:.2/$3!#.=$!
2$7.0$+!0#13!18;./0>!
!
&2!0$-83!*,!;$-,*-8.2/$!.7.1230!<4+7$0A!0#$!+$0.1:3!.-$!.3!,*::*?3_!
!

! N4%7#9(9;(
)29#(
T+++U3(

!D942L3(9;(
)29#(
T+++U3(

V21&2$D#(
(

T+++U3(
HD#L2$%&D(>1#%&93( FH! FH! G!
>23B(H$9#1#39( bV! bb! WFX!
0;92L( ,,W( ,*+( E*F(

!

Page 45



!

!
&2=$308$20!-$04-23A!$^/:4+127!<.:.2/$3!#$:+! 12!0#$!&/$:.2+1/!.//*420A!$^/$$+!0#$!<4+7$0$+!
:$=$:>!"#13!13!+4$!0*!/.3#!<.:.2/$3!<$127!:.-7$-!0#.2!$^;$/0$+!.3!.!-$34:0!*,!+$:.53!?10#12!0#$!
/.;10.:!;-*7-.88$!.2+!,-*8!<4312$33!-.0$3!-$0$201*2A!8$201*2$+!$.-:1$->!
!
!

@G( <&3X(82$27#8#$9(
!

"#$-$!#.3!<$$2!2*!8.0$-1.:!/#.27$! 12! 0#$!;*:1/5!*-!*;$-.01*2!*,! 0#$! 0-$.34-5! ,42/01*2!*=$-!
0#$!94.-0$-A!12!-$/*72101*2!*,!0#$!/*231+$-.<:$!42/$-0.1205!0#.0!$^1303!?10#12!0#$!$/*2*85!.2+!
,12.2/1.:! 3$/0*->! "#$! =1$?! 13A! 0#$-$,*-$A! 0#.0! -$31+4.:! /*420$-;.-05! -13E! $^;*34-$! ,*-!
12=$308$20!-$8.123!:*?>!!
!
"#$!<177$30! 18;./0!*2! 12=$308$20!-$04-23!#.3!<$$2!0#$!3#*-0.7$!*,!3410.<:$!/*420$-;.-01$3!
0#.0! ,4:,1:! 0#$!%*42/1:D3!.;;-*=$+!/-$+10! /-10$-1.A! $3;$/1.::5!?10#! /.3#!<.:.2/$3!<$127!#17#$-!
0#.2! $^;$/0$+>! "#$! B0-.0$75! ,*-! HKJHL! ?1::! .++-$33! 0#$3$! -$30-1/01*23! <5! .+*;0127! .! 2$?!
8$0#*+*:*75!<40!-$0.12127!.!:*?d-13E!.;;$010$>!!

!
"#$!,42+3!<$127!#$:+!12!&/$:.2+!301::!$^;*3$!0#$!%*42/1:!0*!$^/#.27$!-.0$!-13E3A!<40!0#$3$!.-$!
42.=*1+.<:$>! ! &0! 13!.201/1;.0$+!0#.0!3*8$!,12.2/1.:!;-*=131*2!?1::!<$!8.+$!,*-!/*=$-127!0#$3$!
-13E3A!12!;-$;.-127!0#13!5$.-D3!.//*4203>!
!
"#$-$!13!,12.2/1.:!-13E!.00./#$+!0*!0#$!:*27$-!0$-8!+$<0!;*-0,*:1*A!.33*/1.0$+!?10#!120$-$30!-.0$!
$^;*34-$!<40!.::!*,!0#$!+$<0!13!*2!,1^$+!120$-$30!.2+!0#$-$!#.3!<$$2!2*!/#.27$!0*!0#13!*=$-!0#$!
94.-0$->! !P*?! 12=$308$20! -$04-23!8$.2! 0#.0!43127!/.3#! 12=$30$+! 0*! -$;.5!+$<0!/.2!.;;$.-!
8*-$!.00-./01=$A!<40!0#$!%*42/1:! 13!2*0!5$0! 12!.!/:$.-!$2*47#!;*3101*2!0*!<$!,*::*?127!34/#!.!
30-.0$75>!
!

%.3#!<.:.2/$3!#$:+!?10#!"#$!%**;$-.01=$!T.2E!/*20124$! 0*!<$!8*210*-$+!*2!.!+.1:5!<.313!
,*::*?127!0#$!<.2ED3!/-1313!12!-$:.01*2!0*!103!,42+127!7.;Y!0#13!?1::!<$!42+$-0.E$2!4201:!34/#!018$!
.3!0#$!0-.23,$-!0*!0#$!%*42/1:D3!2$?!<.2EA![.0?$30A!13!/*8;:$0$>!!

!

WG( :14%#$9&2L(H$%&D29;13(
!
"#$3$!12+1/.0*-3!.-$!;-$3/-1<$+!<5!0#$!'-4+$201.:!%*+$!0*!#$:;!+$8*230-.0$!0#.0!0#$!%*42/1:!
/.2! ,12.2/$! 103!+$<0!.2+!#.=$! ,42+3!.=.1:.<:$!?#$2!2$$+$+>!"#$!;-4+$201.:! 12+1/.0*-3!.-$!
:130$+!12!Annex B>!

!
!

Page 46



!

)22$^!)!
01#23415(62$27#8#$9(YL;33215(;A(0#183(

!
!! !$$4&95!Q!8$0#*+!*,! -$;.5127!.! :*.2!?#$-$! 0#$!;.58$20!.8*420! -$8.123!421,*-8! 0#-*47#*40!

0#$!:1,$!*,!0#$!:*.2A!0#$-$,*-$!0#$!3;:10!=.-1$3!34/#!0#.0!0#$!;-*;*-01*2!*,!0#$!;.58$20!-$:.0127!0*!
0#$!;-12/1;.:!12/-$.3$3!.3!0#$!.8*420!*,!120$-$30!+$/-$.3$3>!

!
!! >H:=!(Q!0#$!%#.-0$-$+!&2301040$!*,!'4<:1/!(12.2/$!.2+!)//*420.2/5A!13!0#$!;-*,$331*2.:!<*+5!,*-!

.//*420.203! ?*-E127! 12! P*/.:! O*=$-28$20! .2+! *0#$-! ;4<:1/! 3$/0*-! *-7.213.01*23A! .:3*! 0#$!
30.2+.-+!3$00127!*-7.213.01*2!,*-!P*/.:!O*=$-28$20!(12.2/$>!

!
!! >2LL(2DD;4$9(Q!1230.20!.//$33!+$;*310!.//*420>!
!
!! >;4$9#1"2195(Q!.2!123010401*2!W$>7>!.!<.2EX!?10#!?#*8!.!<*--*?127!*-!12=$308$20!0-.23./01*2!13!

8.+$>!
!
!! >1#%&9(<29&$7(Q! 13!.2!*;121*2!*2! 0#$!/-$+10d?*-0#12$33!*,!.2! 123010401*2A!<.3$+!*2! Z4+7$8$203!

.<*40!0#$!,404-$!30.043!*,!0#.0!123010401*2>!!&0!13!<.3$+!*2!.25!12,*-8.01*2!.=.1:.<:$!-$7.-+127!0#$!
123010401*2_!;4<:13#$+! -$34:03A!B#.-$#*:+$-3D! -$;*-03A! -$;*-03! ,-*8! 0-.+127!;.-02$-3A! .2+!.:3*!.2!
.2.:5313! *,! 0#$! $2=1-*28$20! 12!?#1/#! 0#$! 123010401*2! *;$-.0$3! W$>7>! 103! #*8$! $/*2*85A! .2+! 103!
8.-E$0!3$/0*-X>!!"#$!8.12!-.0127!.7$2/1$3!.-$!(10/#A!B0.2+.-+!.2+!'**-D3A!.2+!6**+5D3>!!"#$5!
.2.:53$!/-$+10!?*-0#12$33!42+$-!,*4-!#$.+1273_!

!
!! IB;19(0#18(<29&$7!Q! 0#$!;$-/$1=$+!.<1:105!*,! 0#$!*-7.213.01*2!0*!8$$0! 103!*<:17.01*23! 12!

0#$!3#*-0!0$-8A!0#13!?1::!<$!<.3$+!*2!8$.34-$3!*,!:1941+105>!
!

!! Z;$7(0#18(<29&$7(Q! 0#$!.<1:105!*,! 0#$!*-7.213.01*2( 0*! -$;.5! 103!+$<03! 12! 0#$! :*27! 0$-8A!
<.3$+!*2!*;121*23!-$7.-+127!,404-$!30.<1:105A!$>7>!103!$^;*34-$!0*!f-13E5D!8.-E$03>!
!

!! H$%&M&%42L.=&$2$D&2L(I91#$79B(<29&$7(Q!.!8$.34-$! *,! .2! 123010401*2D3! 3*42+2$33!*2!.!
30.2+d.:*2$!<.313!<.3$+!*2!103!30-4/04-$A!;.30!;$-,*-8.2/$!.2+!/-$+10!;-*,1:$>!
!

!! Z#72L( I4"";19( <29&$7( Q! .! =1$?! *,! 0#$! :1E$:1#**+A! 12! 0#$! /.3$! *,! .! ,12.2/1.:! 123010401*2!
,.1:127A! 0#.0! 103! *<:17.01*23!?*4:+! <$!8$0A! 12! ?#*:$! *-! ;.-0A! <5! 103! 3#.-$#*:+$-3A! /$20-.:!
<.2EA!*-!2.01*2.:!7*=$-28$20>!

!
"#$!-.0127!.7$2/1$3!/*230.20:5!8*210*-!12,*-8.01*2!-$/$1=$+!-$7.-+127!,12.2/1.:!123010401*23A!.2+!
?1::!.8$2+!0#$!/-$+10!-.01273!.33172$+!.3!2$/$33.-5>!

!! )6!)=(2$%(9B#()6C([("#$!C6)C(!13!0#$!fC$<0!6.2.7$8$20!)//*420!C$;*310!(./1:105DY!0#13!13!
#17#:5!3$/4-$!,1^$+!0$-8!+$;*310!.//*420!?10#!0#$!C$<0!6.2.7$8$20!],,1/$!WC6]XA!;.-0!*,!c$-!
6.Z$305D3!"-$.34-5>(
(

!! QH:( [(h94.:! &230.:8$203! *,! '-12/1;.:A! .! 05;$! *,! :*.2! ?#$-$! $./#! ;.58$20! 12/:4+$3! .2! $94.:!
.8*420!12!-$3;$/0!*,!:*.2!;-12/1;.:A!0#$-$,*-$!0#$!120$-$30!+4$!?10#!$./#!;.58$20!-$+4/$3!.3!0#$!
;-12/1;.:!13!$-*+$+A!.2+!3*!0#$!0*0.:!.8*420!-$+4/$3!?10#!$./#!1230.:8$20>!

!
!! Y&L93! Q! 0#$! 2.8$! 71=$2! 0*! <*2+3! 1334$+! <5! 0#$! e! S! O*=$-28$20>! ! O1:03! .-$! 1334$+! <$.-127!

120$-$30!.0!.!3;$/1,1$+!-.0$A!#*?$=$-! 0#$5!.-$! 0#$2! 0-.+$+!*2! 0#$!8.-E$03! :1E$!3#.-$3!.2+! 0#$1-!
=.:4$! -13$3!*-! ,.::3! .//*-+127:5>! ! "#$!i1$:+!*2!.!71:0! 13! 0#$! 120$-$30! ;.1+!+1=1+$+!<5! 0#$!6.-E$0!
j.:4$!*,!0#.0!71:0>!
h>7>!.(NG!5$.-!71:0!13!1334$+!12!HbbI!.0!RHA!<$.-127!120$-$30!*,!aU>!!&2!Hbbb!0#$!8.-E$0!=.:4$!*,!
0#$!71:0!13!RH>IK>!!"#$!51$:+!*2!0#.0!71:0!13!/.:/4:.0$+!.3!aUJH>IK!k!K>KU>!!!
B$$!.:3*!'\PT>!
!

Page 47



!

!! ZHNH)! Q! "#$! P*2+*2! &20$-dT.2E!T1+!`.0$A! 0#$! -.0$!?#1/#! <.2E3!?*4:+! #.=$! 0*! <1+! 0*! <*--*?!
,42+3!,-*8!*0#$-!<.2E3!,*-!.!71=$2!;$-1*+>!!"#$!*,,1/1.:!-.0$!13!;4<:13#$+!<5!0#$!T.2E!*,!h27:.2+!
.0!HH.8!$./#!+.5!<.3$+!*2!0-.+$3!4;!0*!0#.0!018$>!

!
!! ZHNC<( Q! "#$! P*2+*2! &20$-dT.2E!],,$-! `.0$A! 0#$! -.0$! .0! ?#1/#! <.2E3! ?10#! 34-;:43! ,42+3! .-$!

*,,$-127!0*!:$2+!0#$8!0*!*0#$-!<.2E3A!.7.12!;4<:13#$+!.0!HH.8!$./#!+.5>!
!
!! Z&\4&%&95(Q!`$:.0$3!0*!0#$!.8*420!*,!-$.+1:5!.=.1:.<:$!*-!3#*-0!0$-8!12=$308$20!8*2$5!?#1/#!/.2!

<$!43$+!,*-!$10#$-!+.5!0*!+.5!*-!42,*-$3$$2!$^;$23$3>!(*-!$^.8;:$!%.::!)//*4203!.::*?!1230.20!
+.1:5!.//$33!0*!12=$30$+!,42+3>!!

!
!! 62941&95(Q!"5;$!*,! :*.2!?#$-$!*2:5!;.58$203!*,! 120$-$30!.-$!8.+$!+4-127! 0#$! :1,$!*,! 0#$! :*.2A!

?10#!0#$!0*0.:!.8*420!*,!;-12/1;.:!,.::127!+4$!.0!0#$!$2+!*,!0#$!:*.2!;$-1*+>!
!
!! 6;$#5(621X#9(=4$%( E66=F(Q!"5;$!*,! 12=$308$20!?#$-$! 0#$!%*42/1:!;4-/#.3$3!.!3#.-$!*,!.!

/.3#! ,42+! 0#.0! 8.E$3! 3#*-0! 0$-8! +$;*3103! ?10#! .! <-*.+! -.27$! *,! #17#! 94.:105! /*420$-;.-01$3>!
"#$3$! .-$! #17#:5! -$74:.0$+! 12! 0$-83! *,! .=$-.7$! :$270#! *,! +$;*310! .2+! /*420$-;.-05! 94.:105A! 0*!
$234-$!)))!-.0$+!30.043>!!

!
!! :;L&D5( 2$%( I9129#75( );D48#$93( Q! +*/48$203! -$941-$+! <5! 0#$! %&'()! %*+$! *,! '-./01/$! *2!

"-$.34-5! 6.2.7$8$20! 12! P*/.:! )40#*-101$3>! ! "#$3$! 3$0! *40! 0#$! ,-.8$?*-E! ,*-! 0-$.34-5!
8.2.7$8$20!*;$-.01*23!+4-127!0#$!5$.->!

!!
!! :4?L&D(];1X3(Z;2$3(N;21%(E:]ZNF!Q!.!/$20-.:!7*=$-28$20!.7$2/5!;-*=1+127! :*27!.2+!3#*-0!

0$-8! :*.23! 0*!P*/.:!)40#*-101$3>! !`.0$3!.-$! 3$0! +.1:5! .0! .!8.-712!*=$-! 0#$!O1:0! 51$:+! W3$$!O1:03!
.<*=$X>! !P*.23!8.5!<$! 0.E$2!.0! ,1^$+!*-!=.-1.<:$! -.0$3!.2+!.3!)224105A!6.04-105A!*-!h&'! :*.23!
W3$$!3$;.-.0$!+$,12101*23X!*=$-!;$-1*+3!*,!4;!0*!,1,05!5$.-3>!!(12.2/127!13!.:3*!.=.1:.<:$!,-*8!0#$!
8*2$5!8.-E$03A!#*?$=$-!<$/.43$!*,!103!2.04-$!0#$!'\PT!13!7$2$-.::5!.<:$!0*!*,,$-!<$00$-!0$-83>!

!
!! >2"&92(!33#9(I#1M&D#3((Q!.-$!0#$!%105!%*42/1:D3!"-$.34-5!6.2.7$8$20!.+=13*-3>!!!!"#$5!;-*=1+$!

.+=1/$!*2!<*--*?127!30-.0$75A! 12=$308$20!30-.0$75A!.2+!=$00127!*,! 12=$308$20!/*420$-;.-01$3A! 12!

.++101*2!0*!.+!#*/!741+.2/$!0#-*47#*40!0#$!5$.->!
!
!! ^&#L%!Q!3$$!O1:03!
(
(
6$8<$-3!8.5!.:3*!?13#!0*!8.E$!-$,$-$2/$!0*!The Councillor’s Guide to Local Government Finance. 

Page 48



!

!$$#'(N(

:<R)Q_0H!Z(H_)H>!0C<I(`(Z!_>!I0Q<(>H0^(>CR_>HZ(

(

*+,P.,- *+,-.,/ *+,/.,S *+,S.,@ *+,@.,W
Ta+++ Ta+++ Ta+++ Ta+++ Ta+++

!==C<)!NHZH0^

:H(,J( h3018.0$3!*,!-.01*!*,!,12.2/127!/*303!0*!2$0!-$=$24$!30-$.8 [*2!d!c`) LI>IU HI>aU HV>GU HV>GU HV>aU
c`) FN>NU FF>LU FF>GU FH>HU FG>NU
]=$-.:: IF>VU Ha>FU Hb>NU Ha>aU Ha>bU

:H(*J )/04.:!-.01*!*,!,12.2/127!/*30!0*!2$0!-$=$24$!30-$.8 `$;*-0$+!.,0$-!$./#!,12.2/1.:!5$.-!$2+

:H(PJ dRHa>NL dRH>FL dRHK>FI RV>FF RN>FK

db>IU dG>LU dV>KU N>KU H>KU

:H(P!J <#"258#$9(:#1&;%
/(^#213 ,+(^#213 */(^#213

&2/-$.3$!12!%*42/1:!".^!WRX RI>aN RF>KV RH>Fb
&2/-$.3$!12!%*42/1:!".^!WUX F>IVU H>NHU G>aKU

:H(-J
h3018.0$3!*,!0#$!12/-$8$20.:!18;./0!*,!%.;10.:!&2=$308$20!
*2!c*43127!`$203

[1: [1: [1: [1: [1:

>!:H0!Z(Qb:Q_)H0R<Q

:H(/J h3018.0$3!*,!/.;10.:!$^;$2+104-$ [*2!d!c`) HKAbKG!!!!!!!!!!! bAaFG!!!!!!!!!!!!! aAHHG!!!!!!!!!!!!! KAVbG!!!!!!!!!!!!! IAVGG!!!!!!!!!!!!!
c`) IAFaK!!!!!!!!!!!!! IAbLV!!!!!!!!!!!!! KAHFN!!!!!!!!!!!!! IAaaF!!!!!!!!!!!!! IAaaF!!!!!!!!!!!!!
"*0.: FGAFNK!!!!!!!!!!! HIAVaV!!!!!!!!!!! HNAFNN!!!!!!!!!!! HGALVF!!!!!!!!!!! bAKaF!!!!!!!!!!!!!

:H(SJ )/04.:!/.;10.:!$^;$2+104-$

:H(@J h3018.0$3!*,!%.;10.:!(12.2/127!`$941-$8$20 [*2!d!c`) NNAbVL!!!!!!!!!!! NKAbGF!!!!!!!!!!! NaAaNI!!!!!!!!!!! NbANba!!!!!!!!!!! NaANKN!!!!!!!!!!!
c`) IIAIVN!!!!!!!!!!! INAINF!!!!!!!!!!! IFANbH!!!!!!!!!!! IHANIb!!!!!!!!!!! IGANGa!!!!!!!!!!!
"*0.: VaAIIb!!!!!!!!!!! VbANNI!!!!!!!!!!! aHAFFK!!!!!!!!!!! aGAVIa!!!!!!!!!!! VaALLH!!!!!!!!!!!

:H(WJ )/04.:!%.;10.:!(12.2/127!`$941-$8$20

Qb0Q<_!Z()QN0

:H(cJ )40#*-13$+!P1810
!!!!)40#*-13$+!P1810!,*-!T*--*?127 bKAGGG!!!!!!!!!!! bKAGGG!!!!!!!!!!! bKAGGG!!!!!!!!!!! bVAGGG!!!!!!!!!!! bLAGGG!!!!!!!!!!!
!!!!)40#*-13$+!P1810!,*-!]0#$-!P*27!"$-8!P1.<1:101$3 HAGGG!!!!!!!!!!!!! HAGGG!!!!!!!!!!!!! HAGGG!!!!!!!!!!!!! HAGGG!!!!!!!!!!!!! HAGGG!!!!!!!!!!!!!
!!!!)40#*-13$+!P1810!,*-!h^0$-2.:!C$<0 bLAGGG!!!!!!!!!!! bLAGGG!!!!!!!!!!! bLAGGG!!!!!!!!!!! baAGGG!!!!!!!!!!! bVAGGG!!!!!!!!!!!

:H(,+J h^0$-2.:!C$<0_!];$-.01*2.:!T*42+.-5 VaAFFL!!!!!!!!!!! VbAHHH!!!!!!!!!!! aHAGGF!!!!!!!!!!! aGAKFK!!!!!!!!!!! VaAINa!!!!!!!!!!!

:H(,,J )/04.:!$^0$-2.:!+$<0 `$;*-0$+!.,0$-!$./#!,12.2/1.:!5$.-!$2+

:H(,*J c`)!:1810!*2!12+$<0$+2$33

:<R)Q_>Q

:H(,PJ "-$.34-5!6.2.7$8$20_!.+*;01*2!*,!%&'()!/*+$!*,!'-./01/$

:H(,-J [$0!+$<0!.2+!0#$!/.;10.:!,12.2/127!-$941-$8$20

LaAaGG!!!!!!!!!!! LVAKVH!!!!!!!!!!! LLAIHV!!!!!!!!!!! LKAFIb!!!!!!!!!!! LIAFGa!!!!!!!!!!!
%(` VaAIIb!!!!!!!!!!! VbANNI!!!!!!!!!!! aHAFFK!!!!!!!!!!! aGAVIa!!!!!!!!!!! VaALLH!!!!!!!!!!!
e2+$-J*=$-!<*--*?$+!WdJlX bALIb!!!!!!!!!!!!! HHAVLF!!!!!!!!!!! HIAaGa!!!!!!!!!!! HKAIba!!!!!!!!!!! HIAIKN!!!!!!!!!!!

h3018.0$3!*,!0#$!12/-$8$20.:!18;./0!*,!2$?!%.;10.:!&2=$308$20!+$/131*23!*2!0#$!%*42/1:!".^

:<R)Q_0H!Z(H_)H>!0C<I(`(Z!_>!I0Q<(>H0^(>CR_>HZ

`$;*-0$+!.,0$-!$./#!,12.2/1.:!5$.-!$2+

)201/1;.0$+!12+$<0$+2$33

"#$!%*42/1:!#.3!.+*;0$+!0#$!4;+.0$+!"-$.34-5!
6.2.7$8$20!/*+$!*,!;-./01/$!WFGHHX>

`$;*-0$+!.,0$-!$./#!,12.2/1.:!5$.-!$2+

"#13!12/:4+$3!0#$!18;./0!*,!.::!$:$8$203!*,!,42+127A!12/:4+127!.25!12/-$.3$!12!0#$!2$$+!0*!<*--*?A!
-$941-$+!0*!,12.2/$!2$?!3/#$8$3!.++$+!0*!0#$!%.;10.:!'-*7-.88$

&::430-.01=$!&8;./0!*,!)++101*2.:!T*--*?127!RH!81::1*2

!

Page 49



!""#$%&'()(

!
!
!
!

!"#$%"&'()"#*$(+$,-&%((
(
./01203(4*-"&%"(56((
78&#9%"(:(;%8%<9%"((
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
*#"+,-(.,+/0((1#$&+,(2,+"#,-3(4..&5#,(
(

Page 50



678(9$-,+%:5-&+$(;$%(<;5=>,+:$%(
(
=>?@(4*-"&%"(5("%$#"&(?@(?A&%A,%,(&#($"#B?,%(-A(*$,-&%(#A($"%B?#*@C'("%$#"&%,($"#D%8&@(
-A,(?A?&?-&?B%@(-A,(&#(>?E>C?E>&(-A'(@?EA?F?8-A&(%<%"E?AE($"#$%"&'("%C-&%,(?@@*%@G(=>?@(
"%$#"&( ?@(A#&( ?A&%A,%,(&#($"#B?,%(?A(,%$&>(*$,-&%@(#A(-CC(#AE#?AE(?A,?B?,*-C($"#$%"&'(
8-@%@G(
(
(
?78(@+,"+,;-#(A+$BC+:D&$>(2,+"#,-3(2+,-.+E&+(F#E&G#,3(2,+>,;//#(
(
H@( %I$C-?A%,( ?A( $"%B?#*@( "%$#"&@J( ?A,?B?,*-C( $"#D%8&@(K?&>?A( &>%( ,%C?B%"'( $"#E"-<<%(
F-CC( ?A&#( &>"%%( $"#8*"%<%A&( E"#*$@( 9-@%,( #A( &>%?"( B-C*%( ?G%G( L?A#"( M#"N@( OLMPJ(
QA&%"<%,?-&%(M#"N@(OQMP(-A,(!"#D%8&@(O!PG((
(
Q&(>-@(9%%A("%$#"&%,(#A(-(A*<9%"(#F(#88-@?#A@(-A,(?@(K#"&>'(#F(A#&%(-E-?A(>%"%(&>-&(
9*,E%&( FC%I?9?C?&'(9%&K%%A(?A,?B?,*-C($"#D%8&@( ?@(%@@%A&?-CG( (=>?@( ?@(9%8-*@%(&>%(8#@&@(
&-N%A( F"#<( &>%(8#A,?&?#A(@*"B%'(,-&-( &#(9*?C,(*$( &>%(#"?E?A-C( F?B%R'%-"( 9*,E%&(K%"%(
$*"%C'(?A,?8-&?B%J(>-B?AE(9%%A(%@&?<-&%,(9-@%,(*$#A(A#AR?AB-@?B%(@*"B%'@G(H@(@*8>J(
&>%(C%B%C@(#F(K#"N("%S*?"%,(-&(%-8>($"#$%"&'(>-B%(?A8"%-@%,(#"(,%8"%-@%,(-@(,%&-?C%,(
@$%8?F?8-&?#A(K#"N(F#"(&>%($"#8*"%<%A&($"#8%@@(>-@($"#E"%@@%,G(
(
(
?76(F#E&G#,3(2,+>,;//#((
(
=>%( ,%C?B%"'( $"#E"-<<%( ?@( A#K( -$$"#-8>?AE( &>%( %A,( #F( T%-"( .( -A,( &>%( F#CC#K?AE(
&-9C%@($"#B?,%(-(@*<<-"'(#F($"#E"%@@(&#(,-&%(F#"(?AF#"<-&?#A($*"$#@%@6(((
(
.G0G0( T%-"(0(;%C?B%"'(!"#E"-<<%(
(

2,+"#,-3( )D-&/;-#(H(
!>,##%(
I;'&/:/(
2,&5#(

2,+"+D#%(
H(!5-:;E(
1-;,-(F;-#(

2#,5#$-;>#(
@+/"E#-#(

A+-#D(

I&$+,(2,+J#5-D(
!"#D%8&@( K?&>?A(
01(U*?C,?AE@(

V0/5W( X-"?#*@( 0//Y( Z#A&-?A%,( K?&>?A( &>%(
[\L( "%B%A*%( 9*,E%&(
-A,(A#&(8-$?&-C(@$%A,G((

9$-#,/#%&;-#(2,+J#5-D(
M>?&%(]*A,(
;%$#&(

V005W( .^2/0201( 0//Y( (

]-A8-@&%"(
Z%<%&%"'(
Z>-$%C@(

V0^3W( .^2/0201( 0//Y( (

]-A8-@&%"(=#KA(
_-CC([-?C?AE@(

V1^W( /.20/205( 0//Y( (

]-A8-@&%"(=#KA(
_-CC(!-B?AE(

V.`W( /^20/205( 0//Y( (

L#"%8-<9%(
=#KA(_-CC(

R( R( R( QA8C*,%,(?A(L#"%8-<9%(
)%A%"-C(O9%C#KP(

=>%(;*N%@(
!C-'>#*@%(

R( R( R( 7A(>#C,($%A,?AE(
;*N%@(,%B%C#$<%A&(
F*A,?AE(9?,G(

M?CC?-<@#A(!-"N(
(

V`/W( /.20.205( 0//Y( (

Page 51



2,+"#,-3( )D-&/;-#(H(
!>,##%(
I;'&/:/(
2,&5#(

2,+"+D#%(
H(!5-:;E(
1-;,-(F;-#(

2#,5#$-;>#(
@+/"E#-#(

A+-#D(

H@@%<9C'(
[##<@(

V0//W( /a20.205( 0//Y( (

b&#"%'(
(

V5.5W( /52/.201( aaY( (

L-"?&?<%(
L*@%*<(

V5.`W( /^2/^201( 0//Y( (

L#"%8-<9%(
QA&%"<%,?-&%(
)%A%"-C(!"#D%8&@c(
L#"%8-<9%(
=#KA(_-CC(\(
)-"-E%@(Od/(
e*@&#A([#-,J(
[%E%A&([#-,(
!ZP(b-C&(H'"%(
b$#"&@(Z%A&"%(

V0//W( X-"?#*@( `3Y( H,,?&?#A-C(K#"N@(
?,%A&?F?%,(?A8C*,?AE("%R
$C-@&%"?AE(L=_(
@&-?"K%CCJ(e*@&#A([#-,(
"%"##F?AE(-A,(b&#A%(
f%&&'(%I&%"A-C(K#"N@G((

]-A8-@&%"(
QA&%"<%,?-&%(
)%A%"-C(!"#D%8&@c(
U"?,E%(eA,(
;%$#&J(['%C-A,@(
Z>-AE?AE(
[##<@J(7C,(
L-Ag@([%@&J(
Z#&&-E%(
L*@%*<J(W?AE(
)%#"E%(!C-'?AE(
h?%C,@(

Va`W( X-"?#*@( 0//Y( (

QA&%"<%,?-&%(
;%<#C?&?#A(
!"#D%8&@(
O['%C-A,@(!-"N(
!-B?C?#AP(

=UH( =UH( /Y( HL!("%8%?B%,(-A,(
$C-AA?AE(-$$"#B-C(
9%?AE(@#*E>&G(

I;J+,(2,+J#5-D(
M?CC?-<@#A(!-"N( =UH( /^2/.203( /Y( b&#A%($-B?AE(

@$%8?F?8-&?#A(,%C-'@G(
=>%(!C-&F#"<( V105W( /52/5201( aaY( H,,?&?#A-C(K#"N@(

?,%A&?F?%,(?A8C*,?AE(A%K(
"##F(%,E%($"#&%8&?#AJ(
<-?A&%A-A8%(@&-?"8-@%(
&#(FC-&("##F(-A,(F?"%(
8#<$-"&<%A&-C?@-&?#A(
K#"N@G(

Z?&'(L*@%*<( V0/3W( =UH( /Y( =#&-C(9*,E%&(9%?AE(
8#A@?,%"%,(-@(<-&8>(
F*A,?AE(F#"($#&%A&?-C(
_]h(9?,(:(V0/3W(
8#B%"@(%@@%A&?-C(
"%$-?"@(#AC'G(
(

Page 52



2,+"#,-3( )D-&/;-#(H(
!>,##%(
I;'&/:/(
2,&5#(

2,+"+D#%(
H(!5-:;E(
1-;,-(F;-#(

2#,5#$-;>#(
@+/"E#-#(

A+-#D(

b-C&(H'"%(b$#"&@(
Z%A&"%(

R( R( R( QA8C*,%,(?A(L#"%8-<9%(
)%A%"-C($"#D%8&@(

L?&"%(_#*@%(Z-"(
!-"N(

V003W( 5/2/a205( 0//Y( [%$C-8%<%A&(@*9R9-@%(
"%S*?"%,G(

U-AS*%&?AE(b*?&%(
Z%?C?AE@(

=UH( =UH( /Y( eI&"-(M#"N@(RA#&(
?A8C*,%,(?A(#"?E?A-C(
8#A,?&?#A(@*"B%'G(

(
(
.G0G.( T%-"(.(;%C?B%"'(!"#E"-<<%(
(

2,+"#,-3( )D-&/;-#(H(
!>,##%(
I;'&/:/(
2,&5#(

2,+"+D#%(H(
!5-:;E(

1-;,-(F;-#(

2#,5#$-;>#(
@+/"E#-#(

A+-#D(

L-"?&?<%(
L*@%*<(\(.d(b&G(
)%#"E%@(4*-'(
!>-@%(.(

V030W( ..2/a201( /Y( HL!($-"&(@*9<?&&%,(F#"(
-,,?&?#A-C(9#?C%"(

=>%(b&#"%'(R(
!>-@%(.(

V015W( 032/1203( /Y( (

=>%(b&#"%'(R(
!>-@%(5(OE-CC%"'(
"##FP(

V33W( 0/2/5203( /Y( (

]-A8-@&%"(
M?CC?-<@#A(!-"N(R(
!>-@%(.(

V051W( .52/5203( /Y( HL!(9%?AE($"#8%@@%,G(

H@>&#A(L%<#"?-C(
:(QA&%"A-C(\(
eI&%"A-C((
M#"N@(

V3`3W( =UH( /Y( HL!(9%?AE($"#8%@@%,G(

H@>&#A(L%<#"?-C(
R(;#<%(Z%?C?AE((
[%@&#"-&?#A(

V0//W( =UH( /Y( HK-?&?AE(@$%8?-C?@&(
8#A@%"B-&?#A("%$#"&@G(
(

]-A8-@&%"(=#KA(
_-CC(:(
[%$C-8%<%A&(]?F&(

V0`/W( /.2/.203( 3/Y( (

]-A8-@&%"(=#KA(
_-CC(:(eC%8&"?8-C(\(
U*?C,?AE(M#"N@(

V1/`W( =UH( /Y( HL!(9%?AE($"#8%@@%,G(

]-A8-@&%"(=#KA(
_-CC(:(
U-AS*%&?AE((
Z%?C?AE@((

V01`W( =UH( /Y( HL!("%8%?B%,(9*&(
-K-?&?AE(eAEC?@>(
_%"?&-E%(-$$"#B-CG(
(

b-C&(H'"%(b$#"&@(
Z%A&"%(

V5dW( .^2/0203( /Y( V5/W(-88#*A&@(F#"(D*@&(
*"E%A&(K#"N@($%A,?AE(
"%@*C&@(#F(%A%"E'(
?AB%@&<%A&(@*"B%'(-A,(
@%"B?8%(C%-,("%B?%K(#F(
&>%(F-8?C?&'G((

Page 53



b8#&F#"&>(
Z%<%&%"'(

V55W( .^2/0203( /Y( (

Z?&'(]-9(
(

V1`W( /d2/0203( /Y( (

M>?&%(]*A,(
;%$#&(
E"%%A>#*@%(
%C%8&"?8-C(K#"N@((

V.dW( /52/.203( /Y( (

M?CC?-<@#A(!-"N(
U*&&%"FC'(_#*@%(

V0.0W( /d2/5203( /Y( (

(
(
?7?(I#-K+%+E+>3(
(
=>%( F#8*@(#F( '%-"(0(K-@( &#(,%-C(K?&>(8-&%E#"'(;(*"E%A&(K#"N@(-8"#@@( &>%($"#$%"&'(
$#"&F#C?#G(=>%(K#"N@(*A,%"&-N%A(?AA('%-"(0(>-@(A#K(-CC#K%,(&>%(F#8*@(&#(@>?F&(?A('%-"(
.( &#K-",@( K#"N?AE( #A( ?A,?B?,*-C( 9*?C,?AE@( "-&>%"( &>-A( @$"%-,?AE( #*"( -B-?C-9C%(
"%@#*"8%@( &##( &>?AC'(#B%"(A*<%"#*@(@?&%@G(=>%( "-&?#A-C%(9%>?A,( &>%(,%B%C#$<%A&(#F(
&>%( '%-"( &K#( ,%C?B%"'( $"#E"-<<%(K-@( &#( @%C%8&( 9*?C,?AE@(K?&>( -( @%8*"%( F*&*"%( -A,(
8#<$C%&%(-CC(8-&%E#"'(H(:(Z(K#"N@G(
(
7A8%( 8-$?&-C(K#"N@( >-B%( 9%%A( 8#<$C%&%,( #A( -( $-"&?8*C-"( 9*?C,?AE( &>-&( 9*?C,?AE(K?CC(
&>%A( 9%( -CC#8-&%,( -( $C-AA%,( <-?A&%A-A8%( @8>%,*C%( -A,( -,,%,( &#( &>%( E"#K?AE(
$C-AA%,( <-?A&%A-A8%( $"#E"-<<%G( =>%( E#-C( F#"( &>%( "%<-?A,%"( #F( &>?@( ,%C?B%"'(
$"#E"-<<%(?@(&#(8#<$C%&%(&>%("%S*?"%,(K#"N(-8"#@@(&>%($"#$%"&'($#"&F#C?#J(F-8?C?&-&?AE(
&>%(<#B%(F"#<(&>%(8*""%A&(%<$>-@?@(#A(-A(%I$%A@?B%("%-8&?B%(-$$"#-8>J( &#(-(<#"%(
F?A-A8?-CC'(@*@&-?A-9C%($C-AA%,(<-?A&%A-A8%(%&>#@G(
(
h?A-CC'J( ?&( @>#*C,( 9%( *A,%"@&##,( &>-&( &>%( %@&?<-&%,( 9*,E%&( 8#@&@( >-B%( 9%%A( &-N%A(
F"#<( &>%(./0.(A#AR?AB-@?B%(8#A,?&?#A(@*"B%'(-A,(-@(@*8>( &>%($#@@?9?C?&'(%I?@&@( &>-&(
*A?&( 8#@&@( K?CC( ?A8"%-@%( ,*%( &#( ?AFC-&?#A-"'( $"%@@*"%@( -A,( F*"&>%"( ,%&%"?#"-&?#A( #F(
8#<$#A%A&@(K?&>?A(?,%A&?F?%,(K#"N@G((
(
L78(@;"&-;E(*#5#&"-D(
(
Z-$?&-C("%8%?$&@(F#"(]-A8-@>?"%(]%?@*"%(!-"N(-A,(4*%"A<#"%([#-,($"#E"%@@%,(,*"?AE(
;%8%<9%"(./01(9*&(8#<$C%&?#A(A#&?8%@(>-,(A#&(9%%A("%8%?B%,(-&(&>%(&?<%(#F(K"?&?AEG(
Z#<$C%&?#A(A#&?8%@(F#"(9#&>(-"%(-A&?8?$-&%,(?A(4*-"&%"(1G(
!

M78(2#,.+,/;$5#(+.(@+//#,5&;E(<:&E%&$>D(N455:";$53O(
!

H@( 8-A( 9%( @%%A( F"#<( &>%( &-9C%( 9%C#K( &>%"%( >-B%( 9%%A( @#<%( @?EA?F?8-A&( 8>-AE%@(
@?A8%( &>%( 8C#@?AE( $#@?&?#A( #F( &>%( 8#<<%"8?-C( $"#$%"&'( $#"&F#C?#( #B%"( &>%( C-@&( 0.(
<#A&>@G(
!

( ./05201(
4*-"&%"(1(

./01203(
4*-"&%"(0(

?86MH6P(
Q:;,-#,(?(

?86PH6P(
Q:;,-#,(L(

A:/R#,(+.(2,+"#,-&#D( d0( d/( d/( S8(
( ( ( ( (
455:";-&+$(R3(TE++,(!,#;( ( ( ( (

!( =#&-C(]%&(O<.P( 0`J/35( 0^J/15( 0^J0d0( 6UV?WU(
!( =#&-C(X-8-A&(O<.P( 5Jd3`( 0Jd5a( 0J3.0( 6VLXP(
!( =#&-C(H"%-(O<.P( .0J^00( 0`Jd`.( 0`Jd`.( 6WVSW?(

( ( ( ( (

Page 54



(
b&G( ]%#A-",g@( _#*@%( ?@( A#K( 8C#@%,( -A,( >-@( &>%"%F#"%( 9%%A( "%<#B%,( F"#<( &>%@%(
@&-&?@&?8@G( =>%( b&-E%( .( "%$#"&( F#"( &>%( 9*?C,?AE( $"%$-"%,( 9'( &>%( ]-A8-@>?"%(
[%E%A%"-&?#A(!"#$%"&'(!-"&A%"@>?$(O][!!P(K-@("%8%?B%,(,*"?AE(;%8%<9%"(./01G(H(
"%$#"&(K?CC(9%($"%@%A&%,(&#(Z-9?A%&(?A(h%9"*-"'(O%C@%K>%"%(#A(&>%(-E%A,-P(@%%N?AE(&#(
,%&%"<?A%(&>%(K-'(F#"K-",(9-@%,(#A(&>%(,%B%C#$<%A&($"#$#@-C@(?A8C*,%,(K?&>?A(&>%(
b&-E%(.("%$#"&G(
(
=>%"%(>-B%(9%%A( F*"&>%"(E-?A@( ?A(8*""%A&(#88*$-&?#A(-8"#@@( &>%(Z?&'(Z#*A8?Cg@( &#&-C(
8#<<%"8?-C( $"#$%"&'( $#"&F#C?#( "%@*C&?AE( ?A( &>%( $%"8%A&-E%( C%&( F?E*"%( ?A8"%-@?AE( F"#<(
&>%( a.Y( "%$#"&%,( ?A( 4*-"&%"( .( &#( a5Y( ?A( 4*-"&%"( 5G( =>%( "%<-?A?AE( ^Y( #F( B-8-A&(
@$-8%(A#K(-<#*A&@(&#(&>%(%S*?B-C%A&(#F(05a3<.J(&>%(<-D#"?&'(#F(K>?8>(?@(-&&"?9*&-9C%(
&#(&>%(F#CC#K?AE(.(9*?C,?AE@6(
(

0G( YK#(1-+,#36(=>%(&#&-C(8#<<%"8?-C(#88*$-&?#A(K?&>?A(&>?@(9*?C,?AE(?@(8*""%A&C'(
"*AA?AE(-&(^0Y(K>?8>( "%$"%@%A&@(A#(8>-AE%(#B%"( &>%($"%B?#*@(S*-"&%"G(=>%(
"%<-?A?AE(.aY(%S*-&%@(&#(-(B-8-A&(FC##"(-"%-(#F(1d^<.G((
(

.G( @&-3E;R0(=>%(&#&-C(8#<<%"8?-C(#88*$-&?#A(K?&>?A(&>?@(9*?C,?AE(?@(8*""%A&C'(-C@#(
"*AA?AE(-&(^0Y(K>?8>(-E-?A("%$"%@%A&@(A#(8>-AE%(#B%"(&>%($"%B?#*@(S*-"&%"G(
=>%("%<-?A?AE(.aY(%S*-&%@(&#(-(B-8-A&(FC##"(-"%-(#F(5^d<.G((

(
;%@$?&%( @#<%( E##,( $"#E"%@@( &>?@( '%-"( -&( 9#&>( &>%( b&#"%'( -A,( Z?&'C-9( &>%( &K#(
9*?C,?AE@( -88#*A&( F#"( d/Y( #F( &>%( &#&-C( 05a3<.( B-8-A&( 8#<<%"8?-C( $"#$%"&'G( 7&>%"(
9*?C,?AE@(8*""%A&C'(8#A&"?9*&?AE(&#(&>%(&#&-C(B-8-A&(@$-8%(?A8C*,%6(
(

!( e,K-",( b&"%%&( ;-A8%( b&*,?#( O03a<.P( :( =>?@( 9*?C,?AE( ?@( B-8-A&( ,*%( &#( ?&@(
?A8C*@?#A(?A(&>%(Z-A-C(Z#""?,#"(;%B%C#$<%A&(HE"%%<%A&G(

!( 3dR3`(e*@&#A([#-,(:(L-"N%&?AE(#F(&>?@(9*?C,?AE(8#A&?A*%@(-A,(@#<%($#@?&?B%(
?A&%"%@&(?A(&>%(*A?&(>-@(9%%A(%I$"%@@%,G((

!( `([?,E%(bS*-"%(:(=>?@(?@(-(Z#*A8?C(_#*@?AE($"#$%"&'(&>-&(>-@(9%%A(B-8-A&(F#"(
@#<%(&?<%G(

(
b?A8%(4*-"&%"(.($"#E"%@@(K?&>(#&>%"(9*?C,?AE@(>-@(9%%A(<-,%(?A8C*,?AE6(
(

!( 7C,(L-Ag@([%@&J(['%C-A,@(_#*@%(O003<.P(:(H(&%A-A&(>-@(9%%A(@%8*"%,(9*&(
>-@(A#&(&-N%A(#88*$-&?#A(#F(&>%(9*?C,?AE(-&(&>%(&?<%(#F(K"?&?AEG(

!( b&#A%(f%&&'(Z-Fi(:(=>?@($"%<?@%@(K-@( C%&(#A( &>%(0@&(#F(j#B%<9%"(./01(-A,(
&>%( A%K( &%A-A&( >#$%@( &#( #$%A( ?A( @$"?AE( ./03( F#CC#K?AE( @#<%( "%A#B-&?#A(
K#"N@G(

(
!"#$%"&'( )"#*$( 8#A&?A*%@( &#( K#"N( &#K-",@( "%,*8?AE( &>%( B-8-A8'( "-&%@( ?A( &>%(
8#<<%"8?-C( $"#$%"&'( $#"&F#C?#( -C&>#*E>( 8#A@?,%"?AE( &>-&( @*$$C'( ?@( 8*""%A&C'(
#*&@&"?$$?AE(,%<-A,( ?A( &>%(8#<<%"8?-C(#FF?8%( "%A&-C(<-"N%&J(-A(#B%"-CC(^Y(B-8-A8'(
"-&%(-8"#@@(&>%(K>#C%($#"&F#C?#("%$"%@%A&@(-("%C-&?B%C'(>%-C&>'($#@?&?#AG((
(
=>%"%(K?CC(*A,#*9&%,C'(9%(F*"&>%"(*$,-&%@(,*"?AE(&>%("%<-?A,%"(#F(&>%('%-"c(8>-AE%@(
-"%(%I$%8&%,(&#(>-B%(9%-"?AE(#A(9#&>(#88*$-A8'(-A,(F*&*"%("%A&-C(?A8#<%G((=>%(C-&&%"(
K?CC(9%("%FC%8&%,(?A(*$,-&?AE(&>%(9*,E%&G(
(
(

Page 55



CABINET  

Corporate Plan 2015 - 18 

17 February 2015 

Report of Chief Executive 
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 

This report is to enable Cabinet to consider the draft Corporate Plan 2015 - 18 with a view to 
recommending the Corporate Plan to Council for approval. 

Key Decision X Non-Key Decision  Referral from Cabinet 
Member  

Date of notice of forthcoming key decision 19 January 2015 

This report is public  

 
RECOMMENDATION OF THE LEADER OF THE COUNCIL  

(1) That Cabinet considers the draft Corporate Plan 2015 – 2018 and makes 
recommendations to full Council 

1 Introduction 

1.1 The Corporate Plan sets out the role of the Council – Our Core Purpose and 
Our Vision for the district, sets the direction for the delivery of council services 
and together with the Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) and other 
strategies drives the allocation of resources as part of the council’s Policy 
Framework.  The Corporate Plan also reflects the changing needs and 
aspirations of local communities and the shifting priorities, opportunities and 
challenges that the council faces.   

1.2 In the last few years, the corporate priorities have remained largely the same, 
being: Clean, Green and Safe Places; Health and Wellbeing; Community 
Leadership and Sustainable Economic Growth, whilst the focus of the priorities 
has narrowed as resources have reduced. 

1.3 .In February 2014, Council approved that these priorities be underpinned by an 
ethos of an ‘Ensuring Council’ – a model of local government developed by the 
Association of Public Service Excellence (APSE) – which is consistent with the 
way the council has developed over the last few years and also supports the 
delivery of the Vision for the council agreed in July 2013. 

1.4 In approving the budget timetable for 21015/16 and plans for future years, 
Cabinet acknowledged that the focus of any budget and planning proposals 
would be to redefine and reduce activities against existing priorities, rather than 
any fundamental changes being developed.   

1.5 Cabinet has recognised that the major financial challenges and reductions in 
Government funding that still lie ahead will have a significant impact on the 
delivery of each of the council's priorities going forward.  Cabinet also 
acknowledged that the budget decisions of other authorities (Lancashire 
County Council, Fire Service and Police and Crime Commissioner) and 
stakeholders are expected to have major direct implications for the district, with 
knock on consequences for Council in the delivery of its own services. 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 9Page 56



2 Proposal Details 

2.1 It is important that the council is able to adapt to changes in a planned and 
considered way.  To facilitate this the Corporate Plan is refreshed annually in 
the context of changing needs and aspirations in the district, financial forecasts 
and desired council tax targets and other relevant resource implications. 

2.2 The outcomes and measures identified in the Corporate Plan 2015 -18 have 
been shaped and informed, as far as is possible at this stage, by the allocation 
of resources included in the council’s budget and Medium Term Financial 
Strategy and other strategies and planned priorities. 

2.3 In reviewing and refreshing the draft Corporate Plan other measures of 
progress have been identified that will be tracked to provide a more detailed 
understanding of the factors that may have an impact on achieving corporate 
priorities.  Provision has also been made for any: 

• Legislative and regulatory changes 
• National policy changes and funding prospects 
• Changing needs of the district, its residents and visitors 
• Recent performance and experience, and; 
• Local views and perceptions 

2.4 Subject to consideration by Cabinet the draft Corporate Plan will be completed 
and presented to Budget Council on 04 March 2015. 

3 Details of Consultation  

3.1 Consultation and engagement on a number of key council activities have been 
undertaken throughout 2014/15.  Along with more general consultation 
including customer satisfaction surveys, these have helped to inform the 
strategic planning and decision making process and are reflected in the draft 
Corporate Plan. 

4 Options and Options Analysis (including risk assessment) 

 Option 1: Recommend to 
Council the draft 
Corporate Plan as 
presented or recommend 
with minor amendments 

Option 2: Corporate Plan 
not recommended to 
Council at this stage 

Advantages Assuming no significant 
impact on resources and 
forward planning 
arrangements minor 
amendments can be 
managed without interruption 
to the strategic planning 
cycle and the Corporate Plan 
can be submitted for 
consideration by full council 

A revised Corporate Plan will 
reflect any significant 
changes recommended by 
Cabinet  

Disadvantages None identified  This option is likely to lead to 
delays in publication of the 
Corporate Plan leading to 
uncertainty regarding the 
council’s intentions and 
possible interruptions to 
delivery of some services 
and activities 

 
 

Page 57



 Option 1: Recommend to 
Council the draft Corporate 
Plan as presented or 
recommend with minor 
amendments (continued) 

Option 2: Corporate Plan not 
recommended to Council at 
this stage (continued) 

Risks Objectives and funding may 
change during the year that will 
have an impact on needs, 
aspirations, financial forecasts 
and other resource implications 

May have an impact on the 
strategic direction for the 
delivery of council services and 
the achievement of corporate 
priorities.  The budget has 
been approved in line with the 
priorities set out in the 
Corporate Plan and significant 
changes at this stage may 
have budget implications that 
would need to be considered 
further 

5 Officer Preferred Option (and comments) 

5.1 The Officer preferred Option is Option 1 as this will underpin council activities, 
business and resource planning from an early point in the municipal year.  
Additionally, local residents, communities and partners will be clear about the 
priorities and outcomes the council wishes to achieve in the coming three 
years. 

6 Conclusion 

6.1 The Corporate Plan is a central part of the council’s Budget and Policy 
Framework stating the key priorities, outcomes and measures that the council 
hopes to achieve for the district.  The Corporate Plan forms part of the Policy 
Framework, and, as such, must be approved by Council. 

6.2 The strategic planning arrangements create an opportunity each year to 
consider the changing needs and aspirations of local communities and the 
shifting priorities, opportunities and challenges that the council faces.  These 
are reflected in the draft Corporate Plan for 2015 - 2018 taking into account 
recommendations by Council and Cabinet, consultation and engagement with 
residents and visitors and budget information and options that have been set 
out in various Budget and Policy Framework updates during 2014/15.  

Page 58



 

RELATIONSHIP TO POLICY FRAMEWORK 

The Corporate Plan is a central part of the policy framework stating the priorities and key 
outcomes that the council hopes to achieve for the district and as such must be approved by 
Council. 

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
(including Health & Safety, Equality & Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, 
HR, Sustainability and Rural Proofing) 

The Corporate Plan is complementary to key policies, strategies and plans. The council has 
responsibilities and plans for some activities not directly included in the Corporate Plan but 
which are managed as part of ongoing service delivery and / or day-to-day council business. 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  

None directly arising as a result of this report 

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

The draft Corporate Plan for 2015 -18 has been developed alongside the Council’s budget 
processes and takes account of budget limitations and challenges in the coming financial 
years as far as is possible at this stage, but clearly the Council still has a significant and 
increasing budget shortfall from 2016/17 onwards.  Tacking this position is also reflected in 
the draft Corporate Plan, at a high level. 

OTHER RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

Human Resources:  None at this stage although the council’s workforce planning and 
service reviews will need to be aligned with the Corporate Plan. 

Information Services:  No additional requirements for ICT support at this stage but the 
council’s ICT Strategy will need to be aligned with the Corporate Plan. 

Property:  No additional implications at this stage although the council’s Medium Term 
Corporate Property Strategy will need to be aligned with the Corporate Plan. 

Open Spaces:  No additional implications at this stage 

SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS 

The s151 Officer has been consulted and has no further comments. 

MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS 

The Monitoring Officer has been consulted and has no further comments. 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

none 

Contact Officer:  Bob Bailey 
Telephone:  01524 582018 
E-mail: rbailey@lancaster.gov.uk  
Ref:  Corporate Plan 2015 - 18 

 

Page 59



Corporate Plan 2015 - 2018 

Our Core Purpose  

The role of the council is to:  

• Provide the democratic leadership, with high ethical standards, needed to help the district 
address the major issues facing it.  

• Bring communities and agencies together to work in partnership to address the major issues 
affecting the district.  

• Provide a range of customer focused services, offer value for money and meet the needs of 
people who live, work and visit the district.  

• Maintain a cohesive community by ensuring we understand the needs of our communities and 
provide equality of access to our services and employment opportunities.  

Our Ethos  

• Stewardship – ensuring the social, economic and environmental wellbeing of the local area.  

• Core capacity – maintaining the strategic advantages of in-house services to meet local needs.  

• Municipal entrepreneurialism – capturing opportunities for collaborative innovation and income 
generation.  

• Collaboration – working with a range of service providers on a collaborative basis rather than 
through competition.  

• Policy – grounding local decision making in political accountability.  

• Social justice – ensuring the values of local government are founded on equality and meeting 
community needs.  

• Sustainability – ensuring that the council contributes positively to the challenge of climate 
change and the need to manage our environment 

• Value for Money – focusing on economy, efficiency and effectiveness 

Our Vision  

A sustainable self-contained and varied group of communities with a population remaining in 
balance to support its local economy, comprising:  

MORECAMBE AND HEYSHAM - a confident community with a regenerated living, working and 
leisure environment, acting as a focal point on Morecambe Bay to enjoy and interact with the wider 
landscape;  

LANCASTER - a prosperous historic city with a thriving knowledge economy;  

CARNFORTH - a successful market town and service centre for North Lancashire and South Cumbria, 
and;  

A conserved, enhanced and diversified COAST AND COUNTRYSIDE with a network of vibrant rural 
communities; which will lead the North West in its quality of life and environmental and design 
standard and within which sustainable housing, economic and retail development to meet local 
needs will be supported. 

Page 60



Our Priorities 

Our outcomes are supported by headline success measures that identify the best overall measures 
of progress towards delivering our outcomes in line with our priorities and ethos.  In addition we will 
track other indicators and measures of our progress so that we have a detailed understanding of the 
factors that impact on achieving our priorities. 

The intention to protect the most vulnerable in our society will be a thread that runs through all of 
our priorities. 

Priority:  Clean, Green & Safe Places 

Lancaster district has much to offer. To ensure that it maintains and builds upon its reputation of 
being clean, green and safe, the council will encourage local communities and individuals to take 
pride in their local area and become involved in protecting and improving the quality of local areas, 
parks and public spaces in a way that is sustainable. 

The council will continue to undertake activities to maintain levels of recycling and composting.  It is 
developing an energy strategy as a means of planning to reduce the overall amount of energy used 
in the delivery of its service, increase the use of energy from renewable sources, reduce carbon 
emissions and generate income and efficiencies.  

The council will work together with partners and communities to deliver a range of community 
safety initiatives aimed at making our streets clean and safe and meeting its responsibilities to 
preserve and enhance the special protected landscapes. 

Outcomes Success Measures 

Impact of crime and anti-social behaviour 
across the district will be minimised 

• Work with the Police and Community 
Safety Partners to minimise the impact of 
crime and anti-social behaviour 

• Reduce hate crime and the fear of crime 
felt by minority communities 

The council’s impact on the environment will 
be minimised 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

• Annual reduction in energy consumption 
used by the council’s operations 

• Annual reduction in carbon dioxide 
emissions from the council’s operations 

• Increased proportion of the council’s 
energy needs generated from renewable 
sources 

• Increased proportion of council business 
travel mileage provided by electric or 
ultra-low emission vehicles 

• Maintain and /or improve average 
Standard Assessment Procedure (SAP) 
rating in council homes to a high level 

• Amount of household waste reused, 

Page 61



The council’s impact on the environment will 
be minimised (continued) 

recycled or composted is maintained 

• Increase income from energy and 
recycling projects 

Local neighbourhoods are clean and safe and 
residents have a sense of pride in the district 

• Perception of people who live in, work in, 
or visit the district that streets and public 
spaces are safe and clean is increased 

• Increased number of projects that directly 
involve local communities in improving 
local areas, parks and open spaces 

Priority: Health & Wellbeing 

A range of actions to support the positive health and wellbeing of residents in the district have been 
identified.  This includes continuing work to improve the quality and availability of housing, including 
council housing stock and building new one-bedroomed properties, housing renewal, particularly in 
the West End of Morecambe and improvements in the private rented sector.  We will work to 
ensure the standard of new and existing housing meets current regulations and promotes safe, high 
quality, energy efficient housing. 

As part of the statutory planning process, the council will allocate land for housing purposes, to meet 
the challenges of finding space for sustainable growth to address the need to alter the course of 
demographic change.  It will seek opportunities to include new affordable housing as part of the 
development plans and champion the need for younger generations in our community to have 
access to their own homes. 

The council will continue to work with partners as part of the health and wellbeing partnership to 
improve the health outcomes for our citizens.  The council intends to take action to improve health; 
for example, by enabling access to sports and leisure activities and supporting measures to keep 
vulnerable people warm in their homes.  Actions to tackle homelessness and rough sleeping in the 
district will continue.  The council will also continue to work with partners to help manage the 
implementation of ongoing welfare reforms and their impact. 

Outcomes Success Measures 

Enhanced quality of life of local residents 
through access to affordable, decent housing 

• Increased number of improved homes 

• Improve access to housing 

• Increase number of affordable homes 

Health and wellbeing of our citizens is 
improved 

 

 

 

Health and wellbeing of our citizens is 

• Maintaining adequate supply to reduce 
demand led unsustainable price rises in 
the housing market 

• New build council social housing is energy 
efficient 

• Improve the wellbeing of our residents 
through collaborative, preventative and 

Page 62



improved (continued) reactive measures 

• Increased number of people participating 
in sports and leisure activities 

• Maximise opportunities for access to 
innovative leisure activities by working 
collaboratively with public and private 
sector partners 

• Increased number of vulnerable 
households benefiting from Warm Homes 
Initiative 

• Facilitate long term improvements in 
transportation to improve local air quality 

• Maintain percentage of “broadly” 
compliant food businesses (category 3-5) 

• Work in partnership to optimise access to 
welfare benefits and related support 

Priority: Community Leadership 

The council continues to face up to the challenges presented by the current economic climate by 
placing an increased emphasis on the things that matter most to people of the district and by 
rationalising and developing its use of resources, be they staff, property or technology – and of 
course, finance.  As community leaders, we are committed to working with those public services 
who can help us to have a positive impact on life in the district.  This will help us to support our key 
partnerships to ensure they are really effective and can deliver the outcomes the district needs. 

The role of our ward councillors is vital in engaging with communities and working with community 
groups and individuals to make a difference through a wide range of initiatives in local areas and the 
council’s process will be strengthened to support this.  Community pride is a key theme that has 
emerged from our local engagement work and the council wishes to support local groups and 
communities to become involved locally, improving where they live in many ways so that they can 
Take Pride in their local areas and the communities around them. 

The council will work with partners to achieve efficiencies and protect the services that matter by 
taking a collaborative approach where this is effective.  The council continues to support voluntary, 
community, faith, arts and culture groups and will work with these sectors to consider how together 
we can ensure important services for the district are delivered. 

  

Page 63



Outcomes Success Measures 

Communities are brought together and the 
major issues affecting the district are 
addressed through working in partnership 

• Improve neighbourhood working by 
engaging with communities to 
understand their needs and empowering 
them to deliver services locally 

• Ensure Ward Councillors feel supported 
in their Community Leadership role 

• Maintain working arrangements with 
voluntary, community, faith, arts and 
culture groups in support of key service 
delivery 

Well run, value for money services that are 
valued by the public and demonstrate good 
governance, openness and transparency 

• Improve our understanding of the needs 
of our communities to inform our service 
delivery, improving standards of diversity 
and equality  

• Deliver quality services through a skilled 
and motivated workforce  

• Rationalise our property holdings, to 
deliver better value for money 

• Improve efficiency and effectiveness, 
reduce waste and develop customer 
service through re-shaping our services, 
using technology and collaborative 
working as appropriate 

• Gain an ‘unqualified’ value for money 
conclusion from our External Auditors 

 

Priority: Sustainable Economic Growth 

Lancaster district has exceptional opportunities and a pressing demographic need to develop its 
economy.  The main prospects for economic growth relate to energy including nuclear and 
renewable energy; the knowledge sector developing around Lancaster’s two universities; and the 
Visitor Economy, capitalising on the district’s outstanding arts and cultural heritage and 
entertainment offer, its beautiful coastline and stunning natural landscapes. 

The council’s actions for the coming years, in collaboration with Lancashire County Council, will seek 
to develop these opportunities and help to secure economic benefits through new jobs and business 
growth, including support for new energy and transport infrastructure and the nuclear nomination 
for Heysham.  Work to improve the attractiveness of central Morecambe and Lancaster’s heritage 
assets, public spaces and retail offer is underway.  In the district’s rural areas, the aim will be to 
improve the focus of their tourism identities linked to the branding of Morecambe Bay and 
Lancaster.  A few high impact festivals and events will provide economic stimulus to help local 
businesses across the district.  The council will continue to engage with economic partners, including 

Page 64



the Lancaster District Chamber of Commerce and the Lancashire Enterprise Partnership, to develop 
the economy of the district.  The council will continue to set an example by paying a living wage to 
its employees, and by supporting the principles of Fairtrade. 

Outcomes Success Measures 

Sustainable economic growth and jobs will 
be created in key sectors, including energy, 
knowledge, health and the visitor economy 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

• New and improved employment sites and 
premises will become available in key 
business locations targeting key sectors 

• Regeneration of central Morecambe 
supported by the Morecambe Area Action 
Plan 

• Land Allocations, Arnside and Silverdale 
AONB and Gypsy and Traveller 
Accommodation Development Plan 
documents completed and adopted 

• Inward investment opportunities will be 
maximised by working with key partners, 
including the universities of Lancaster and 
Cumbria, University Hospitals Morecambe 
Bay and British Land 

• Level of support for business growth and 
skills development will be maximised 

• Supporting small businesses as important 
components of thriving retail centres 

• The development of the Assembly Rooms 
as an important visitor destination and 
enhancer of the local economy 

The attractiveness and offer of the district, 
as a place to visit or invest in, will be 
improved 

• Lancaster and Morecambe urban centres 
will be enhanced by investment in the 
built environment, heritage assets and 
the public realm 

• Economic impact of the arts in the district 
will be measured with the Council moving 
towards an ensuring role to support a 
range of delivery partners 

Lancaster and Morecambe Bay will be 
recognised as important visitor destinations 

• Destination brands for Lancaster and the 
Lune Valley and Morecambe Bay will be 
developed with partners to establish 
these areas as important visitor 
destinations 

• Visitor numbers and spend will be 
increased 

 

Page 65



Delivering the Corporate Plan 

The Corporate Plan sets out the council’s four priorities, but it also needs to make sure it has the 
resources to deliver them, which is an increasing challenge. The council’s Medium Term Financial 
Strategy supports and informs the Corporate Plan, and sets out how it will manage its finances in 
order to deliver these priorities.  Local Government however, continues to face major funding 
reductions year on year, meaning that a lesser range of services will be provided at some point in the 
future.  To help demonstrate this challenge, the Council’s forecasts indicate that it will need to save 
around £1.6 million in 2016/17 and £2.0 million in 2017/18; thereafter these targets look set to 
increase still further. 

Balancing the Budget 

Nonetheless, each year the council must deliver a balanced, robust budget that matches and realigns 
resources to its priorities and statutory needs.  One of the key objectives is to ensure it gives value 
for money. This means getting the most from council assets and resources, maximising the potential 
of staff, increasing income, reducing waste and improving effectiveness without raising costs.  Value 
for money is regarded as a priority over reducing services when savings are required 

Service Reviews and Organisational Change 

To achieve this approach, the council will complete a programme of organisational change across all 
services over the coming years, to achieve better value for money for the community as a whole, but 
also to balance its budget.  Such reviews and organisational change will continue to form the basis 
for tackling the medium to longer term budget funding gap, as well as being informed by (and 
helping to embed) the council’s ethos.  Service reductions are to be expected as part of this 
programme. 

Governance 

Another key element in ensuring successful delivery of the Corporate Plan is having sound 
governance arrangements in place.  Good governance enables an authority to pursue its vision 
effectively as well as underpinning that vision with control and the management of risk.  

The council has a governance framework that brings together an underlying set of legal 
requirements, ethical and behavioural principles and management processes.  Each year the council 
reviews these arrangements, and amongst other things, will measure the quality of services for 
users, ensuring they are delivered in accordance with the authority’s objectives and represent the 
best use of resources and value for money.  The results of the review are published in an Annual 
Governance Statement. 

Council Tax 

The council aims to keep council tax increases to 1.99% year on year , subject to the future 
thresholds for holding local referendums, which are set by Government.  These targets apply to the 
basic city council tax rate across the district excluding parish precepts. 

Rather than reverting back to freezing council tax, the council has kept with the difficult decision of 
increasing the tax rate and targets for future years, as a way of helping to mitigate the impact of 
Government funding reductions.  To some extent, increasing council tax will help protect key 
services.  To help the most vulnerable households, the council has retained its existing local scheme 
for providing council tax support in 2015/16, and this will be kept under annual review. 

Page 66



 

Business transformation and improvement 

The council will continue to develop its skilled workforce with a more flexible, coordinated approach 
to working across services, through the delivery of a new People Strategy.  This will support 
continuous improvement, help build partnership working, increase shared service and support more 
devolved services. 

We will champion a high performance culture throughout the council and continue the delivery of 
high quality services through continued modernisation of back office services as well as explore the 
potential for new delivery models, early intervention and capacity to reduce costs and provide 
further savings. 

Page 67



 

1 

CABINET  
 
 

Budget and Policy Framework Update 2015/16 –  
Housing Revenue Account and Capital Programme  

17 February 2015 
 

Joint Report of Chief Officer (Health and Housing) 
and Chief Officer (Resources) 

 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 

This report provides an update on the council housing budgetary position and seeks 
Cabinet’s decisions on council housing rent levels for 2015/16 together with targets for future 
years.  It also seeks approval of Cabinet’s supporting revenue budget and capital 
programme proposals for referral on to Council, in order to complete the HRA budget setting 
process for 2015/16. 
 

Key Decision X Non-Key Decision  Referral from 
Cabinet Member  

Date of Notice of Forthcoming 
Key Decision 

19 December 2014 

This report is public. 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS OF COUNCILLOR LEYTHAM:  
 
1 That the Housing Revenue Account Revised Budget for 2014/15, as set out at 

Appendix A, be referred on to Council for approval. 
 
2 That the minimum level of HRA unallocated balances be retained at £350,000 

from 01 April 2015, and that the full Statement on Reserves and Balances be 
endorsed and referred on to Council for approval. 

 
3 That the current rent setting policy be reaffirmed for the medium term, in that:  
 

- an average rent of £71.31 for 2015/16 be approved, representing an increase 
of 2%, and  
 

- for 2016/17 onwards target rent increases be set at 3% per annum, and the 
revenue budget forecasts be updated accordingly. 

 
4 That the resulting Housing Revenue Account budget for 2015/16 be referred on 

to Council for approval. 
 

5 That the Capital Programme as set out at Appendix D be referred on to Council 
for approval. 

 
6 That the above recommendations for the Housing Revenue Account be 

reflected within the Council’s draft Medium Term Financial Strategy as 
appropriate. 

Agenda Item 11Page 68



 

 
1 INTRODUCTION 

 
1.1 The Council is required under statutory provisions to maintain a separate ring-fenced 

account for the provision of local authority housing, known as the Housing Revenue 
Account (HRA). This covers the maintenance and management of the Council’s 
housing stock. 
 

1.2 At its meeting in February 2013, Cabinet approved the key principles and broad 
financial targets for managing the HRA over the medium term, to give a strategic 
financial context for council housing. 

 
1.3 In line with that context, Cabinet is now required to set the level of housing rents in 

sufficient time for the statutory notice of rent variations to be issued to tenants by 01 
March, and make recommendations to Council regarding the HRA’s budget. 

 
1.4 The draft MTFS will also be updated to reflect Cabinet’s HRA budget proposals, for 

consideration at Budget Council. 
 
 
2 2014/15 REVISED BUDGET 
 
2.1 A review of the current HRA budget has been undertaken and during the year, a net 

surplus of £104K is forecast, which is £31K higher than originally forecast.  A 
summary statement is set out at Appendix A and the main variations are shown 
below.  This focuses on the ‘cash’ or bottom-line variances, excluding any notional 
charges: 

 
 

SUMMARY OF MAIN ‘CASH’ VARIANCES ON HRA £’000 

 
Operational Variances:    (+)Adverse / (-)Favourable 

Reduction in Rental and Other Income 
Additional spend on Repairs and Maintenance 
Increase in Bad Debt Provision 
Net Increase in Revenue Financing of Capital Programme (either 
 directly or from Reserves) 
Other minor variances (net)  

 
 

+41 
+351 
+16 
+61 

 
-55 

Sub-total +414 
Review of Reserves (see section 3) 
Net Reduction in transfer to Major Repairs Reserve  
Net Reduction in transfers to other Earmarked Reserves 
 

 
-255 
-190 

 
Net Surplus Forecast for Year 

 
-31 

 
 
2.2 A number of key points are highlighted: 

 
• Assumed annual Right to Buys have increased from 5 to 12 in the current year, 

thereby reducing the annual rental income receivable.  This trend is expected to 
continue in future years. 

• A review carried out of Repairs and Maintenance has determined that ongoing 
annual costs are increasing in line with those reported at 2013/14 outturn and 

Page 69



 

consequently these have been built into both current and future years’ 
expenditure forecasts. 
  

2.3 Taking account of the overall revised budget outlined above, HRA Balances at the 
end of this year are expected to be around £271K lower than originally forecast, as 
shown in the following table: 

 
 2014/15 Original 

Budget 
£’000 

2014/15 Revised 
Budget 
£’000 

Original Estimated Balances as at 31 March 2015 
 
Less: Transfer of 2012/13 surplus to Business 
Support Reserve 
Add: Underspending in 2013/14, at outturn 
Add: Forecast surplus in current year 
 

 776 
  

-- 
 

-- 
-- 

776 
 

-426 
 

  51 
104 

 

Forecast Balances as at 31 March 2015  776 505 

Of which: 

Surplus Balances (above minimum £350K) 

  

155 

 

 
2.4 Cabinet is recommended to refer the HRA Revised Budget for 2014/15 to Council for 

approval. 
 
 
3 PROVISIONS, RESERVES AND BALANCES  
 
3.1 The Section 151 Officer is required to undertake a formal review of general reserve 

levels.  In assessing the adequacy of such balances, the Chief Officer (Resources) 
takes account of the strategic, operational and financial risks facing the authority.  
The effectiveness of internal financial and other controls are also taken into account; 
assurance on these can be taken from the respective formal Statements and external 
assessments.  Consideration has also been given to the specific risks and 
assumptions underlying the HRA as set out in Appendix B. 

 
3.2 After reviewing the Housing Revenue Account and General Fund in comparative 

terms and considering the key issues, assumptions and risks underlying the budget 
projections, the Section 151 Officer advises retaining the minimum level of HRA 
Balances at £350K to support the budget forecasts, as part of the overall medium 
term financial planning for the HRA.  This level has presented no difficulties in 
previous years and furthermore, the HRA has other substantial reserves available, to 
support the condition of the housing stock and manage other current service risks. 

 
3.3 The Business Support Reserve has a current unallocated balance of £8.5M.  Until 

future plans for increasing the stock of one bedroom accommodation are developed 
no further contributions are being made into this reserve.  It is currently anticipated 
that detailed proposals (taking into account the impact on the HRA 30-year Business 
Plan) will be brought back to Cabinet during 2015/16.  Cabinet still have authority to 
allocate this reserve, but any future contributions would be approved by Council as 
part of the overall budget process.  This still gives Cabinet the flexibility to develop 
and refine its plans. 
 

Page 70



 

3.4 There has been less call on the Major Repairs Reserve in the current year than 
originally assumed, mainly due to more capital receipts being received and applied 
as a result of increased Right to Buys and also use of earmarked reserves for 
specific Schemes. 
 

3.5 An interim review of other earmarked reserves for next year has also identified that 
not all in year contributions are needed for the forthcoming year, although they will 
still be required over the 30 year period.  A more detailed review will be undertaken 
during 2015/16 to inform future levels, however. 

 
3.6 In terms of provisions, the annual contribution to the bad debts provision has 

increased slightly from those planned a year ago and will continue to be closely 
monitored. 

 
3.7 A draft statement on all reserves is attached at Appendix C (i) and Appendix C (ii).  

The latter details the purpose and application of each reserve together with relevant 
recommendations on current use.  These reserves are viewed as adequate for the 
period covered, but will need to be reviewed in more detail as highlighted above.  
Cabinet is asked to endorse this information, with the Statement being referred on to 
Council as part of the HRA budget proposals.  

 
 
4 2015/16 BASE BUDGET AND FUTURE YEARS’ PROJECTIONS  
 
4.1 The draft budget has now been prepared for 2015/16 together with projections for 

2016/17 and 2017/18. The budgets are set out in line with Accounting Requirements 
and they take account of the usual pay and price inflation assumptions.  Specific 
aspects of the budget are outlined in more detail below. 

 
- Provision continues to be made for repayment of the self-financing debt over the 

next 28 year period.  No provision has been made as yet in respect of the £15.3M 
HRA share of earlier years’ debt, but this is the same approach that applied 
under the former subsidy system.   
 

- With regard to financing investment needs for the existing housing stock, the 
budget has been prepared on the basis that if there is a shortfall in the funding 
required to support the capital programme, then a top up should be charged to 
the revenue account (through increasing the contribution to the MRR).  

 
- In terms of revenue savings and growth no proposals have been put forward at 

this time. 
 
 
5 CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2014/15 TO 2019/20 
 
5.1 The City Council has a statutory duty to ensure that all of its council housing stock 

meets the Decent Homes Standard.  In addition, the Council has set its own higher 
standard for improvement works known as the “Lancaster Standard”, and this has 
been agreed with the District Wide Tenants’ Forum. 

 
5.2 The Council has a long-term investment programme, which identifies the indicative 

resources needed to maintain a viable 30-year Business Plan taking account of the 
agreed housing standards.  This has been incorporated in the Council’s self-financing 
business plan.   

 
5.3 Appendix D sets out the overall capital programme for consideration by Cabinet and 

referral on to Council.  More details are provided in the sections below. 

Page 71



 

5.4 2014/15 Revised Capital Programme 
 
5.4.1 The 2014/15 Council Housing Capital Programme was set at £4.790M by Council on 

26 February 2014.  This programme has since been updated after taking into 
account preliminary results from the recent stock condition survey undertaken during 
2014 to give a revised programme of £4.861M. 

 
5.5 2015/16 to 2019/20 Capital Programme 
 
5.5.1 One of the outcomes from the Stock Options Appraisal was that future years’ 

programmes should be set in line with the HRA Business Plan wherever possible.  
Drawing on information from the 2014 Stock Condition Survey and allowing for 
revenue funded maintenance, the draft programme included at Appendix D would 
enable the housing stock to continue to meet both the Decent Homes Standard and 
the Lancaster Standard. 

 
5.5.2 In terms of future investment, options are still being formulated and will be presented 

to Members in due course.  As such, no assumptions on future new build have been 
included in the current programme. See also comments provided under sections 6.3 
and 9.1. 
 

5.5.3 The total draft five year programme for 2015/16 onwards now stands at £24.253M, 
the majority of which will be financed from revenue sources.  There is no prudential 
borrowing requirement.  The HRA is therefore still in a reasonably strong position 
financially, subject to the officer preferred option being implemented regarding future 
rent levels, noting that consideration of further investment must still ensure that long-
term financial sustainability is not compromised. 

 
 
6 RENT SETTING POLICY  
 
6.1 In September 2012, Cabinet adopted a HRA medium term financial strategy and rent 

policy that supported the future needs of the HRA housing stock, whilst enabling the 
Council to consider using HRA funding in a wider regeneration context.  

 
6.2 Subsequent to that at its meeting on 12 February 2013, Cabinet approved a rent 

setting policy for the medium term for years 2014/15 to 2016/17 of 1%, 2% and 3% 
respectively.   
 

6.3 The table below shows that the current rent setting policy (Option 1) is the only viable 
option available to Members at this time.  The combined effect of a reducing income 
base and increasing repairs and maintenance costs (as highlighted under section 
2.2) has had the overall impact of reducing the cumulative 30-year balance by 
£86.3M compared with projections presented to Cabinet last February.  That said, 
the current rent setting policy will still provide for the current stock to be maintained to 
the required standards.  Whilst the 30-year Business Plan does not appear to be as 
healthy as it did in the previous year, it is anticipated that this position will improve 
once all capital works have been fully detailed and completed in the short to medium 
term as it should naturally follow that the responsive repairs and maintenance side 
reduces with the overall financial position improving over the longer term.  This will 
be reviewed more fully over the coming 12 month period and be fed into future 
updates of the Business Plan.  
 

6.4 For information, the table (in line with the decision made in February 2013) also 
shows the impact of further delaying the increase in rent by another year, i.e. 1% for 
2015/16 then 2% and 3% thereafter for subsequent years (Option 2).  This still seeks 
to phase in the increase, in line with the rent setting policy, but delays the 

Page 72



 

implementation.  The overall impact is to reduce the cumulative 30-year balance by a 
further £13.1M compared with Option 1, and will mean that the Business Plan is no 
longer sustainable towards the end of the 30-year period and is therefore not 
considered a viable option. 

 
30 Year Business Plan 
– Business Support 
Reserve & Unallocated 
Balances 

2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 
30 Year 

Cumulative 
Total 

Projections as at February 
2014 £9.036M £9.060M £9.541M £10.173M £94.749M 

Option 1 – 2% then 3% 
thereafter £9.093M £9.008M £9.140M £9.324M £8.434M 

      
Option 2 - Re-phasing of 
increases, 1%, 2% then 3% 
thereafter 

£9.093M £8.873M £8.732M £8.636M -£4.664M 

 
6.5 Any rent increases above those set out under Option 1 would also clearly be 

sustainable and would generate further investment opportunity.  However, any 
proposals less than Option 1 would need to be modelled to determine their impact on 
the overall business plan and assessed against the current rent setting policy. 
 

6.6 For information, 2015/16 will be a 52 week rent year, which will be collected over the 
standard 48 weeks with 4 non-collection weeks.   

 
 
7 DETAILS OF CONSULTATION  

 
7.1 The draft Revenue Budget and Capital Programme was presented to the District 

Wide Tenants’ Forum on 14 January 2015, and relevant minutes from the meeting 
are attached at Appendix E.  These show continued support for a 2% increase in 
rents for 2015/16. 
 
 

8 OPTIONS AND OPTIONS ANALYSIS (INCLUDING RISK ASSESSMENT) 
 
8.1 With regard to the revenue budget generally, Cabinet could consider other proposals 

that may influence spending in current and future years, as long their financing is 
considered and addressed. 

 
8.2 The options available in respect of the minimum level of HRA balances are to set the 

level at £350,000 in line with the advice of the Section 151 Officer, or to adopt a 
different level. Should Members choose not to accept the advice on the level of 
balances, then this should be recorded formally in the minutes of the meeting and it 
could have implications for the Council’s financial standing, as assessed by its 
external auditors. 
 

8.3 There is only one sustainable option available in respect of the 2015/16 rent increase 
and this is set out in section 6 of the report and is in line with the current rent setting 
policy.   

 
8.4 The options available in respect of the Capital Programme are: 
 

i) To approve the programme in full, with the financing as set out; 

Page 73



 

ii) To incorporate other increases or reductions to the programme, with 
appropriate sources of funding being identified. 

 
8.5 Any risks attached to the above would depend very much on what measures 

Members proposed, and their impact on the council housing service and its tenants.  
As such, a full options analysis could only be undertaken once any alternative 
proposals are known, and Officers may require more time in order to do this. 
 
 

9 OFFICER PREFERRED OPTION AND COMMENTS 
 

9.1 The Officer preferred options are to: 
− Approve / refer on  the provisions, reserves and balances position as set out; 
− Set rent levels to ensure that current stock levels continue to be maintained to 

required standards, i.e. a 2% increase in 2015/16 and 3% thereafter, noting that 
any detrimental impact associated with any future accounting / regulatory / 
welfare reform changes will need to be addressed at that time; 

− Note that if future investment opportunity is to be maximised, then as referred to 
in section 6.3, this can only really be properly considered once there is a better 
understanding of the total maintenance requirements and its impact on the 
viability of the 30-year Business Plan. 

− Approve / refer on the revenue and capital budget proposals as set out. 
 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO POLICY FRAMEWORK 
The budget represents, in financial terms, what the Council is seeking to achieve through its 
approved Housing Strategy in relation to council housing.  
 

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
(including Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, Sustainability etc) 
No significant implications directly arising. 
 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
As set out in the report. 

SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS 
The s151 Officer’s comments and advice is reflected in this report (acknowledging also her 
role as Chief Officer (Resources)). 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  
There are no legal implications arising from this report. 

MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS 
The Monitoring officer has been consulted and has no further comments. 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
None 

Contact Officer: Nadine 
Muschamp/Suzanne Lodge 
Telephone: 01524 582117 / 582701 
E-mail: nmuschamp@lancaster.gov.uk 

 

Page 74



Appendix A

2014/15 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18
Budget Revised Budget Forecast Forecast

£ £ £ £ £
INCOME

Rental Income - Council Housing (Gross) -13,545,600 -13,495,700 -13,707,200 -14,084,000 -14,467,200

Rental Income - Other (Gross) -208,700 -210,400 -203,600 -207,300 -211,000

Charges for Services & Facilities -1,823,600 -1,830,700 -1,866,900 -1,888,900 -1,925,100

Grant Income -7,700 -7,700 -7,700 -7,700 -7,700

Contributions from General Fund -87,400 -87,500 -80,700 -82,600 -84,300

Total Income -15,673,000 -15,632,000 -15,866,100 -16,270,500 -16,695,300

EXPENDITURE

Repairs & Maintenance 4,189,800 4,541,100 4,693,900 4,686,000 4,821,900

Supervision & Management 3,313,700 3,244,100 3,389,200 3,440,200 3,502,800

Rents, Rates, Taxes & Other Charges 144,700 155,900 170,500 199,300 228,200

Increase in Provision for Bad and Doubtful Debts 175,000 191,200 190,400 195,600 195,600

Depreciation & Impairment of Fixed Assets 1,715,900 1,988,700 1,984,000 1,974,700 1,974,500

Debt Management Costs 1,100 1,100 1,100 1,100 1,100

HRA Self Financing Loan

Total Expenditure 9,540,200 10,122,100 10,429,100 10,496,900 10,724,100

NET COST OF HRA SERVICES -6,132,800 -5,509,900 -5,437,000 -5,773,600 -5,971,200

Interest Payable & Similar Charges 2,041,300 2,041,300 2,006,600 1,967,000 1,931,100

Amortisation of Premiums & Discounts -600 -600 -600 -600 0

Interest & Investment Income -27,400 -25,300 -33,300 -43,300 -43,300

Self Financing Debt Repayment 1,041,400 1,041,400 1,041,400 1,041,400 1,041,400

(-)SURPLUS OR DEFICIT FOR THE YEAR -3,078,100 -2,453,100 -2,422,900 -2,809,100 -3,042,000

Adjustments to reverse out Notional Charges included 
above

-32,700 -32,200 -27,500 -18,200 -18,000

Transfers to/(-)from Major Repairs Reserve 2,850,100 2,322,600 2,517,500 2,457,300 2,638,900

Transfers to/(-)from Earmarked Reserves -22,400 -355,400 -386,600 -66,200 1,200

Capital Expenditure funded from Revenue (Reserves) 210,000 414,400 366,500 265,000 195,000

TOTAL (-)SURPLUS / DEFICIT FOR THE YEAR -73,100 -103,700 47,000 -171,200 -224,900

Housing Revenue Account Balance brought forward -400,896 -400,896 -504,596 -457,596 -628,796

HRA BALANCE CARRIED FORWARD -473,996 -504,596 -457,596 -628,796 -853,696

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT DRAFT BUDGET 
For Consideration by Cabinet  17 February 2015

Page 75



Appendix B 

 

 
2015/16 BUDGET 

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT – RISK  & ASSUMPTIONS 
FOR CONSIDERATION BY CABINET 17 FEBRUARY 2015 

 

 

 
 

 
RISK AREA 

 
NOTES/DETAILS 

  
Self financing  Sufficient funds need to be set aside within the Revenue Budget / Major Repairs 

Reserve in order to ensure that the 30 Year HRA Capital Programme can continue 
to be financed.  

Sufficient funds need to be set aside within the Business Support Reserve in order 
to ensure that the Council’s programme for new build council housing and scheme 
of acquisition of ex-council housing can be fulfilled. 

Any significant reduction in available capital financing (e.g. through revenue 
growth) could have an adverse impact on the position. 

Robust business planning arrangements will need to be maintained that take into 
account debt financing, stock condition, service budgetary needs, and ongoing 
Government policy, around rents and inflation. 

Rent policy The Council has adopted a medium term financial strategy and has agreed to set 
a rent policy that supports the future investment needs of its HRA housing stock, 
and will enable the Council to consider council housing in a wider regeneration 
context. The Council is committed to maintaining decent homes, and to building 
and acquiring new homes. 

The Government assumed, in its calculation of the debt settlement for self 
financing, the council will increase its rents in accordance with Government 
guidelines. 

The Government is also assuming that from 2015/16 that rents in the social rented 
housing sector would increase by CPI (at September of the previous year) + 1 
percentage point annually, for ten years. Under the Government policy they see 
the majority of existing rented properties in the social housing sector being let at 
social rents. 

Setting levels of rent below Government guidelines will reduce the amount of 
money available for future investment. If rent levels are set significantly below the 
guideline levels the Council would not be able to maintain the reserves to properly 
fund the future investment needs of the stock, or its new build programme. 

Income recovery The Government welfare reforms will present a higher risk to levels of rent 
collection and that the council may need to increase the contribution to the Bad 
Debts Provision to reflect future arrears trends. There is a negative effect on future 
years’ budgets if income recovery deteriorates and a positive effect if it improves. 

The income management team has been strengthened. Adequate Bad Debts 
Provision will be provided for within the HRA. This will be kept under review. 

Void levels Stock turnover has increased over the last twelve months. If this level of turnover 
is maintained greater allowance may need to be made within the budget for loss of 
rental income due to voids. Rent loss through void properties in previous years 
has been maintained at a low level. 

Reduced demand Overall demand for council housing remain high, and is particularly high for one 
and two bedroom properties. This demand has informed the Council’s decision to 
give priority to building one bedroom accommodation in any new build programme 
or acquisition scheme Demand across the council housing stock is monitored and 
informs the asset management plans. 

Page 76



Appendix B 
Stock reductions  The rate of sales in 2014/15 has increased however the numbers are still low 

compared with historic levels of sales. However it is anticipated that this trend is 
likely to continue in the medium term leading to future projected rental income 
levels being reduced. Low sales levels leads to lower levels of capital receipts. 
Sales impact on the revenue position as income is reduced but many costs are 
fixed.  

The Government’s objective is to increase the number of sales through the Right 
to Buy, and continues to promote the RTB Scheme.  Significant increase in RTB 
sale would reduce rental streams that would lead to deterioration in the HRA 
budgetary position, and the viability of the HRA, unless measures could be taken 
to reduce costs within the HRA. 

Additional capital requirements Legislation, changes in health and safety standards or the discovery of previously 
unknown defects may require additional capital expenditure. This is exampled by 
the need to increase expenditure on fire precaution works, asbestos management, 
and the managing the risk of legionella. These have been reflected in the capital 
programme. However, the Council is finalising the analysis of the stock condition 
survey to ensure the asset register and asset management plans correctly 
identifies the investment needs and programmes. Early indications are that there 
will be an increased investment needs above and beyond the currently budgeted 
for capital programme.  These requirements will be reviewed and reflected in the 
30 year HRA Business Plan. 

Major disasters Major disasters are generally covered by insurance. The Government also 
provides support for uninsurable losses incurred by local authorities through the 
Bellwin scheme. 

Effect of Legislation /Regulation Effective processes are in place to ensure that implications are identified and 
raised. The Council has processes in place to manage the demands of local and 
national housing agendas, including the Corporate Plan, MTFS and HRA 
Business Plan 

Risks; Implications of new legislation / regulation or changes to existing are not 
identified; funding is not identified to meet the costs associated with changes in 
statutory requirements; HRA Debt Settlement could be re-opened by Government. 

Other events Lancashire County Council are continuing to reconfigure their commissioning 
strategy for older people service, and The County have  indicated that they are 
considering ceasing funding sheltered housing from 2017/2018. Over the next two 
years they are proposing a reduction in the contract values of at least 14% for 
2015/2016 for our 3 contracts providing support services in sheltered housing and 
community alarm support. The City Council will need to reassess the service 
provision and funding relating to sheltered housing if these funding cuts are 
implemented. 

  

 
 

Page 77



H
O

U
S

IN
G

 R
E

V
E

N
U

E
 A

C
C

O
U

N
T

 -
 R

E
S

E
R

V
E

S
 A

N
D

 P
R

O
V

IS
IO

N
S

 S
T

A
T

E
M

E
N

T
 (

IN
C

L
U

D
IN

G
 B

A
L

A
N

C
E

S
)

F
o

r 
co

n
si

d
er

at
io

n
 b

y 
C

ab
in

et
 1

7 
F

eb
ru

ar
y 

20
15

31
/0

3/
14

C
o

nt
ri

b
ut

io
ns

 
to

 R
es

er
ve

31
/0

3/
15

C
o

nt
ri

b
ut

io
ns

 
to

 R
es

er
ve

31
/0

3/
16

C
o

nt
ri

b
ut

io
ns

 
to

 R
es

er
ve

31
/0

3/
17

C
o

nt
ri

b
ut

io
ns

 
to

 R
es

er
ve

31
/0

3/
18

F
ro

m
 R

ev
en

ue
T

o
 C

ap
it

al
 

T
o

 R
ev

en
ue

F
ro

m
 R

ev
en

ue
T

o
 C

ap
it

al
 

T
o

 R
ev

en
ue

F
ro

m
 R

ev
en

ue
T

o
 C

ap
it

al
 

T
o

 R
ev

en
ue

F
ro

m
 R

ev
en

ue
T

o
 C

ap
it

al
 

T
o

 R
ev

en
ue

£
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

£

H
R

A
 G

en
er

al
 B

al
an

ce
s 

   
   

   
40

0,
89

6.
28

10
3,

70
0

50
4,

59
6

-4
7,

00
0

45
7,

59
6

17
1,

20
0

62
8,

79
6

22
4,

90
0

85
3,

69
6

E
ar

m
ar

ke
d

 R
es

er
ve

s:

B
us

in
es

s 
S

up
po

rt
 R

es
er

ve
8,

61
2,

72
0.

37
-2

4,
70

0
8,

58
8,

02
0

-3
7,

90
0

8,
55

0,
12

0
-3

9,
10

0
8,

51
1,

02
0

-4
0,

40
0

8,
47

0,
62

0

M
aj

or
 R

ep
ai

rs
 R

es
er

ve
0.

00
4,

29
7,

10
0

-4
,2

97
,1

00
0

4,
49

2,
00

0
-4

,4
92

,0
00

0
4,

43
1,

80
0

-4
,4

31
,8

00
0

4,
61

3,
40

0
-4

,6
13

,4
00

0

F
la

ts
 -

 P
la

nn
ed

 M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

1,
20

9,
73

7.
85

-2
39

,0
00

-1
5,

10
0

95
5,

63
8

-3
06

,5
00

64
9,

13
8

13
3,

00
0

-2
05

,0
00

-1
5,

00
0

56
2,

13
8

13
3,

00
0

-1
60

,0
00

-1
5,

00
0

52
0,

13
8

C
en

tr
al

 C
on

tr
ol

 E
qu

ip
m

en
t /

 T
el

ec
ar

e
40

,0
00

.0
0

40
,0

00
40

,0
00

40
,0

00
40

,0
00

N
on

-S
he

lte
re

d 
S

ch
em

e 
E

qu
ip

m
en

t  
28

,8
41

.3
9

11
,6

00
-2

3,
50

0
16

,9
41

16
,6

00
-2

4,
00

0
9,

54
1

16
,6

00
-2

0,
50

0
5,

64
1

16
,6

00
-2

0,
50

0
1,

74
1

I T
 R

ep
la

ce
m

en
t 

59
1,

19
4.

66
59

1,
19

5
59

1,
19

5
57

,0
00

64
8,

19
5

57
,0

00
70

5,
19

5

O
ff

ic
e 

E
qu

ip
m

en
t R

es
er

ve
   

   
43

,9
20

.6
5

3,
00

0
46

,9
21

3,
00

0
49

,9
21

3,
00

0
52

,9
21

3,
00

0
55

,9
21

S
he

lte
re

d 
- 

E
qu

ip
m

en
t  

   
33

3,
78

0.
79

31
,5

00
-2

3,
50

0
34

1,
78

1
22

,7
00

-2
4,

00
0

34
0,

48
1

22
,0

00
-2

0,
50

0
34

1,
98

1
22

,9
00

-2
0,

50
0

34
4,

38
1

S
he

lte
re

d 
- 

P
la

nn
ed

 M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

31
1,

27
9.

98
71

,4
00

-1
75

,4
00

-3
,2

00
20

4,
08

0
45

,5
00

-6
0,

00
0

-4
2,

70
0

14
6,

88
0

44
,1

00
-6

0,
00

0
-3

,0
00

12
7,

98
0

45
,8

00
-3

5,
00

0
-3

,0
00

13
5,

78
0

S
he

lte
re

d 
S

up
po

rt
 G

ra
nt

 M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 
23

5,
53

4.
38

31
,5

00
26

7,
03

4
20

,7
00

28
7,

73
4

21
,2

00
30

8,
93

4
17

,3
00

32
6,

23
4

T
o

ta
l E

ar
m

ak
ed

 R
es

er
ve

s
11

,4
07

,0
10

4,
44

6,
10

0
-4

,7
11

,5
00

-9
0,

00
0

11
,0

51
,6

10
4,

60
0,

50
0

-4
,8

58
,5

00
-1

28
,6

00
10

,6
65

,0
10

4,
72

8,
70

0
-4

,6
96

,8
00

-9
8,

10
0

10
,5

98
,8

10
4,

90
9,

00
0

-4
,8

08
,4

00
-9

9,
40

0
10

,6
00

,0
10

P
ro

vi
so

n

B
ad

 D
eb

t
46

0,
85

4

C
o

nt
ri

b
ut

io
n 

fr
o

m
 R

es
er

ve
C

o
nt

ri
b

ut
io

n 
fr

o
m

 R
es

er
ve

C
o

nt
ri

b
ut

io
n 

fr
o

m
 R

es
er

ve
C

o
nt

ri
b

ut
io

n 
fr

o
m

 R
es

er
ve

Appendix C (i)

Page 78



R
E

S
E

R
V

E
S

 A
N

D
 P

R
O

V
IS

IO
N

S
- 

F
o

r 
C

o
n

si
d

er
at

io
n

 b
y 

C
ab

in
et

   
   

   
  

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 C

 (
ii)

 

   
R

ea
so

n
 f

o
r/

p
u

rp
o

se
  

H
o

w
 &

 w
h

en
 it

 b
e 

u
se

d
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

&
 c

o
n

tr
o

l 
R

ev
ie

w
ed

 
R

ec
o

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
s 

 

C
ap

it
al

 R
es

er
ve

s 
 

 
 

 
 

M
aj

o
r 

R
ep

ai
rs

 R
es

er
ve

 
(M

R
R

) 
 

S
et

 u
p 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
th

e 
in

tr
od

uc
tio

n 
of

 
R

es
ou

rc
e 

A
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

in
 

th
e 

H
R

A
.  

C
re

di
te

d 
w

ith
 

th
e 

am
ou

nt
 o

f 
de

pr
ec

ia
tio

n 
ch

ar
ge

d 
to

 
th

e 
H

R
A

 a
nd

 to
pp

ed
 u

p 
w

ith
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 fu
nd

s 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 fi
na

nc
e 

th
e 

ca
pi

ta
l p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
in

-
ye

ar
. 

C
an

 b
e 

ap
pl

ie
d 

to
 c

ap
ita

l 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 to

 H
R

A
 

ho
us

in
g 

st
oc

k 
(s

pe
ci

fic
al

ly
 

ex
cl

ud
in

g 
de

m
ol

iti
on

) 
an

d,
 

ad
di

tio
na

lly
 fr

om
 1

st
 A

pr
il 

20
04

, r
ep

ay
m

en
t o

f H
R

A
 

de
bt

 a
nd

 c
re

di
t l

ia
bi

lit
ie

s 
(in

cl
ud

in
g 

pr
em

ia
 o

n 
ea

rly
 

re
pa

ym
en

t o
f P

W
LB

 
lo

an
s)

.  
   

H
ea

lt
h

 &
 

H
o

u
si

n
g

 
/R

es
o

u
rc

es
 

B
u

d
g

et
 &

 
O

u
tt

u
rn

 
T

o
 p

ro
vi

d
e 

in
-y

ea
r 

fu
n

d
in

g
 

fo
r 

th
e 

ca
p

it
al

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e 
as

 
b

u
d

g
et

ed
. 

 

B
u

si
n

es
s 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 
R

es
er

ve
 

E
st

ab
lis

he
d 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 

su
pp

or
t t

o 
ad

di
tio

na
l 

bu
si

ne
ss

 p
la

n 
co

m
m

itm
en

ts
 a

nd
 

pl
an

ne
d 

in
ve

st
m

en
t 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

.  
 

U
se

 o
f t

he
 r

es
er

ve
 to

 b
e 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 b
y 

C
ab

in
et

. 
 C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

 to
 th

e 
re

se
rv

e 
to

 b
e 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 
an

nu
al

ly
 a

s 
pa

rt
 o

f t
he

 
bu

dg
et

. 

H
ea

lt
h

 &
 

H
o

u
si

n
g

 
/R

es
o

u
rc

es
 

 . 

B
u

d
g

et
 &

 
O

u
tt

u
rn

 
R

et
ai

n
 a

s 
b

u
d

g
et

ed
. 

Page 79



R
E

S
E

R
V

E
S

 A
N

D
 P

R
O

V
IS

IO
N

S
- 

F
o

r 
C

o
n

si
d

er
at

io
n

 b
y 

C
ab

in
et

   
   

   
  

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 C

 (
ii)

 

   
R

ea
so

n
 f

o
r/

p
u

rp
o

se
  

H
o

w
 &

 w
h

en
 it

 b
e 

u
se

d
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

&
 c

o
n

tr
o

l 
R

ev
ie

w
ed

 
R

ec
o

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
s 

 

R
ev

en
u

e 
R

es
er

ve
s 

 
 

 
 

 

F
la

ts
 –

 P
la

n
n

ed
 

M
ai

n
te

n
an

ce
 R

es
er

ve
 

E
st

ab
lis

he
d 

to
 s

m
oo

th
 

th
e 

co
st

s 
of

 m
aj

or
 

re
ve

nu
e 

an
d 

ca
pi

ta
l 

w
or

ks
 to

 fl
at

s 
fu

nd
ed

 
fr

om
 S

er
vi

ce
 C

ha
rg

es
.  

 

C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 fr

om
 S

er
vi

ce
 

C
ha

rg
es

 m
ad

e 
to

 th
is

 
re

se
rv

e,
 to

ge
th

er
 w

ith
 

ad
di

tio
na

l a
pp

ro
pr

ia
tio

ns
 in

 
lie

u 
of

 in
te

re
st

. 
 R

es
er

ve
 to

 b
e 

ap
pl

ie
d 

to
 

m
aj

or
 w

or
ks

 to
 c

om
m

un
al

 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

in
 fl

at
s.

   
 

H
ea

lt
h

 &
 

H
o

u
si

n
g

 
/R

es
o

u
rc

es
 

B
u

d
g

et
 &

 
O

u
tt

u
rn

 
R

et
ai

n
 a

s 
b

u
d

g
et

ed
. 

 Page 80



R
E

S
E

R
V

E
S

 A
N

D
 P

R
O

V
IS

IO
N

S
- 

F
o

r 
C

o
n

si
d

er
at

io
n

 b
y 

C
ab

in
et

   
   

   
  

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 C

 (
ii)

 

   
R

ea
so

n
 f

o
r/

p
u

rp
o

se
  

H
o

w
 &

 w
h

en
 it

 b
e 

u
se

d
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

&
 c

o
n

tr
o

l 
R

ev
ie

w
ed

 
R

ec
o

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
s 

 

T
el

ec
ar

e 
E

st
ab

lis
he

d 
to

 s
m

oo
th

 
th

e 
co

st
s 

of
 r

en
ew

al
 o

r 
re

pl
ac

em
en

t o
f 

T
el

ec
ar

e 
E

qu
ip

m
en

t. 

N
/A

 
H

ea
lt

h
 &

 
H

o
u

si
n

g
 

/R
es

o
u

rc
es

 

B
u

d
g

et
 &

 
O

u
tt

u
rn

 
R

et
ai

n
 a

s 
b

u
d

g
et

ed
 –

 B
u

d
g

et
 

to
 b

e 
re

vi
ew

ed
 o

n
ce

 C
o

u
n

ty
 

C
o

u
n

ci
l’s

 c
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

in
g

 
st

ra
te

g
y 

an
d

 f
u

tu
re

 
co

n
tr

ac
ti

n
g

 a
rr

an
g

em
en

ts
 

ar
e 

cl
ea

r.
 

N
o

n
-s

h
el

te
re

d
 s

ch
em

e 
eq

u
ip

m
en

t 
E

st
ab

lis
he

d 
to

 fu
nd

 
pu

rc
ha

se
s 

of
 

eq
ui

pm
en

t f
or

 n
on

-
sh

el
te

re
d 

sc
he

m
es

 
fu

nd
ed

 fr
om

 S
er

vi
ce

 
C

ha
rg

es
. 

C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 fr

om
 S

er
vi

ce
 

C
ha

rg
es

 m
ad

e 
to

 th
is

 
re

se
rv

e,
 to

ge
th

er
 w

ith
 

ad
di

tio
na

l a
pp

ro
pr

ia
tio

ns
 

in
 li

eu
 o

f i
nt

er
es

t. 
 R

es
er

ve
 to

 b
e 

ap
pl

ie
d 

to
 

pu
rc

ha
se

s 
of

 e
qu

ip
m

en
t 

fo
r 

no
n -

sh
el

te
re

d 
sc

he
m

es
. 

 

H
ea

lt
h

 &
 

H
o

u
si

n
g

 
/R

es
o

u
rc

es
 

B
u

d
g

et
 &

 
O

u
tt

u
rn

 
R

et
ai

n
 a

s 
b

u
d

g
et

ed
. 

Page 81



R
E

S
E

R
V

E
S

 A
N

D
 P

R
O

V
IS

IO
N

S
- 

F
o

r 
C

o
n

si
d

er
at

io
n

 b
y 

C
ab

in
et

   
   

   
  

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 C

 (
ii)

 

   
R

ea
so

n
 f

o
r/

p
u

rp
o

se
  

H
o

w
 &

 w
h

en
 it

 b
e 

u
se

d
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

&
 c

o
n

tr
o

l 
R

ev
ie

w
ed

 
R

ec
o

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
s 

 

IT
 R

ep
la

ce
m

en
t 

 
E

st
ab

lis
he

d 
to

 fu
nd

 
fu

tu
re

 IT
 s

ys
te

m
s 

an
d 

eq
ui

pm
en

t 
re

pl
ac

em
en

t. 

T
o 

be
 a

pp
lie

d 
to

 fu
tu

re
 

re
pl

ac
em

en
ts

. 
H

ea
lt

h
 &

 
H

o
u

si
n

g
 

/R
es

o
u

rc
es

 
 

B
u

d
g

et
 &

 
O

u
tt

u
rn

 
R

et
ai

n
 a

s 
b

u
d

g
et

ed
. 

O
ff

ic
e 

E
q

u
ip

m
en

t 
R

es
er

ve
 

E
st

ab
lis

he
d 

to
 fu

nd
 

pu
rc

ha
se

s 
of

 m
aj

or
 

of
fic

e 
fu

rn
is

hi
ng

s.
 

U
se

d 
to

 fu
nd

 a
d-

ho
c 

pu
rc

ha
se

s 
of

 m
aj

or
 o

ffi
ce

 
fu

rn
is

hi
ng

s 
re

su
lta

nt
 fr

om
 

he
al

th
 &

 s
af

et
y 

le
gi

sl
at

io
n 

an
d 

ris
k 

as
se

ss
m

en
ts

 
(d

es
k,

 c
ha

irs
, c

ab
in

et
s 

et
c)

 
an

d 
m

in
or

 o
ffi

ce
 

eq
ui

pm
en

t i
te

m
s.

 
 

H
ea

lt
h

 &
 

H
o

u
si

n
g

 
/R

es
o

u
rc

es
  

B
u

d
g

et
 &

 
O

u
tt

u
rn

 
R

et
ai

n
 a

s 
b

u
d

g
et

ed
 

S
h

el
te

re
d

 E
q

u
ip

m
en

t 
R

es
er

ve
 

E
st

ab
lis

he
d 

to
 fu

nd
 

pu
rc

ha
se

s 
of

 
eq

ui
pm

en
t f

or
 

S
he

lte
re

d 
sc

he
m

es
 

fu
nd

ed
 fr

om
 S

er
vi

ce
 

C
ha

rg
es

.  

C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 fr

om
 S

er
vi

ce
 

C
ha

rg
es

 m
ad

e 
to

 th
is

 
re

se
rv

e,
 to

ge
th

er
 w

ith
 

ad
di

tio
na

l a
pp

ro
pr

ia
tio

ns
 

in
 li

eu
 o

f i
nt

er
es

t. 
R

es
er

ve
 to

 b
e 

ap
pl

ie
d 

to
 

pu
rc

ha
se

s 
of

 e
qu

ip
m

en
t 

fo
r 

co
m

m
on

 a
re

a 
se

rv
ic

es
 

fo
r 

S
he

lte
re

d 
sc

he
m

es
. 

 

H
ea

lt
h

 &
 

H
o

u
si

n
g

 
/R

es
o

u
rc

es
 

B
u

d
g

et
 &

 
O

u
tt

u
rn

 
R

et
ai

n
 a

s 
b

u
d

g
et

ed
. 

S
h

el
te

re
d

 –
 P

la
n

n
ed

 
M

ai
n

te
n

an
ce

 
E

st
ab

lis
he

d 
to

 s
m

oo
th

 
th

e 
co

st
s 

of
 m

aj
or

 
re

ve
nu

e 
an

d 
ca

pi
ta

l 
w

or
ks

 to
 fl

at
s 

fu
nd

ed
 

fr
om

 S
er

vi
ce

 C
ha

rg
es

 

C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 fr

om
 S

er
vi

ce
 

C
ha

rg
es

 m
ad

e 
to

 th
is

 
re

se
rv

e,
 to

ge
th

er
 w

ith
 

ad
di

tio
na

l a
pp

ro
pr

ia
tio

ns
 

in
 li

eu
 o

f i
nt

er
es

t. 
R

es
er

ve
 to

 b
e 

ap
pl

ie
d 

to
 

m
aj

or
 w

or
ks

 to
 c

om
m

un
al

 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

in
 S

he
lte

re
d 

sc
he

m
es

. 
 

H
ea

lt
h

 &
 

H
o

u
si

n
g

 
/R

es
o

u
rc

es
 

B
u

d
g

et
 &

 
O

u
tt

u
rn

 
R

et
ai

n
 a

s 
b

u
d

g
et

ed
. 

Page 82



R
E

S
E

R
V

E
S

 A
N

D
 P

R
O

V
IS

IO
N

S
- 

F
o

r 
C

o
n

si
d

er
at

io
n

 b
y 

C
ab

in
et

   
   

   
  

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 C

 (
ii)

 

   
R

ea
so

n
 f

o
r/

p
u

rp
o

se
  

H
o

w
 &

 w
h

en
 it

 b
e 

u
se

d
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

&
 c

o
n

tr
o

l 
R

ev
ie

w
ed

 
R

ec
o

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
s 

 

S
h

el
te

re
d

 –
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 

G
ra

n
t 

M
ai

n
te

n
an

ce
 

E
st

ab
lis

he
d 

to
 fu

nd
 

pu
rc

ha
se

s 
of

 
eq

ui
pm

en
t f

or
 

S
he

lte
re

d 
sc

he
m

es
 

fu
nd

ed
 fr

om
 S

er
vi

ce
 

C
ha

rg
es

, b
ut

 c
la

ss
ed

 
as

 S
up

po
rt

 C
os

ts
 u

nd
er

 
C

ou
nt

y 
G

ui
de

lin
es

. 

C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 fr

om
 S

er
vi

ce
 

C
ha

rg
es

 m
ad

e 
to

 th
is

 
re

se
rv

e,
 to

ge
th

er
 w

ith
 

ad
di

tio
na

l a
pp

ro
pr

ia
tio

ns
 

in
 li

eu
 o

f i
nt

er
es

t. 
R

es
er

ve
 to

 b
e 

ap
pl

ie
d 

to
 

m
aj

or
 w

or
ks

 to
 c

om
m

un
al

 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

in
 S

he
lte

re
d 

sc
he

m
es

.  
 

H
ea

lt
h

 &
 

H
o

u
si

n
g

 
/R

es
o

u
rc

es
 

B
u

d
g

et
 &

 
O

u
tt

u
rn

 
R

et
ai

n
 a

s 
b

u
d

g
et

ed
. 

JE
 R

es
er

ve
 

E
st

ab
lis

he
d 

to
 fu

nd
 th

e 
su

pp
or

t o
f t

he
 p

ay
 

st
ru

ct
ur

e.
  T

he
 r

es
er

ve
 

is
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 e
m

pt
y.

 

C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
to

 th
e 

re
se

rv
e 

to
 b

e 
ap

pr
ov

ed
 b

y 
C

ab
in

et
. U

se
 o

f t
he

 
re

se
rv

es
 to

 b
e 

de
te

rm
in

ed
 

(a
nd

 a
gr

ee
d)

 b
y 

bo
th

 th
e 

H
ea

d 
of

 G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

an
d 

H
ea

d 
of

 R
es

ou
rc

es
. 

H
ea

lt
h

 &
 

H
o

u
si

n
g

 
/R

es
o

u
rc

es
 

B
u

d
g

et
 &

 
O

u
tt

u
rn

 
R

es
er

ve
 s

ti
ll 

re
ta

in
ed

 
p

en
d

in
g

 t
h

e 
o

u
tc

o
m

e 
o

f 
th

e 
se

co
n

d
 jo

b
 e

va
lu

at
io

n
 

re
vi

ew
. 

  
R

ea
so

n
 f

o
r/

p
u

rp
o

se
  

H
o

w
 &

 w
h

en
 it

 b
e 

u
se

d
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

&
 c

o
n

tr
o

l 
R

ev
ie

w
ed

 
R

ec
o

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
s 

 

P
ro

vi
si

o
n

s 
 

 
 

 
 

B
ad

 D
eb

ts
 

T
hi

s 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

is
 u

se
d 

to
 w

rit
e 

of
f a

ll 
H

ou
si

ng
 

R
ev

en
ue

 A
cc

ou
nt

 b
ad

 
de

bt
s 

th
at

 h
av

e 
be

en
 

ap
pr

ov
ed

.  
 

T
he

 p
ro

vi
si

on
 is

 fu
nd

ed
 b

y 
an

 a
nn

ua
l c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

ba
se

d 
on

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t o

f 
th

e 
le

ve
l o

f d
eb

t 
ou

ts
ta

nd
in

g.
 

 

R
es

o
u

rc
es

 
B

u
d

g
et

 &
 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

T
o

 b
e 

re
vi

ew
ed

 f
o

llo
w

in
g

 a
n

 
as

se
ss

m
en

t 
o

f 
th

e 
im

p
ac

t 
o

f 
W

el
fa

re
 R

ef
o

rm
s.

 

 

Page 83



20
14

/1
5

20
14

/1
5

20
15

/1
6

20
16

/1
7

20
17

/1
8

20
18

/1
9

20
19

/2
0

T
O

T
A

L
A

p
p

ro
ve

d
 

B
u

d
g

et
 

R
ev

is
ed

E
st

im
at

e
E

st
im

at
e

E
st

im
at

e
E

st
im

at
e

E
st

im
at

e

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

A
da

pt
at

io
ns

30
0

   
   

   
   

32
0

   
   

   
   

30
0

   
   

   
   

30
0

   
   

   
   

30
0

   
   

   
   

30
0

   
   

   
   

30
0

   
   

   
   

1,
50

0
   

   
   

  
E

ne
rg

y 
E

ffi
ci

en
cy

/B
oi

le
r 

R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t
66

0
   

   
   

   
72

0
   

   
   

   
62

5
   

   
   

   
58

3
   

   
   

   
57

5
   

   
   

   
76

5
   

   
   

   
60

5
   

   
   

   
3,

15
3

   
   

   
  

K
itc

he
n/

B
at

hr
oo

m
 R

ef
ur

bi
sh

m
en

t
1,

09
7

   
   

   
1,

29
4

   
   

   
1,

13
3

   
   

   
1,

13
9

   
   

   
1,

13
9

   
   

   
1,

13
9

   
   

   
1,

85
9

   
   

   
6,

40
9

   
   

   
  

E
xt

er
na

l R
ef

ur
bi

sh
m

en
ts

97
7

   
   

   
   

95
8

   
   

   
   

93
4

   
   

   
   

96
1

   
   

   
   

82
2

   
   

   
   

50
1

   
   

   
   

80
7

   
   

   
   

4,
02

5
   

   
   

  
E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l I

m
pr

ov
em

en
ts

95
0

   
   

   
   

89
0

   
   

   
   

68
4

   
   

   
   

61
0

   
   

   
   

79
0

   
   

   
   

77
5

   
   

   
   

50
0

   
   

   
   

3,
35

9
   

   
   

  
R

e-
ro

of
in

g/
W

in
do

w
 R

en
ew

al
s

32
8

   
   

   
   

28
7

   
   

   
   

79
4

   
   

   
   

70
2

   
   

   
   

85
6

   
   

   
   

72
4

   
   

   
   

50
4

   
   

   
   

3,
58

0
   

   
   

  
R

ew
iri

ng
83

   
   

   
   

  
64

   
   

   
   

  
88

   
   

   
   

  
88

   
   

   
   

  
88

   
   

   
   

  
88

   
   

   
   

  
88

   
   

   
   

  
44

0
   

   
   

   
  

Li
ft 

R
ep

la
ce

m
en

ts
12

0
   

   
   

   
60

   
   

   
   

  
87

   
   

   
   

  
20

5
   

   
   

   
13

0
   

   
   

   
13

0
   

   
   

   
13

0
   

   
   

   
68

2
   

   
   

   
  

S
ep

tic
 T

an
ks

 R
en

ew
al

s
25

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
F

ire
 P

re
ca

ut
io

n 
W

or
ks

 
25

0
   

   
   

   
26

8
   

   
   

   
30

5
   

   
   

   
20

0
   

   
   

   
20

0
   

   
   

   
20

0
   

   
   

   
20

0
   

   
   

   
1,

10
5

   
   

   
  

T
O

T
A

L
 E

X
P

E
N

D
IT

U
R

E
4,

79
0

   
   

   
4,

86
1

   
   

   
4,

95
0

   
   

   
4,

78
8

   
   

   
4,

90
0

   
   

   
4,

62
2

   
   

   
4,

99
3

   
   

   
24

,2
53

   
   

   

F
IN

A
N

C
IN

G
C

ap
ita

l R
ec

ei
pt

s
47

   
   

   
   

  
16

8
   

   
   

   
11

0
   

   
   

   
10

9
   

   
   

   
10

9
   

   
   

   
10

9
   

   
   

   
10

9
   

   
   

   
54

6
   

   
   

   
  

E
ar

m
ar

ke
d 

R
es

er
ve

s
21

0
   

   
   

   
41

4
   

   
   

   
36

6
   

   
   

   
26

5
   

   
   

   
19

5
   

   
   

   
12

0
   

   
   

   
11

0
   

   
   

   
1,

05
6

   
   

   
  

M
aj

or
 R

ep
ai

rs
 R

es
er

ve
4,

53
3

   
   

   
4,

27
9

   
   

   
4,

47
4

   
   

   
4,

41
4

   
   

   
4,

59
6

   
   

   
4,

39
3

   
   

   
4,

77
4

   
   

   
22

,6
51

   
   

   

T
O

T
A

L
 F

IN
A

N
C

IN
G

4,
79

0
   

   
   

4,
86

1
   

   
   

4,
95

0
   

   
   

4,
78

8
   

   
   

4,
90

0
   

   
   

4,
62

2
   

   
   

4,
99

3
   

   
   

24
,2

53
   

   
   

S
H

O
R

T
F

A
L

L
/(

S
U

R
P

L
U

S
) 

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

C
o

u
n

ci
l H

o
u

si
n

g
 5

 Y
ea

r 
C

ap
it

al
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

F
o

r 
C

o
n

si
d

er
at

io
n

 b
y 

C
ab

in
et

 o
n

 1
7 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

15

Appendix D

Page 84



APPENDIX E 

 

District-wide Tenants’ Forum: Wednesday 14th January 2015 
 
 
Item 5. Financing of council housing: Delivering the business plan 

i. Proposed capital and planned maintenance programme 2015/2016 and beyond 

“The Repair and Maintenance Manager and Technical Manager updated the Forum on the main 
elements and revisions that had taken place to the 2014/2015 capital programme, and outlined the 
proposed capital and planned maintenance programme for 2015/2016 to 2019/2020. The Forum 
was taken through the detail of the 2015/2016 programme, and overall increased investment in the 
maintenance of the council housing stock. Particular attention was brought to the continuing 
investment in energy efficiency and renewable technologies measures, the spending of essential 
health and safety works, and the programme that had been established to upgrade the communal 
areas of the general needs flats. 

The Forum was advised of the continuing work that was being undertaken in analysing the 
information from the stock condition survey and that this would be fed through the next budget 
cycle and would identify any revisions required to the future Capital and Planned Maintenance 
Programmes. 

Having asked questions and discussed the programmes the Forum welcomed the proposals, and 
supported the proposed 5 year HRA Capital Programme and Planned Maintenance Programmes. 

 

ii. Rent increase 2015/2016 

The Forum considered the proposed rent increase for 2015/2016 and were advised that the 
recommendation of Councillor Leytham was that rents should increase by 2% in 2015/2016 in-line 
with the Cabinet resolution made in February 2013. 

The Forum were advised that there was still an expectation by Government the rents in the social 
rented sector should increase by CPI plus 1% in future. If Government guidelines were implemented 
this would mean a 2.2% increase. The Forum was reminded that the council had the freedom to set 
its rent levels, and that the proposed 2% increase for 2015/2016 would still ensure that the current 5 
year capital programme was funded. 

The views of the Forum were sought and the view of the Forum was that the recommended 2% 
increase in rent should be supported.” 

 

Page 85


	Agenda
	6 Section 106 Agreement - Morecambe Sainsbury's
	Sainsbury wider route plan.pdf
	Sainsburys plan.pdf

	7 Happy Mount Park- Masterplan-2015-2025
	Appendix A

	8 Corporate Performance and Financial Monitoring 2014/15 - Quarter 3
	Appendix A Corporate Plan 14-16 Qtr 3 monitoring ver 1 00.pdf
	Appendix B Complaints Analysis Qtr 3.pdf
	Appendix C Corporate Financial Monitoring Qtr3.docx
	Annex A GF Variances.pdf
	Annex B GF Capital Monitoring.pdf
	Appendix D - Treasury Management Qtr 3 Report.pdf
	Appendix E - Property Group Qtr 3 Report.pdf

	9 Corporate Plan
	Corporate Plan 2015 - 2018 (Word) ver 1.00

	11 Budget and Policy Framework Update 2015/16 Œ Housing Revenue Account and Capital Programme
	Appendix A HRA Statement.pdf
	Appendix B Risks and Assumptions.pdf
	Appendix C i Reserves & Appropriations.pdf
	App C ii Reserves & Provs.pdf
	Appendix D Capital Programme .pdf
	Appendix E District Wide Tenants' Forum.pdf


